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In 2024, amid a complex domestic and international economic
condition, the fluorosilicon chemical industry underwent significant
changes as affected by multiple factors. Given such circumstances,
market demand for some products within the industry remained weak,
similar to the previous year, while others experienced substantial price
increases due to external market factors. Leveraging on the strengths
accumulated over years of operation in the fluorosilicon chemical
industry, the Group rapidly seized market opportunities and recorded
a certain level of performance growth.
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RESULTS REVIEW

Seizing market opportunities to drive performance
growth

During the year, the fluorosilicon chemical industry experienced
significant market fluctuations due to external macroeconomic
conditions, leading to product price adjustments. Within the
refrigerants segment, key products such as R22 and R32
recorded substantial price increases driven by quota restrictions.
In response, the Group proactively optimized its product mix
and market strategies, achieving performance growth while
laying a solid foundation for future industrial expansion.
On the back of superior cost management and exceptional
market development capabilities, the organic silicon segment
recorded a profit turnaround from a loss despite supply-demand
imbalances in the industry. Meanwhile, the fluoropolymers
segment maintained its competitive edge amid intensified
market competition and declining product prices, supported by
superior product quality and the strategic layout on high-end
product offerings, achieving stable results for the Group.
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RESULTS REVIEW (Continued)

Stabilizing production to ensure competitiveness within
the industry

During the period under review, the Group strived to optimize
the operational efficiency of its devices amidst intense market
competition, to contribute further increase on the annual
output of its key products as compared to 2023. While
achieving output growth, the Group managed to reduce raw
material and overall energy consumption, as well as by-product
and co-product output to various degrees. The Group has
established a data analysis system across all production stages,
which can assist the Group to analyze production data and
provide operational guidance, thereby improving production
efficiency. In terms of safety and environmental protection, the
Group adhered to its long-standing safety and environmental
production standards, with significant decrease in abnormal
shutdown rate throughout the year, as well as completely
fulfilling regulatory standards for wastewater and exhaust
emissions. In the state of the challenging industry conditions,
the comprehensive production management allowed the Group
to maintain stable operations, achieve full production and
abundant sales, further reduce costs, so as to enhance product
competitiveness in the market.

Technological R&D has yielded new achievements

The Group attaches great importance to independent research
and development (R&D) all along, and has made further progress
in R&D for the year. During the year, total R&D expenses by the
Group amounted to approximately RMB707 million, including
over 40 R&D projects, such as pilot-scale production trials
involving new products, new technology and new process
developments. Together with facility upgrades and expansions,
energy-saving and consumption reduction initiatives, all R&D
projects contributed significantly to revenue growth, profit
increase and cost reduction. As at the end of 2024, the Group’s
R&D team comprised of over 800 members, with more than
60% holding doctoral or master’s degrees. During the year, the
Group was granted 121 patents, bringing the total number of
patents to over 600 by year-end. In addition, during the period
under review, the Group announced 4 national standards, 4
industry standards and 20 group standards, which have further
propelled industry development.
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RESULTS REVIEW (Continued)

Iv.

Remarkable achievement was made in strengthening
internal control, reducing costs and enhancing efficiency

During the year, the Group continued to uphold its
management policies of strengthening internal control,
optimizing and reducing costs, while unleashing potentials,
with a focus on key process control. In particular, the Group
conducted a thorough reform in key areas such as system,
procedure and framework. As a result, various items, including
costs on procurement, construction, maintenance, and
transportation, declined to various degrees under rigorous
management. With these internal control measures, the Group
enhanced market competitiveness amidst the current business
environment.

Accelerating the disposal of real estate business

The Group has remained cautious with its real estate business
since the engagement in 2011. According to the prevailing
industry situation, the Group has decided to gradually exit the
real estate industry since early 2020. By the end of the period
under review, the Group has ceased its real estate business with
no further plan to develop this business segment. During the
period under review, in light of its strategic plan to withdraw
from the real estate business, the Group has substantially
disposed assets of its real estate business. The corresponding
financial effects have been reflected in the annual financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards.
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PROSPECT

Despite the improving trend of the results, the Group still operates
its business cautiously to prepare for intense competition, as well
as abundant opportunities and challenges under the future market
outlook. As a result, we have developed the following business
strategies for the future:

1.  Establishing market leadership through R&D with a focus
on implementation

The Group has always viewed research and development (R&D)
as a key competitive advantage. Many of our products have
gained strong market recognition for their superior technology
and quality, which has helped securing a leading position in
China’s high-end product segment. The Group will expand into
small market segments and broaden product applications from
each segment to drive business growth. The Group adopts a
market-driven approach for R&D, strategically aligning our R&D
efforts with actual market needs to avoid inefficient innovation.
We will continue to extend and strengthen the fluorosilicone
chemical industry chain to create a distinctive, high-quality
development pathway for the industry.

2.  Ensuring safe and environmentally sustainable production
while enhancing efficiency

Presently, the fluorosilicone chemical industry represents
significant market opportunities. To capitalize such
opportunities, the Group must ensure stable production to
drive business performance. Therefore, the Group remains
committed to maintaining production stability, adhering to the
highest safety and environmental standards, and improving
the production efficiency of its equipments. We aim to further
reduce production costs through efficiency improvement of our
production facilities.




EERES

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

RREE ()

3

SR TIEEE - HlEBEEE KK

MFR - BEEAL TH 57 m T HEE M - f#
FHEBLAERABRER mMBE8LEER
MISHB LI Z MK - Bt - NEEH
BRAIMSE BREDEHH  RE
M5BT G T EERE  ARARE
LR -HP RAHIEERILEY
2 MBEER2RBRRHVBE  BHEeRAN
SEXETRBENERY RAUAEE
HEMELE TS - EREMERA(L

E—SMAERE  BRFEREN

ANEE BB MAEIR - 700 B fF A1
MITERET REFNKE  WRBE -5
BOREP BAERNEERZRBEER
—NEZ AREFHGEREE  ZER
R RO BERADMONE - HE
—HERARNETRERE - KEAEBUEHR
BB IHEAE - HERK

PROSPECT (Continued)
3.

Monitoring market trends and adopting flexible strategies

In recent years, the fluorosilicone chemical market is filled
with uncertainties, with supply and demand undergoing
structural adjustments. While the market changes rapidly, new
opportunities also arise accordingly. The Group will closely
monitor market dynamics, keep abreast of industry trends,
flexibly adapt response strategies to market conditions, and
promptly adjust business strategies. In particular, our refrigerant
products, which are subject to quota regulations to prevent
oversupply, have shown positive market trends. We anticipate
that this segment will become a stable growth driver for the
Group. Accordingly, we will seize all opportunities in the
refrigerant market to maximize profitability.

Further strengthening management to reduce costs and
improve efficiency

Through strengthening management, the Group has achieved
remarkable results in cost reduction and efficiency improvement
during the period under review. Moving forward, managing to
maintain cost reduction and efficiency improvement will be the
essential requirement. The Group will continue to implement
strict oversight, expense control and sustainable profitability.
By optimizing cost analysis effectively, the Group will conduct
scientific budgeting on each individual costs and provide data
support for cost reduction and efficiency improvement, as well
as for guidance on production and sales decisions.
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PROSPECT (Continued)

5. Optimizing the management system and cultivating
outstanding talents

In recent years, while operating under the pressure of the
volatile industry, the emergence of many outstanding
professionals internally has become a key factor for the Group
to achieve remarkable results under challenging circumstances.
Therefore, the Group will further optimize its management
system by selecting and training outstanding talents through
a competition selection mechanism, aiming to nurture
professionalism, competency and youthification, and adding
new vitality into the Group's future development.

2024 marked an extraordinary year for us, and the developing
direction of the fluorosilicon chemical industry has begun to show
initial signs. Looking ahead to 2025, the uncertainties in demand,
supply, quotas, and other aspects of the fluorosilicon chemical
industry represent both pressures and challenges for the Group.
We will adhere to the correct operating philosophy, maintain our
competitive edge in the industry, focus on the development of the
fluorosilicon industrial chain, and strive to create substantial value to
reward our investors for their long-term trust and support.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB14,181,087,000, down 2.15% over
RMB14,493,323,000 in the previous year. Gross profit margin
increased to 21.62% (2023: 16.81%) and the operating margin came
in at 10.01% (2023: 4.49%). The Group recorded profit before tax of
approximately RMB1,423,046,000 (2023: RMB653,171,000), and net
profit of approximately RMB987,497,000 (2023: RMB611,085,000),
while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s owners was
approximately RMB810,804,000 (2023: RMB707,793,000). Basic
earnings per share were RMB0.46 (2023: RMB0.32).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10
(2023: HK$0.10) per share to the shareholders whose names appear
on the shareholder’s registrars of the Company on 16 June 2025.

Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating
segments, of the Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31
December 2024 and 2023:

HE20ME12831ALEE BE0BF12ANALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 For the year ended 31 December 2023
§: k& KERAE e ¥R KEEAE
Operating Operating
Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
AR®TR AR%Tx AREFTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
B FHE Fluoropolymers 3,824,967 508,088 ERELAY 4,552,407 336,766 7.40%
Bk Organic Silicon 5,212,703 101,668 (A 4,862,426 (330,512) (6.80)%
SR H Refrigerants 3,247,702 806,356 LREDAS 2,871,580 310,574 10.82%
—ARRRER Dichloromethane and
Liquid Alkali 1,104,337 372,161 33.70% 1,176,824 248,359 21.10%
Hit Others 791,378 (368,749) CEARAN 1,030,086 85,458 8.30%
e Consolidated 14,181,087 1,419,524 (OGEAY 14,493,323 650,645 4.49%

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 9



BEBNWEDN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRSOl ()
Y Oy

ALOESMA - B TITETRERMSERE
—ENER  ERERZLAR - A EHAE
B2 @m0 FHF DR — & 5 ke RgEa o 50 4
SMEE WA TR - UL E D 88 K B e RE D 5B S
HEWALR EXr2ERSHHBEEEA TR
BEER -

BREASD FHHE

CIEHA sREs TMESEEINEEN B A
R #3,824,967,000 7T * ¥ & F [F] BB 8 2> 15.98%
(2023 A AR #4,552,407,0007C) © 15 KEE
M INEE R26.97% (2023 F £31.41% ) o &
DELEE B BT AR 508,088,000 © B EF
[A 23 & R A R #5 336,766,000 JT 1% £ 50.87% °

AOBEHAN ZOREEERTHERRS @ 17
EBRFERASA - HILEmEBRE2023F B
TB o RREIMEE U A REE Z TEE - AT -
AEBREBTENRENEREENRMN  ER
RIFETHRSNEBMBUENKAN - EBZD

10 HE£EERAR —B-NEEH

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Analysis of Operating Results

During the period under review, the fluorosilicon chemical industry
exhibited various market conditions across different products with
different degree of price fluctuations. Consequently, such price
differences had led to a decline in external sales revenue for the
Group's fluoropolymers segment as well as the dichloromethane
and liquid alkali segment. Nevertheless, the refrigerants segment
and organic silicon segment experienced an increase in external
sales revenue. After all, all major product segments achieved various
degrees of performance growth.

Fluoropolymers

During the period under review, the external sales of fluoropolymers
segment were approximately RMB3,824,967,000, down 15.98%
compared with the same period of the previous year (2023:
RMB4,552,407,000), accounting for 26.97% (2023: 31.41%) of the
Group's total external sales. The segment results recorded a profit of
RMB508,088,000, up 50.87% compared with RMB336,766,000 in
the same period of the previous year.

During the period under review, resulting from excessive capacity in
the major product market of the segment and intense competitions in
the industry, product prices declined as compared with that of 2023,
and the external sales revenue of the segment decreased accordingly.
Nevertheless, thank to the industry-leading product quality and
technology, the Group maintained relatively high product selling
prices with low costs in the market, thereby achieving a significant
increase in the segment results.



BEBNWEDN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRSOl ()
SEBSFME ()

N E= [ R HB A EBIR HE R22 A EE TFE (— R &L A
W) REEFBTFEAERES S FHEER -
WPTFE(—EmEHENAEEE B4 - M Et
EftE2RNAEKRERATE D T BIEZEDR
LAalgE—FNTHRSmHEMALEER LA EZ
JEAMMEE - ZE BREABTRABETIE)R
HFP(—EEZMEHRETHEE  TAFLEES
BRI ER) - N REBELRE DI 5
RHR22ERI42bIEABEEZE TSRS D T
b2 R (BIEFEP (PTFECR R KL - LAHFPIE
ATFEMAEE  TZARBRERBEE B
EAREMEEET KR HEPMRKE) KM (&
BB —BEMAELYE EREEEEEES T
AR A TR - T BB L R AV - £
ZHMMR A8 - #ES R AHEE) - PYDF (A
R142b4 EVDF - BIEVDFE S B & fit 0 =
ZARARZEHE RN RBESIEREE
BIRFHEYE) MVDF) MRE - EEMASEHRE
AEFIER EtE/EMm S RaskEE W
NE—EEBLEHRG -

RSH

RALBEHRA RLBSEHEINEERBARE
3,247,702,0007T * 8 & F AR #2,871,580,000
TLIEAN13.10% - (GRS BB EINMEE#22.90%
(2023F £19.81% ) M@Z P HBEBERABFA
R #806,356,00070 BEE=FRPAF AR
310,574,000 7L # & 159.63% °

AEEMA - HLBD BRI EERRTE - &
DEMEBERBENEER  ERhERERKAREN
EEan /3R22 e R32 - BEZ D B HMH B AR
Ko MERANERAL N +0BE  EHZD
ERBEARIRE -

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Fluoropolymers (Continued)

The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production
of polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with
high level of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation,
aging and chemical resistant that is used as a coating material and
can also be further processed into high-end fine chemicals, which
can be widely applied in chemicals, construction, electrical and
electronics and automotive industries) and HFP (an important organic
fluorochemical monomer, which can be used to produce various
fine chemicals). Furthermore, the refrigerants segment of the Group
supplied R22 and R142b as the raw materials for the production
of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals including
FEP (modified materials of PTFE, produced with HFP added in TFE,
mainly used in the lining for wire insulation layer, thin-walled tube,
heat shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM (fluorine
rubber, a specialized fluorinated material, which is mainly used in
the fields of aerospace, automotive, machinery and petro-chemistry
due to its superior mechanical property, excellent oil, chemical and
heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made through aggregation of
VDF produced with R142b, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin,
fluorinated powder coating resin and lithium battery electrode binding
material) and VDF, in which Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging.
Other fluorinated fine chemicals formed another major production
category of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Refrigerants

During the period under review, the refrigerants segment’s external
sales increased by 13.10% from RMB2,871,580,000 in the previous
year to RMB3,247,702,000, accounting for 22.90% (2023: 19.81%)
of the Group’s total external sales. The segment recorded a profit of
RMB806,356,000, up 159.63% compared with RMB310,574,000 in
the same period of the previous year.

During the period under review, affected by the quota policy, certain
products under the refrigerants segment recorded a significant price
increase, of which R22 and R32 experienced the most noticeable price
hikes, resulting on a growth for the segment’s external sales revenue.
In addition, their costs did not record substantial increases, so the
segment results reported a remarkable year-on-year growth.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 11
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Refrigerants (Continued)

The Group has the largest production capacity of R22 in the world.
Being the Group’s backbone refrigerant products, R22 is an important
refrigerant among all kinds. Besides, R22 has been one of the key raw
materials for the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and
other downstream fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32 are
the key refrigerant mixture for other types of green refrigerants (such
as R410a) to replace R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal
replacing refrigerant which has been widely applied in inverter air
conditioners and other green home appliances. R134a is broadly used
in the coolant and air-conditioning systems in automobiles, while
R152a is another key refrigerant product of the Group which can also
be used as blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning agents. Apart from
the fact that R142b can be used as refrigerant, temperature controller
medium, and intermediates of aviation propellant, it can also be one
of the main raw materials for the production of VDF.

Organic Silicon

During the year, external sales of the organic silicon segment
increased by 7.20% to RMB5,212,703,000 from RMB4,862,426,000
in the previous year, accounting for 36.76% (2023: 33.55%)
of the Group’s total external sales. The segment recorded a
profit of RMB101,668,000, marking a turnaround from a loss of
RMB330,512,000 in 2023.

During the period under review, although the price of organic silicon
products decreased, a substantial increase in sales volume led to
a slight increase in external sales revenue. However, despite the
complex and ever-changing international circumstances, coupled with
the pressure driven from industry involution, the segment persisted
to seek improvement in stability by increasing production capacity,
expanding market and strengthening costs and expenses control.
Such strategies led to a decline in production costs and hence an
increase in gross profit margin, which helped the segment results
to record significant year-on-year increase, and to achieve a profit
turnaround from a loss.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Organic Silicon (Continued)

This segment mainly included the production and sales of DMC
(upstream organic silicon intermediates that are used as raw materials
to produce deep processed mid-stream and downstream silicon
products, such as silicon oils, silicon rubber and silicon resins), 107
Silicon Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively
referred to as “Silicon Rubbers”, deep processed organic silicon
rubber products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a key material for
producing Gross Rubber), and other by-products and other high-
end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicon Qils.
Named as “Industrial MSG”, organic silicon is widely applied in
aviation, automotive, electronic, construction and other industries,
mainly in the form of additives, treatment chemicals stabilisers,
lubricants and sealants and is a key ingredient in industrial processes.
The Group initially produces silicon monomers with silicon powder
and chloromethane and further processes them to become silicon
intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the Group
produces for Silicon Rubbers and other organic silicon products. The
Group can also produce and generate other byproducts and high-end
downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicon Oils through
its production processes.

Dichloromethane and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s external sales decreased
by 6.16% to RMB1,104,337,000 from RMB1,176,824,000 in the
previous year, accounting for 7.79% (2023: 8.12%) of the Group’s
total external sales. The segment results recorded a profit of
RMB372,161,000 (2023: profit of RMB248,359,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of 49.85%. The products of this segment
consist of chemical commodities, which are greatly affected by the
changes in operating environment. During the period under review,
the results growth of the segment was due to stable product demand
of the segment and reduction in raw material costs.

This segment included two major auxiliary products (dichloromethane
and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants Segment of the Group. Liquid
alkali is a basic chemical product from the production of methane
chloride (essential chemical for the production of refrigerants and
organic silicon products), and used in the textile, power and materials
industries. Methane chloride includes dichloromethane, which is
mainly used to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for
polyurethane.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 13



BEBNWEDN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRSOl ()
Hit

REBEBHR ZoHAHINEERBARE
791,378,000 7L * 8 A& 4 A K #1,030,086,000
T AP23.17% - Z D HEEHRBEHEBARE
368,749,000 7t * [RAIELIR 4> 531.50% (2023 F & 7|
A ANER#85,458,0007T) °

DB REERHEARESLE N BEME
Em WALIE TEAK REF ULEH
EXKE ELXORa - AEEB201FEF R
FHERFIAR  REZEEFZ DR - [
BHAZSBNEBEE FEXEHEXRTREY
R -

DHERHERX

REBFEAN DEMBEERIBEEFOA
R #503,038,000 L/ 4 13.09% & AR ¥
437,188,000 > D R ER AL BAE
B O EEHANE S TP ©

ITHRX

REBEFERN TBHRAXBEFHNAR
¥ 647,286,000 L1 M13.53% =2 AR
734,857,0007C - (T A IMNEZEREEFTIR
BB B IFTE -

& R A
REEFEAN MEKNTBEEFMHNARE
1,659,000 7R 4> 18.20% &= A R #1,357,000 7T °

It Ty E B BN ERD
BAl ARBEYEREE -

14 HE£EERAR —S-NEEH

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Others

During the period under review, the external sales of the segment
was RMB791,378,000, down 23.17% as compared with
RMB1,030,086,000 in the previous year. The segment results recorded
a loss of RMB368,749,000 (2023: a profit of RMB85,458,000),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 531.50%.

This segment included the revenue from the production and sales
of other by-products of the Group’s operating segments, such as
Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid and Bromine, and real estate
business, etc.. The Group has remained cautious with its real estate
business since the engagement in 2011. The segment loss incurred
during the period under review was mainly due to the disposal impact
of the real estate businesses.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
decreased by 13.09% to RMB437,188,000 from RMB503,038,000
of the previous year. The decrease in distribution and selling expenses
was driven by the reduction in transportation and miscellaneous costs
of the Group during the period under review.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses increased
by 13.53% to RMB734,857,000 from RMB647,286,000 of the
previous year. The increase in administrative expenses was due to the
increase in provision for the impairment of assets.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs decreased by 18.20%
to RMB1,357,000 from RMB1,659,000 of last year, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the interests on lease liabilities by some
subsidiaries. As of to date, the Group had no borrowings.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s aggregate
capital expenditure was approximately RMB1,800,565,000 (2023:
RMB1,918,256,000). The Group’s capital expenditure is mainly
allocated for the renovation of the existing production lines and
construction of the ancillary facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position remains steady with healthy
working capital management and strong operating cash flow.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total equity amounted to
RMB17,471,837,000, up 3.15% as compared with that as at 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank balances
and cash came in at RMB2,470,496,000 (2023: RMB2,547,297,000).
During the year under review, the Group generated a total of
RMB2,071,697,000 (2023: RMB1,375,950,000) net cash inflow from
its operating activities. The current ratio(1) of the Group as at 31
December 2024 was 2.31 (31 December 2023: 1.68).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available
bank balances and cash, the unused banking credit facilities, bank’s
support and sufficient operating cash flows, the management is
confident that the Group has adequate resources to settle any debts
and to finance its daily operating and capital expenditures.

Capital Structure

During the period, except as disclosed in the sections headed
“"Employee Option Scheme” and “Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Securities” in this report, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company'’s listed securities. The number of issued shares of the
Company was 1,732,711,637 as at 31 December 2024.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Capital Structure (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no borrowing balance
(2023: no borrowing balance). The gearing ratio(2) of the Group
was -14.14% (2023: -15.04%). The negative gearing ratio as at 31
December 2024 represented the Group’s “net cash” positive position
(i.e. has more cash & equivalents than its debt), which is generally
viewed as a positive signal.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets < Current Liabilities
(2) Gearing Ratio = Net Debt =+ Total Equity

Net Debt = Total Borrowings — Bank Balances and Cash

Group Structure

During the period under review, the Company has completed the
transactions of off-market share buy-back of 520,977,818 shares and
the disposal of equity interests of the Group’s entities on 5 March
2024. Further details of the transactions are set out in the section
headed "Off-market Share Buy-back and Disposal and Major and
Connected Transaction” in the 2023 annual report of the Company.

Other than disclosed above, the Group recorded no material changes
in the Group’s structure.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's bank deposits of
RMB88,745,000 (2023: RMB143,859,000) were used as the security
deposit for bills payable and the regulated security deposit from
presale of properties. According to the requirements of the PRC
property industry, the property companies are required to place
regulated security deposit in their escrow account which cannot be
used until the completion of both the construction and the residential
mortgage loan applications for the customers. As at 31 December
2024, the relevant bank deposits for regulated security deposit from
presale of properties were RMB471,000 (2023: RMB68,134,000).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group's functional currency is RMB, and most transactions
are settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United
States dollars) are received/paid when the Group earns revenue
from overseas customers, and settles purchases of machinery and
equipment to overseas suppliers.

To reduce the holding risk of foreign currencies, the Group normally
converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon payment receipt after
taking into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the
near future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group recorded 6,922 employees in total, including 6,032
males and 890 female as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 6,977). The
Group implemented its remuneration policy and bonus based on
the performance of the Group and its employees. The Group also
provided benefits such as social insurance and pensions to ensure
market competitiveness on remuneration.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible
for the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and
has the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the
members of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 65, was appointed as the chairman,
chief executive officer and executive director of the Company in July
2006. He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “"Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over
38 years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the director
of Dongyue Refrigerants, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue F&sS, all
being the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
Vice President of the China Institute of Private Sector, Vice President
of the China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material
Industry, Vice Chairman of the 11th China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, Vice Chairman of the 12th China Civil Chamber of
Commerce, Member of the Standing Committee of the 11th and
12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shandong
Province, Vice Chairman of the 12th and 13th Federation of Industry
and Commerce of Shandong Province and a representative of the
10th Party Congress of Shandong Province. Mr. Zhang has obtained
the honorary titles of National Outstanding Builder of Socialism
in the Non-Public Economy (Fourth Session), “100 outstanding
private entrepreneurs during the 40 years of reform and opening
up”, Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry
(First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in the
International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine
“Capital CEQ" (" BEARA & ").
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Directors (Continued)
Executive directors (Continued)

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 61, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Wang has worked for
the Group since September 1996 and is responsible for technology
R&D and corporate management matters. During the period,
he chaired the overall preparation works for incorporation of
fluorosilicone companies as well as organic silicon companies. He then
acted as the general manager of Dongyue Fluorosilicone, Dongyue
Organosilicon and other companies. Mr. Wang is also the chairman of
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed
on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He has over 30
years’ experience for manufacture and management in the chemical
industry. He is currently the president of the Group and the director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang also received various
awards such as the nationwide outstanding chemical engineering
(2RI TESFEH TIEE) from Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation (A M fl{L T T 2 1# € ), Outstanding Contribution
Entrepreneurs (£ ! & Bt & ¥ K) and Shandong Outstanding
Entrepreneurs (LR E EBHE R ER).

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 50, was appointed as the executive
director, vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in
May 2017. Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from
2006 to 2007. He has served as the financial controller and general
manager of MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. ((f EMBEEXER 2 7))
from February 2008 to February 2016. Mr. Zhang is also the director
of Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company
listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Zhang
graduated in the Hunan University in 2003. He is also a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a registered
tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience
in accounting and finance.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive directors (Continued)

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 43, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company in March 2024. Ms. Chung is also the
company secretary of the Company. She joined the Group as the
Company secretary since March 2015. Ms. Chung is primarily
responsible for overseeing and managing regulatory compliance
matters of the Company. Ms. Chung is a director of Hong Kong
Tai Li International Trading Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Chung has over 20 years of work
experience in accounting, corporate finance, compliance, and
strategic investment. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Chung had
worked in the audit division and financial advisory services (M&A
Transactions) of Deloitte. Ms. Chung had also worked in the merger
and acquisition team of Hong Kong Li & Fung Group and the strategic
investment team of a company then listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of
business administration, majoring in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws
from the University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD, aged 71, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting
is an accountant by profession and has over 40 years of experience in
Accounting, Auditing and Management. Mr. Ting is currently a non-
executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
and an independent non-executive director of four companies listed
on the HKSE, namely Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad
Culturaltainment Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited. In addition, Mr. Ting
ceased to be an independent non-executive director in Tong Ren Tang
Technologies Company Limited listed on HKSE effective from 12 June
2024.

Mr. MA Zhizhong, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Ma has over
30 years of teaching experience. Since July 1998, Mr. Ma has been
working at Zibo University and Shandong University of Technology as
the head of the legal office and he was appointed as a professor of
the law school of Shandong University of Technology in January 2018.
Mr. Ma is also a qualified PRC lawyer since September 1992. Mr. Ma
holds a bachelor’s degree in politics from Qufu Normal University and
a master of laws from Shandong University.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang
has over 30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicon
industries. Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar Chengrand Research
Institute of Chemical Industry as chief engineer and director of
National Organic Silicon Engineering and Technological Research
Centre and National Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision and
Inspection Centre, and the chief secretary of the Organic Silicon
Professional Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicon
Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is currently the honorary president
and the chief engineer of the Expert Committee of China Association
of Fluorine and Silicon Industry. In addition, Mr. Yang is currently
an independent director of Henan Hengxing Science & Technology
Co. Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and an
independent director of Hubei Jianghan New Materials Co., Ltd.
ORI T MM B D BBR 2 7).
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Senior management

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 57, obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University. He is currently studying MBA at
Fudan University and the title of senior political scientist of professor
level. He has worked for the Group since March 2002 until now,
currently serves as the deputy president of the Group. He excels in
management, innovation and corporate culture development, and
has promoted the management reform of the Company under the
support and guidance of the Group’s management. He is the author
of Management Revolution ({ &2 #) £ 7)), etc.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
138 to 139.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2024 (six months ended 30 June
2023: Nil).

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10
(the “Final Dividend"”) (2023: HK$0.10) per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2024, to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company (the “Register”)
on 16 June 2025, subject to the approval of the members of the
Company at the Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM").
The Final Dividend is after excluding the applicable PRC income tax.

The dividend policy adopted by the Board is intended for the Company
to maintain adequate cash reserves to meet its operational and capital
requirements, fund its future growth and enhance shareholder value
if and when dividends are recommended subject to applicable laws,
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the Company.
According to the dividend policy, the declaration of any dividends
will depend on the following factors, including actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the distributable reserves of the
Group, the working capital and capital expenditure requirements of
the Group, the liquidity position of the Group, the overall economic
situation, and any other factors that the Board considers relevant. The
Board has considered the relevant factors when recommending the
final dividends for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Results and appropriations (Continued)

The dividend policy shall not constitute a legal binding commitment
of the Company to pay dividends in any amount or ratio. The Board
will review this policy from time to time, and may at anytime change
this policy at its sole discretion as it deems appropriate and necessary.

The AGM of the Company will be held on 5 June 2025. A notice of
the AGM will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company in due course.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 2 June 2025 to 5 June 2025, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on 30 May 2025.

The Register will be closed from 12 June 2025 to 16 June 2025,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend,
all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m.on 11 June 2025.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on pages 142 to 143.
Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted
to RMB303,799,000 of which HK$173,271,164 (approximately
equivalent to RMB160,456,029) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

Other than (i) as disclosed under the sections headed “Employee
Option Scheme” in this report and (i) off-market share buy-back of
520,977,818 shares at approximately $7.1 per share on 23 October
2023 and its completion took place on 5 March 2024 (details of the
share buy-back transaction are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 30 November 2023 and the announcement of the Company
dated 5 March 2024), neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Employee Option Scheme

The Company adopted an employee option scheme (the “Employee
Option Scheme”) which shall be valid and effective for a term of
ten (10) years expiring on 26 December 2028. The purposes of the
Employee Option Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions by
certain employees or consultants of the Group and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.
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Employee Option Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, the trustee will purchase
existing Shares from the market out of cash contributed by the Group
of not more than HK$1,300,000,000 in total at all material times and
hold such Shares on trust for the relevant employees or consultants
of the Group selected by the Board (the “Selected Employees”). The
Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion grant to any
Selected Employee the right to purchase the relevant Shares (the
“Option”). The Selected Employee may, when exercising the Option,
elect the number of Shares which he wishes to (i) be transferred and/
or (i) sell and receive the difference, if any, between the sale price of
the Shares and the exercise price of the Option.

On 27 September 2024, in the interest of reconstructing the
remuneration policies of the Group and in order to allow full
play of effective incentives for the employees and consultants of
the Group, the Employee Option Scheme was early terminated
(the "Termination”) with effect from 27 September 2024 (the
“Termination Date"”). As there is no outstanding option under the
Employee Option Scheme, the Termination will not affect the rights
of any selected participants in a material and adverse manner. Upon
Termination, no further options may be granted under the Scheme.
All existing Shares held by the Trustee under the Scheme shall be
gradually sold on the stock market over a period of time following the
Termination Date and the proceeds of sale shall be remitted to the
Company after the sale.

76,707,000 Shares at the cost of HK$723,409,000 are still held by the
Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme as at 31 December 2024.
No Options have been granted under the Employee Option Scheme
during the reporting period.

Under the Employee Option Scheme, up to 31 December 2024, the
Company have contributed HK$990,582,879.87 in total to purchase
Shares from the market since the set up of the scheme.

The Employee Option Scheme is not a share option scheme and is not
subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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EEERETE ®) Employee Option Scheme (Continued)

EHEBERETENE —FSFHBHIMNALD  Further details of the Employee Option Scheme are set out in the
RIHEIA20184 12 A27H - 202343 A28H K Company announcement dated 27 December 2018, 28 March 2023
20249 A27 BRI R4%E - and 27 September 2024.

BRiE— ﬂ“?ﬁ*&ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬂﬁ‘fﬁﬁ S X IE Allocation of the Net Proceeds from Placing of

REND New Shares under the General Mandate
HEWUE HE2014E
12A31AE8A 12A31BXBA ABAMBTHEFHE
Jife3 8 FENEFE  FSREREHE BRANKER
Amount of net Balance of net  Intended timetable
proceeds utilized  proceeds unutilized for use of the
as of 31 December  as of 31 December unutilized net
Usage Amount 2024 2024 proceeds
THL T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() REAKEPVDF(—EMEY  MIM ERtEER 2,000,000 1,895,759,903.72 104,240,096.28 202512 A318

MRARMIRE 2R BEBHEE  ARERENZS
BATFHE) RERME (BIR1420/2 B1E)) 62 8¢
Enhancing the Group’s production capacity of PVDF (a type of 31 December 2025
fluoropolymer that is climate resistant and highly machinable
with excellent mechanical properties, which can be used as
weather-resistant coating materials, adhesives for lithium
batteries and photovoltaic backplanes) and its raw material

(being R142b coolant)
(b) EEAEEPFE(—E ﬁ)%‘ﬁﬁ;ﬁ*‘% RBE - TELR 800,000 655,519,838.27 144,480,161.73 200512 4318
MEERNAKEENEAT) RERMH (B1R22 5 41H)
MER
Enhancing the Group’s production capacity of PTFE (a synthetic 31 December 2025

fluoropolymer with high level of resistance to temperature
changes, electrical insulation, and aging and chemical
resistant) and its raw material (being R22 coolant)

(0 ARAREN-R2EE: 510,000 510,000 0 -
Replenishing the general working capital of the Group
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Wang Weidong (President)
Mr. Zhang Jian (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Ms. Chung Tak Lai (Company Secretary)

(appointed on 27 March 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Ma Zhizhong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Zhefeng, Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Ma Zhizhong will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance, to which
the Company, its fellow subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than (i) as disclosed in the sections headed “Employee
Option Scheme” in the report and (ii) off-market share buy-back of
520,977,818 shares at approximately $7.1 per share on 23 October
2023 and its completion took place on 5 March 2024 (details of the
share buy-back transaction are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 30 November 2023 and the announcement of the Company
dated 5 March 2024), at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire benefit by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 22.
Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 38 to 56.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 57 to 133.
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RERELE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

s e s
EniEnm

Beneficial interest

SR KA
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng
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Nature of interest

Disclosure of interests

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

% 173 SR AE B AR 17 2L B
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HERTREAT DL
% of issued
share capital

7,147,636 (L) 0.41 (L)
750,000 (L) 0.04 (L)
188,000 0.01 (L)

Note:

(@) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
then Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE.
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b) TERRREMALTRARS  HBERMHK (b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
BEEINEZRKE and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and

debentures

MR2024F12A31H  RARTEERE As at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to the Directors
ZITBABMA  THALT QEIERQFIA and the chief executive of the Company, the following persons
EEHFETHAL)RARRBARM SAE (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
B R B BN IRIB R 5 K EE & interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
EBBRETHFENECLMALRIBEES of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
LEIEGAIEXVEE2RE3ID G A kept under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be
MARRRENERIXE disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BRRER R EEMtE RO[EEARGEE (LHERTREBDL
Number of shares % of issued

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest or underlying Shares share capital

SRI RER 258,948,451 (L) 14.94 (1)

Zhang Ke Corporate Interest!

Dongyue Team Limited B 258,948,451 (L) 14.94 (L)

Beneficial Interest’

S EETEEBRAF REKE 119,538,000 (L) 6.90 (L)
E Fund Management Co., Ltd.  Investment Manager

B 5 Notes:

1. BREZFAFRBEGRD BRRFAELERFH 1. Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Ke holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Dongyue Team Limited #) 100% ##% % + 9 ¥ Team Limited, Mr. Zhang Ke is deemed to be interested in the
% £ % 18 B A Dongyue Team Limited ¥ A &9 258,948,451 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Team Limited. Mr. Zhang Ke is
258,948,451 R D ()R B #Ew - RIE AR the son of Mr. Zhang Jianhong, the Chairman and Chief Executive Office
RAREFBRITHBERBBEEEZTF - of the Company.

2. L: R 2. L: Long Position
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Disclosure of interests (Continued)

() Interests in other members of the Group as at 31

TR R December 2024
L E B E QR
BERTRE
ARAEMEAREE ZHEATRNETERRERE EEME EMEARBFDL
% of issued share
capital/registered
Name of the Name of substantial shareholder capital of

Company'’s subsidiary of such subsidiary

AEERECERICTHERAF TR REFEBRRAR AR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chifeng Zhongxing Information
Chemicals Co., Ltd. Technology Co., Ltd.

TREEFRBEARANA
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd.

TR REFEBREAR AR
Chifeng Zhongxing Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

IR R MR AR A A
Shandong Times New Material
Technology Co.,Ltd.

B A MERRERAR
Jinan Shicheng Silicone
Technology Co.,Ltd.

WRRESD FHEBRAF
(BRAER)
Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.

Fund (L.P.)

HIBEEPREREAR QA HMIBEEEXREARAT
Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise Management Zibo Qixin Industrial Investment
Limited Company Co. Ltd*

B EXRBEEN  AARBEERTETHA

SREEFERT AV HES

Jinshi Manufacturing Transformation
and Upgrading New Materials

Nature of interest

NG
Corporate

NG
Corporate

NG
Corporate

BERABEE

Limited Partnership

NG
Corporate

such subsidiary

49

20

35

11.45%

49%

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and

BFRTAI A2024F 12 A318  IETMEMA
T (WIARANESFSHEEZITHAER) RARQ
AR D S ABRARR D P B IR IR E 5 R B E KI5
XVEEE 2 K %30 B AR A A 7 3 5 A E (A
AR KEESRMEREN AR A EE
B TR AEEEMEMKEAGIRRAE L
S E R EE R IR A TEE 10% S bA 4 RS o

SRABREMREEIN  REAREERAREEH
7RI ) 3l A AR EL PR B 2 ) B4 i BSCR s AR AAT LB
BARRBMELMERSGL -
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the chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2024, no
other person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company) had any interest or a short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group.

Saved as disclose in this report, there was no other contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year and
up to the date of this report.
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Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the Directors of
the Company was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 7.85%
— five largest suppliers combined 20.60%
Sales
— the largest customer 2.23%
— five largest customers combined 7.11%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has not entered
into any connected transaction that is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 and 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”).
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Continuing Connected transaction

Details of the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 not falling under
Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

04 FHEERERS FELR 2024 FEREH
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2024 Annual Cap 2024 Actual
(AR¥BET) (AR¥EBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
BRESEETRVHRERER Sale and purchase of raw materials and product 345 93
RERERS (1) and provision of ancillary services with (HEFELR)
Dongyue Hydrogen (Note 1) (Sale annual cap)
203 84
(BEFELR)
(Purchase annual cap)
MERZEREEMBARAA Amended financial services master agreement for 320 (F¥3E2)
REFTRSRERRENEE] provision of deposit services and loan services by (REBHA (Note 2)
eREBEHE Marco-link Holding Group Finance Company Limited 202245 A 12 B#)

(TRETERRS L ik ) (HEE2)

BEET: R2023F 128298 AR AIHEEEZ2EWEB AR R
EREMBEEERAR ((RERERE]  AE
R RAKRHEWBAR  BILRRERLEEMB
BipARAR (TRERAE]) T T CRM B RRF
BEEERBGE) Bt RESRENBERENEAR
BREOAREREMERERMEREERY (H
FHREE LR B ARE171,250,0000T) - HE
EEMEE A Ri)AREEERERERMA
MERREERY (BEHANBEE EROAARE
98,100,0007T) - HAEBMEEMBE Y H  Ha A
WMEAZE 2024 6 A30 A It -

MR2024F 7828  REAERFEREERER
UCEBRMBERBRBEEZSERBZD EHRAE
EREENLEERZXSHLZH  A2024F7A1HREE
2024F 12 A3V HER BEBAEE ERAOAA
R ¥ 173,400,000 BEHANEE ERHAARE
104,900,000 7T °

AXRPHEFE LREABEFE LRA LRRER
AHELRZAM -
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(the "Amended FS Master Agreement”) (Note 2)

BRETERREEHE)
(under the Amended FS
Master Agreement

12 May 2022)

Note 1: On 29 December 2023, Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and Technology
Group Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology”, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries, and
Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue
Hydrogen”) entered into the Raw Materials and Services Sale and Purchase
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology
and its subsidiaries have agreed to (i) supply the Dongyue Raw Materials and
Ancillary Services to Dongyue Hydrogen (with a sales cap of approximately
RMB171,250,000 during the term of the agreement) for its production and
operations and (ii) purchase the Hydrogen Raw Materials and Products and
Ancillary Services from Dongyue Hydrogen (with a purchase cap of approximately
RMB98,100,000 during the term of the agreement) for the Group’s production
and operations for a term up to 30 June 2024.

On 2 July 2024, Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology and Dongyue Hydrogen
entered into the Renewed Raw Materials and Services S&P Framework
Agreement Il which was agreed that the supply and purchase transaction
arrangement was extended for a term commencing from 1 July 2024
and expiring on 31 December 2024, with a sales cap of approximately
RMB173,400,000 during the term of the agreement and a purchase cap of
approximately RMB 104,900,000 during the term of the agreement.

The annual sales cap and annual purchase cap in this table are the sum of the
caps agreed in the above two agreements.
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Continuing Connected transaction (Continued)

Note 1: (Continued)
Dongyue Hydrogen is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
entering into of the Raw Materials and Services Sales and Purchase Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the transactions are set out in the announcement dated 29 December
2023 and 2 July 2024.

Note 2: On 12 May 2022, the Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue
Polymers”, an indirect subsidiary of the Company) and the Macro-link
Holding Group Finance Company Limited (“Macro-link Finance”) entered
into the Amended FS Master Agreement, pursuant to which the term of the
agreement was extended to expire on 21 July 2024 , with the annual cap of
RMB320,000,000. The outstanding balance under the Amended FS Master
Agreement is secured by, including but not limited to approximately 11.91%
equity interest in Hunan Hualian Porcelain Industry Co., Ltd. (j# &9 & 5 & %
B B BR A &), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 001216.57) that is principally engaged in the research, development,
manufacturing and sales of ceramic products.

On 28 March 2024, Dongyue Polymers issued a notice to Macro-link Finance
to withdraw the outstanding balance of deposits placed and maintained by
Dongyue Polymers with Macro-link Finance (including interest accrued thereon)
of an aggregate of approximately RMB318.9 million (the “Outstanding
Amount”). Following such withdrawal, Dongyue Polymers no longer intends
to place deposits with Macro-link Finance. Dongyue Polymers has not received
the Outstanding Amount within the prescribed deadline. As a result, on 1
April 2024, the legal advisors of Dongyue Polymers as to the laws of the PRC
submitted a statement of claim to the applicable court in the PRC against Macro-
link Finance demanding immediate repayment of the Outstanding Amount.
As of the date of this report, the legal proceedings to claim the Outstanding
Amount from Macro-link Finance is still in process.

Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which is indirectly controlled
by Mr. Fu Kwan (an ex-executive Director) which was resigned on 27 March
2024. Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12 May 2022 and 2 April 2024.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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Continuing Connected transaction (Continued)

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company and the auditor has
confirmed the requirements set out in rule 14A.56 in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.

Related party transactions

The details of the related party transaction during the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in the note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 33(a) and 33(c) to the
consolidated financial statements are also the connected transactions
(including the continuing connected transactions) in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules which have been complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Further details of the connected transactions (including the continuing
connected transactions) are set out in the section “Connected
transactions” of this report.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float of the
issued shares of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s
securities.
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Permitted indemnity provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided
that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 27 March 2025
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited
(the "Company"”) recognizes their mission of creating values and
maximizing returns to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), while at the same time fulfilling their corporate
responsibilities. To this end, we strive to promote and uphold the
highest standard of corporate governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
(the “Code”) during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer, the details of which have been
disclosed in the relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board’s Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance
of expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of
the business of the Group.
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The Board (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this report, except that (i) Ms. Chung Tak Lai was appointed as an
executive director on 27 March 2024; and (i) Mr. Fu Kwan and Mr.
Zhang Jian has resigned as an executive director on 27 March 2024,
there was no change in the structure of the Board, which currently
comprises seven Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Weidong (President)

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Ms. Chung Tak Lai (Company Secretary)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. Ma Zhizhong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 18 to
22 of this annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant
to Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE (the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that all the
INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, capital, employee option scheme and remuneration. During
the year under review, four Board meetings and an annual general
meeting ("AGM") were held. The attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings and the AGM is set out as follows. In addition, certain
matters relating to entering of the continuing connected transaction,
termination of the employee option scheme and inside information
were dealt with by written resolutions of the directors.
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The Board (Continued)

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, an AGM and an EGM is set out as follows:

HE BT
BEEged HERR
RE BFEARE

Number of

Board

meetings
attended/  Attendance
held of the AGM

BITESE: EDs:

RERTAE Mr. Zhang lJianhong 4/4 v/
EELAE (5220243 27 HEHE)  Mr. Fu Kwan (resigned on 27 March 2024) 1/4 X
FHREAE Mr. Wang Weidong 4/4 v/
REELA Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 4/4 v/
KRB E (202453 827 BHEHE)  Mr. Zhang Jian (resigned on 27 March 2024) 1/4 X
EEBELt Ms. Chung Tak Lai 4/4 v/
BYFHTES: INEDs:

TRESAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 4/4 v/
HEEB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 4/4 v/
BEREE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 4/4 v

HE2024F 128318 LFE EFESEECE
HEESRAEBELRE  TERTPHELE -
ERERE REREK CEER BAXN BK-
BE - EEBRENE LT B2 84AE
ErHREBEER RN ESCEENSEEE
AEBE 4N R2024F12 A58 FFEHES
RBVIINTEZERNH  RAEEEBRE
PABEREERBRER  WEEMHITESH
}ﬁ o
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has dealt
with matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual
and interim results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate
governance, capital, financial, investment, employee option scheme
and remuneration. The Board has delegated the day-to-day operations
of the Group to the senior management under the supervision of
the Board. In addition, on 5 December 2024, the Chairman held the
discussion with all the INEDs without the presence of other EDs to
exchange views on matters concerning the business development and
internal control of the Group.
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The Board (Continued)

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. During the year, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house training on the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ continuous professional development
(Continued)

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training on continuous professional
development during the year under review:

EEZWEEEREN
EE - RAIKR
ERNEHER
Received training on
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

BiITESE: EDs:

SRR TAE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
FHREAE Mr. Wang Weidong v
REELA Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v/
EEELT Ms. Chung Tak Lai v/
BUFHTES: INEDs:

TRELAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v
BB EA Mr. Ma Zhizhong v/
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Directors’ responsibilities in corporate
governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among
others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company’s compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.



TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

EENEERER

HEFHZELREMHABEHEESRZIRTARARE
#EBERE RAEZBSHEBEFER(BEAR
RABENREREFNRE) MESSREMHES -
EReRs BHEFEAGARAEBENERA
#oURARTHEHER  BERAHKHESEAR
NEHPREIZFF ©

ARBEFTERAEEIT ARG ELH  BAR
BARRERARNBELERET-

REALRMMERAR ((ERA[]) - BF=
NZ—EE HANEFTABUIF=2FH MK
ERETIR=02 — AR ERERRBFAKA
ERBERMAGXHERE Bt 2RE=R
HAKBERAMNERAEFKEHRERILE
BEME -

TEEATRARNAE

STRIE B B C2UERE - THEETHRAE
WAERERY  BAEHRF—ARE - REZR
TEBMBRARAERFATRER -BEFER
A A— ARRFRETRERITRAH TS AEE
FRHEMRERE  AEXBRE LEAMEK-
o EFERA EHZEREREEAASH
MALTHAERESTSRYEZET  HRBTEY
ERNFH -BEFQHREERBEL  XRE
BRZHHAEENXBAS RSB -

RESEEEMMERZ T
STRIMTER+HIARE EF R TEN 2024412
A3MHERMRZ k- EF2EInrd —
FZLES DEHEFEHINZ L -

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the Director(s) is expected to have
expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and
to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of
the Company.

Directors of the Company did not entered into service contracts with
the Group but subject to rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Company'’s articles association.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same position provides the Group with stronger and
more consistent leadership and allows for more effective planning.
Further, the Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power, which has been closely monitored by the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The
Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that the current
arrangement is beneficial to the business prospect of the Group.

Gender diversity at board level

Appendix 14J of the Code stipulates that the board should achieve
gender diversity no later than 31 December 2024. The Board has
achieved achieve the board gender diversity by appointment at least
one female director on the board.
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Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has
its specific written terms of reference, which have been available on
the Company’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs
(except the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee). To further enhance independence, all the committees
(except the Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of
INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee to
consider the remuneration for Directors and senior management of
the Company. The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Yang
Xiaoyong (Chairman) and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen who are
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang Jianhong who is
an executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held.

During the year, the attendance of each member is set out as follow:

ERLE EBITER
Number of
meetings
attended/held

ZEgHKE - Committee member:
BEBRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v
TRESA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v
REREA Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
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Remuneration bands (HKD)

3,500,001 to 4,000,000
9,000,001 to 10,000,000

Remuneration committee (Continued)

During the meetings the remuneration of the EDs and the Group’s
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2024
were approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the
remuneration for the Directors, the Group’s senior management and
the Group’s remuneration related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management (who
are not the directors of the Company) by band for the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out below:

AB

Number of persons

20234
2023

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.

Audit committee

The audit committee of the Company was established on 16
November 2007 in accordance with the Listing Rules. The existing
audit committee comprises Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman),
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ma Zhizhong, all being independent non-
executive Directors.

The audit committee met with the management on 24 March 2025,
to review the accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group and to discuss matters regarding internal control and financial
reporting including the review of the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2024 before proposing them to the Board
for approval.
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Audit committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2024 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

HE BT
ZEEERRY
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

ZEgKE - Committee member:
TRENRAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
BB B LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 3/3
BB A Mr. Ma Zhizhong 3/3
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management
of the Group also attended these meetings.

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2024, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set
out as follows:

o perform pre-audit meetings in respect of the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024;

. discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the
annual/interim reports, accounts and the related results
announcements, before recommending them to the Board for
approval;

o approve the change of auditor;

o approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2023; and

o review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.
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Audit committee (Continued)

On 5 December 2024, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2024. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with
management on 24 March 2025 to review the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding
internal control and financial reporting including the review of the
Group's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024 before
proposing to the Board for approval.

Nomination committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
were appointed as the members of the nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2024 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

ERLHERR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEXE - Committee member:

RERTA Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
TRERA: Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
BBREBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v

L ZBEKEBNW T EFENEKBERER
Yot AEFSFLEREZARZE  SEF
EREZTC RBMEE RERBFAEL
EREFUNEFSERZXBRERMNAAE
BERELERE AR TELFNITESHIE
ST e

During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to
the composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon
to the Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the
change of directors, the re-election of the directors at AGM, the
recommendation of the measurable objectives that the Board
should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as reviewed the
independence of the INEDs.
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Nomination committee (Continued)

In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is
set out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors.
These differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree
annually measurable objectives for implementing diversity
on the Board and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with
a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and
gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in
the Corporate Governance Report, on the Board's
composition under diversified perspectives, and monitor
the implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives will be
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Review of the Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as
appropriate, and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.
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Nomination committee (Continued)

The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during
the year ended 31 December 2024:

. Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

o ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the measurable objectives by
which the Board had included both male and female candidates with
overseas academic, research or working experience in other industries
in the selection of Directors. The Board has achieved the board gender
diversity by appointment at least one female director on the board on
27 March 2024, in compliance with the Appendix 14J) of the Code
and Rule 13.92.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee with
written terms of reference on 21 March 2013 to be responsible
for reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure in the report
on corporate governance code and other related matters. Mr. Zhang
Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the corporate governance
committee and Mr. Wang Weidong were appointed as the members
of the corporate governance committee.
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Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during
the year under review. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

SREEER
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEXE Committee member:
SRR A Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
FHELAE Mr. Wang Weidong v/
o I8 5 A Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v

REZE2024F 12 A3 HIETRFERTNDH
FBERENHEER T ARARTETLEE
ATRIZ FAME RARFNCEERBRRERS
HEOWEE -

EREEEES

RNATMN2015E8A13AKIEAREEEES
WA EBBREHE B ARFRARERE - N
e R EMEEEE  WiRHER - T RIBL
EREZIARREEBZESEEAGEELER
EEALEEZTARKRERZEEKE -

RiEERZE@ROBFENRTTMASHE -
EREHHEERHIIMT

During the meeting held in the financial year ended 31 December
2024, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to the
Company’s compliance with code provisions of the CG code and the
Company'’s policies and practises on corporate governance.

Risk Management Committee

The Company established a risk management committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the
risk management and internal control of the Company and other
related matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the
chairman of the risk management committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
and Mr. Ma Zhizhong were appointed as the members of the risk
management committee.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the year
under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HE BT
ZEEERRH™
Number of
Committee meeting
attended/held

ZEEgKE Committee member:
TRERAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
BB B LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
BB A Mr. Ma Zhizhong 2/2
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Risk Management Committee (Continued)

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2024, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to
the Company’s internal control measures and policies and its
implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the
Board for approval.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows. The external
auditors are responsible to form an independent opinion, based on
the audit, on the financial statements prepared by the Directors and
report the opinion solely to the members of the Company as a body
and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group
has established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has
supervised the management’s design, implementation and monitoring
of risk management and internal control systems. The Board
confirmed that it is responsible for establishing risk management
and internal control systems for the Group and will continue to
monitor the system and ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and its
principal subsidiaries at least once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering
all important monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic,
financial, operational, compliance monitoring and whistleblowing

policy.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has
also conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1)

2)

identify risk and form risk list;

Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;

Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

Develop risk management manuals for risk management,
identify the responsibilities for the management, Board
of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk Management
Committee in risk management, and continuously monitor risk
management;

The management has reported to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on the review and assessment of risk
management, major risk factors and related response measures;
and

The management has established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company
including but not limited to customers, suppliers and agents,
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity with the audit/
risk management committee about possible improprieties in
any matter related to the Company. The Company has also
established policy and system that promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business
goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no
significant misrepresentation or loss.
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Risk management and internal control (Continued)

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for
handling and distributing inside information:

o The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle is
that the information should be immediately published when the
Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is made,
unless such inside information falls under the Safe Harbour
Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

. In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the "“Recent
Economic Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of
Listed Issuers” issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

. Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems.

External auditor's remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,800,000 (approximately RMB2,564,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total remuneration
for the permissible non-audit services provided by the external
auditors amounted to approximately HK$800,000 (approximately
RMB733,000) which is for the review of the interim financial report of
the Group for the six months period ended 30 June 2024.

The re-appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having been made
specific enquiry, the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Relevant
Period.

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary
general meetings (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
(the "EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general
meetings can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is
presently situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119, Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently
situated at Unit 21, 26/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The EGM Requisitionists must state in
their requisition the businesses of the EGM to be transacted and such
requisition must be signed by all the EGM Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition
is in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to
convene the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered
Shareholders in accordance with all the relevant statutory
requirements. According to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within
two months after the deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one
days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene the EGM, the EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by them as a result of
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by
the Company.
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Shareholders’ rights (continued)

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 21, 26/F,
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
The request will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

o At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

o At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an
ordinary or special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company’s website www.dongyuechem.com.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Unit 21, 26/F, Tower 1

Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Email: carriechung@dongyuechem.com or carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.
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Investor relations

Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

o the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; and

o updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company'’s website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the
Group; and

o Investor can raise comments to the Board through our investor
relations consultant or the Company Secretary whose contact
details are disclosed in this report and the Company’s website.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.

Change in the constitutional documents of the
Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 27 March 2025
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About the report

This report is a true reflection of how Dongyue Group has actively
fulfilled its economic, social and environmental responsibilities and in
addition, has achieved comprehensive, coordinated and sustainable
development. Statements concerning future business plans,
development strategies, and any other future endeavors herein do not
constitute a substantive commitment of the Company to investors.

Time frame

The report covers from 1 January to 31 December 2024, while partial
contents are beyond the above time frame.

Publication cycle

ESG report of Dongyue Group Limited is an annual report and will be
published on annual basis.

Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group Limited and its
subsidiaries including: Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and Technology
Group Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd., Shandong
Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.,Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd., Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd.,
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd, Inner Mongolia
Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng
Mining Co., Ltd., Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd., Shandong
Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Union Property Co., Ltd., Huangtai Dongyue International Trade Co.,
Ltd., Hong Kong Trulene International Trade Co., Ltd., and Zibo Herun
Shuiwu Company Limited.
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About the report (continued)
Basis of preparation

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and
with reference to the GRI Sustainability Reporting Standards (GRI
Standards) issued by the Global Sustainability Standards Board (GSSB),
the Corporate Environmental Reporting Guidelines of Shandong
Province and relevant requirements on sustainable development
reporting and publishing drafted by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission.

Description of References

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed as

“Dongyue Group”, “the Group” and “the Company” in the report.

Explanations on Information

Historical information cited in the report is the final statistical
information. In case of any discrepancy between financial information
and annual report, the latter shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated,
Renminbi is used in the report as functional currency.

Availability of Report

The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can be
downloaded electronically from:

The website of HKSE http://sc.hkex.com.hk

The website of Dongyue Group Limited
http://Awww.dongyuechem.com/
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Board Statement

The purpose of this statement is to explain the governance and
supervision responsibilities of the Board of the Dongyue Group with
respect to ESG related work.

As the highest decision-making body for ESG matters, the Board of
Dongyue Group has always adhered to the philosophy of sustainable
development and regarded ESG as one of the core strategies for
the long-term development of the company. We continue to refine
our ESG governance mechanisms, and establish a sound ESG
management system to ensure ESG concept is fully integrated into
the whole process of the Group’s strategic planning, operational
management and performance evaluation. The Board actively
participates in consideration and decision-making of major ESG
issues, including but not limited to environmental goal setting, social
responsibilities fulfillment and corporate governance optimization,
so as to ensure that the Group is advancing steadily on the path of
sustainable development.

We always believe that sound corporate governance and effective
risk management form the cornerstone of long-term sustainable
development. Being always upholding transparent, compliant and
efficient governance as a fundamental operating principle, Dongyue
Group continuously refined internal control mechanisms and risk
management system to ensure steady and resilient growth amid
complex and volatile market conditions. Meanwhile, we attach
great importance to the demands of stakeholders, and actively
fostering harmonious relationships with shareholders, employees,
customers and communities to solidify the foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development.

In the pursuit of sustainable development, Dongyue Group
remains unwavering in prioritizing environmental protection, social
responsibility and robust governance as strategic imperatives, and
continues to increase the relevant investment. We are committed to
integrating corporate growth with societal benefits and environmental
protection, thereby promoting the healthy development of the
industry and facilitating environmental protection, and thus creating
greater value for the society.
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Board Statement (Continued)

Looking ahead, Dongyue Group will continue to practice the ESG
concept in a responsible manner, striving relentlessly to achieve
harmonious development among the enterprise, society and
environment. We are confident that by advancing ESG practices,
Dongyue Group will not only realize its own sustainable development
but will also make greater contributions to the progress of the
industry and the prosperity of society.

This report discloses in detail the progress and effectiveness of the
ESG work of the Company in 2024, and was submitted to the Board
for consideration and approval on 27 March 2025.
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ESG Management

Dongyue Group commits to continuously improving ESG
management process and has established a set of accountable,
scientific and efficient ESG management framework to
promote sustainable development of its business. Meanwhile,
the Group maintains on-going effective communication with
parties, including customers, consumers, employees, investors
and supply chain partners, and responds to their requests and
concerns in an active manner, therefore continuously improving
the efficiency of ESG governance.

1.1

ESG management system

Dongyue Group continues to improve its ESG
management system to ensure the healthy development
of the business and achieve sustainable growth. We
have established an ESG management system which is
led by the Board, organized by a working group and
executed by relevant functional divisions, and clarifies
the work responsibilities at each level, so as to effectively
manage non-financial risks such as environmental,

social and corporate governance, and promote the
professionalization, systematization and standardization
of the Group’s sustainable development work.

REE

Decision-making

NRAEFEL2HENSEEXERFHENTRZIAR
HERRE HERERAREETHEERSES
The Board of the Company reviewed and decided on major social responsibility
matters, including formulating relevant strategies and guidelines and performing
special reviews on the annual ESG report.
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Organization
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The Company established a special task group in the investor relations department for
coordinating ESG management related tasks on a daily basis, including the preparation
of the annual ESG report, collection of ESG performance indicators and organization
of training and promotion.
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Execution
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Respective functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company were responsible
for the centralized management of ESG issues, and regular reports of relevant
management initiatives, performance indicators and best practices and organizing all
types of ESG activities.

CREEEESGEERZ

Figure: The ESG Management System of Dongyue Group
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1. ESGEX (&) 1. ESG Management (Continued)
1.2 FEMEBELES 1.2 Communication with stakeholders
REEESEEREMNDHEHELE Dongyue Group attaches great importance to
B RRBEERMERIEAESHL communication and cooperation with stakeholders and
AIRFENSESGEENEEZEY - A always regards their opinions and demands as important
RIEBFAEZITAEREE BAXER driving force for the Company to continuously promote
BB - AR B E T w5 AR B 7 B HA A the improvement of ESG management. The Company
sk RZBHMEFELENEAE actively explores and expands multiple communication
THEE  FEERLCFEEETNZ channels, responds to the expectations and requests of
HER Y o stakeholders in a timely manner, fully understands the

impact of its operation on stakeholders, and continuously
optimizes the effectiveness of stakeholders’ engagement.

® REEEFZEEGTBERY

Table: The Stakeholder Communication Mechanism of Dongyue Group

Mz AR MBEER BEENES X
Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Ways of communication and response
o EBRBREERBEMERER o LEWxH
e REMIKBEERERE e REER%E
o  THEEMAIME o HHEEW
s LERAEE s BMEESL
o Implementing the national policies, o Filings
laws and regulations o Offering advice and suggestions
° Promoting local economic ° Special subject report
development o Inspection & supervision

3 Driving local employment
o Production safety

o WamEH s  RAIRE

U GHEE e = REE R

e Returns on investment e EHER

o Compliance operation o Company announcement
3 Special subject report
o Field investigation

e REEXN s WEKER

e HERKE e EERE

O BEEDERE C R RS

o  HBITERER o  AMAIE

o Fulfilling the contractual obligations in Business communication
accordance with the law o Customer feedback

° Integrity operation ° Exchange & discussion

o Quality products and services o Negotiation & cooperation

3 Promoting industry development

02 HE£EARAT -B-NEFRH



RE - HERERARE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

1.

ESGEE (&)
12 FIBHEBEHEBEE)

MEAEEE S

Stakeholders
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1. ESG Management (Continued)

1.2 Communication with stakeholders (Continued)

HEHEER

Expectations and requirements

BRI

£ B2 Rl B

REERE

&5 RARZ (L

KERE R

Emission compliance

Energy conservation and emission
reduction

Protecting the ecology
Addressing climate change issues
Water resources management

R E

BEEE

1A

BEERE

Rights and interests protection
Occupational health

Salaries and benefits

Career development

HENRERRE
DENFEHE
ERRFIEH

Improving the community
environment

Participating in public welfare
undertakings

Open and transparent information

BREDESN

y

Ways of communication and response

o  T{EER

. BE#mE

o  AfimzE

o BUREHE

3 Work report

o Filing and submission

° Investigation & inspection
° Policy monitoring

o BIRERKE

e EBWH

e RIBEBAETA

3 Workers' congress

o Collective consultation

o Democratic communication
platform

o yNSIE

o NEIRE

e KRN

3 Company website

o Company announcement

o Interview & communication
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1.

ESG Management (Continued)

1.3 Materiality analysis

With reference to the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guidelines under Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, Dongyue Group
understands the concerns, expectations and demands
of stakeholders on the sustainable development of the
Company through the collection of questionnaires,
business review conclusions and ESG work effectiveness
benchmarking. Based on the existing national policies
and the focus of ESG related opportunities and risks for
listed companies, the Group identifies and determines
the material ESG issues related to stakeholders and the
Company, in a bid to ensure accurate and comprehensive
disclosure of issues concerned by the Company internally
and the stakeholders. In 2024, there were no material
updates on the Company’s material issues as compared
with that of 2023.

BEEENEE
Highly Material Issues

UM NEE M
Materiality to Stakeholders

MR EBERTE
Green Product R&D.
[
BRAEE
Production Safety
ERRRHEE
Product and Service Quality
AR
Sustainable Supply Chain Y
E B EBITAT

R T 2 ARILIRE
Data Security and
Privacy Protection

8 TSRt _ ° »
Interests and Benets RATTEITEEER
of Employees Promotion of the Development
. of New Business Models in the Industry

RIBARERFIA

EHRERE
Responding to climate change

The Use o
Renewable Energy
BEREREERER

Management of energy
and utilization of resources

BKEE

DEEA

Production Capacity
Enhancement and
Technology Innovation

BlEAREE
Integrity and
Compliance Operation

[ AR RE
Intellectual Property
Rights Protection

>

Wastewater Management [ ] Corporate Governance
[ E R RS BRAK
Business Frhics and [ ] Environmental
KEgEE  Ant-coruption [ Compliance
Wteresource management @ Waste Management
ARSHRER [
Atmosphere Pollution
Management AT RE| SRR

4] Talent Attraction and Development

g
B2 [ ]
B HEEERSS
=g Community Communication
2 2 and Engagement
o

H
H 9

EEERAR HREEENEEY BEEERR
Lowly Material Issues Materiality to Dongyue Group Highly Material Issues
BEGEE . s =200 gt o
Environment Society Governance

B REEE2024FESGE A M EEERE

Figure: 2024 ESG Materiality Matrix of Dongyue Group
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Sound and Healthy Operation

Keeping in compliance, Dongyue Group adheres to integrity
management and strictly controls product quality with a
focus on enhancing customer service experience, strengthens
sustainable supply chain management and improves the level of
compliance management, so as to lay a foundation for building
a global brand.

2.1

Commitment to integrity and compliance

Dongyue Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations, such as the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Supervision Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery, the Group has formulated internal
business rules and regulations documents covering
all subsidiaries to continually optimize compliance
management system, such as Dongyue Group Risk
Management Measure, Dongyue Group Discipline
Inspection and Monitoring System and Dongyue Group
Regulations on Anti-corruption System. In 2024, the Group
issued five management policies, including the Dongyue
Group Discipline Inspection and Supervision Scheme,
Dongyue Group Management Opinions on Officers’
Primary Responsibility, Dongyue Group Management
Measures for Warning Talks and Dongyue Group Notice
on Increasing Monetary Penalty for Disciplinary Violations
to further promote substantive compliance, with zero-
tolerance attitude towards unfair competition, corruption,
fraud and other misconduct, aiming to consolidate the
ideological defenses against corruption featuring “one
dares not corrupt, one cannot corrupt, and one does not
want to corrupt”, and put efforts into creating a fair and
transparent working environment.
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.1

Commitment to integrity and compliance (Continued)

Dongyue Group continued to promote the compliance
management and strived to create the Group’s
“compliance business card” to ensure the operational
compliance in all business areas. 2024 was the concluding
year for the Group’'s compliance program, which
focused on three aspects: compliance in special areas,
compliance management system optimization and
standard certification. The Group conducted compliance
investigations in the two special areas, i.e. business
partner management and labor and employment
management, and issued relevant compliance guidelines.
In the meantime, the Group completed the optimization
of operational compliance in four fields, namely
procurement, sales, engineering and maintenance, and
prepared four substantive compliance reports. In this
process, 41 redundant processes were improved, 17
ineffective processes were abolished, 64 unnecessary
approval nodes were removed, 10 compliance risk
issues were reviewed and reported, and 7 systems were
revised and added. In addition, the Group also carried
out compliance standard certification work, organizing
internal auditors to rectify the requirements of systems
and standards and problems found in the pre-audit.
These measures provide strong support for improving
the Group’s compliance governance system and further
enhance the level of compliance management.

Dongyue Group has continued to enhance the compliance
awareness of all staff to build a solid foundation for
compliance through diverse means of law popularization.
In 2024, in response to the frequent issues relating to
contract disputes and labor disputes in daily operations,
the Group organized 14 special training sessions on
contract law practice, labor risk prevention and control
in addition to regular legal training, covering key aspects
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.1

Commitment to integrity and compliance (Continued)

such as the orientation for new employees and the
operation of the compliance system, with a total of
more than 610 personnel being trained and a total of
32 training hours. Meanwhile, through the WeChat
official account, the Group built a platform for law
popularization, pushed 24 issues of professional content
such as enterprise-related dispute analysis and criminal
compliance points throughout the year, and published 51
original law popularization articles. During the year, the
Group successfully passed the evaluation of “Shandong
Province Eighth Five-Year Law Popularization and Legal
Culture Construction Demonstration Enterprise”, adding
authoritative certification for compliance management.

In response to potential operational risks such as labor
disputes, the Group organised the management of each
company to carry out focused and specialised learning
activities, and set up a dispute prevention, control and
conciliation team to include training and learning on
labor disputes treatments into routine work, so as to
continuously enhance the Group'’s risk prevention and
control. At the same time, we actively responded to
the advocacy of local courts and provided legal advisory
services to park employees and community residents,
maintaining good relations with all sectors of the
community. The Group, together with the Political and
Legal Committee of Huantai County Party Committee and
the departments of public security, prosecution, courts
and judicial administration, jointly established the first
legal affairs studio for enterprises in Huantai County and
created a county-level demonstration model, thus building
a bridge for communication between the Group and the
judicial department. In addition, through Dongyue E +
Smart Court, the Group carried out five times of online
connection with judicial and administrative authorities
at all levels, reporting in detail and demonstrating the
achievements of the construction of the Group’s E +
Smart Court. In terms of labor dispute handling, we relied
on the labor dispute coordination and joint handling team
to actively communicate and coordinate with courts and
banks, and successfully resolved 2 dispute cases involving
economic disputes regarding employees’ overdue credit
card debt and suspected credit card fraud.
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.2 Comprehensive Quality Assurance

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the relevant laws
and regulations such as the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and strictly implements a
number of management measures such as Quality System
Management Manual, Quality Management System,
Quality Inspection Management System to strengthen
quality control throughout the entire life cycle of
equipment procurement, production and manufacturing,
quality inspection, product delivery.

Standardized Quality Control

As one of the first 100 pilot enterprises with good
standard in China, Dongyue Group persists in leading high
quality with high standards and implements standardized
management of the entire product life cycle in the
operation process. Besides, Dongyue Group enhances
the standardization of product management through
information construction with the aim of minimizing
abnormalities in the operation process and operation
behavior and ensuring product quality.

The Group has established a comprehensive Quality,
Occupational Health and Safety, Environment, and Energy
(QHSE) management system integrating four standards
into one framework, and has developed a list of whole
flow management elements. This includes 20 primary
management elements, such as: management leadership,
organizational structure and responsibilities, risks and
opportunities, compliance management, human resources,
information communication, project management, facility
and equipment management, production operations,
chemicals and process management, stakeholder
management, work management, storage, transportation
and handling management, quality management,
occupational health, environmental management,
energy and resource management, emergency
preparedness and response, incident and accident
management, performance evaluation and improvement,
etc. Additionally, there are 68 secondary elements,
comprising 7 common primary elements that define basic
management requirements and 13 specialized primary
elements deeply customized to the characteristics of
different disciplines. The secondary elements further
refine the standards of the primary elements, breaking
them down into relevant disciplines and departments
with clearly defined responsibilities. Management tasks
are assigned to respective departments, and specialized
department heads are responsible for organizing element
inspection, implementation, and rectification acceptance.
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.2 Comprehensive Quality Assurance (Continued)

In 2024, the Group conducted internal and external
reviews of its QHSE management system to ensure
that the existing QHSE management system complies
with relevant standards and the actual operation of the
Group. During the internal review, we identified 1,059
opportunities points, and carried out optimization and
rectification, from a management perspective, achieving
a 100% rectification rate. During the external review,
Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd., Shandong
Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd., Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou
New Material Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd., and Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon
Materials Co., Ltd. passed management system audit
conducted by the third-party. The audit team unanimously
agreed to maintain the certification qualification. 144
opportunity points were identified in the audit, and all of
them have now been rectified with a 100% rectification
rate.

All subsidiaries of the Group have currently obtained
certifications for their Quality, Environment, Occupational
Health and Safety, and Energy management systems,
which validate that the management systems comply with
standards and are effectively implemented, maintained,
and improved. They fully acknowledge the Group’s
achievements in leadership commitment, organizational
management of system operations, resource allocation,
employee awareness, and the significant performance
attained in QHSE management.
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.2

Comprehensive Quality Assurance (Continued)

Informatization management

Dongyue Group continuously improves the
informatization in quality management processes, and
conducts informatization control from multiple aspects
such as raw material quality management, product quality
management, quality target management, and quality
risk warning. To meet the informatization supervision
requirements for process alarms, the Company improves
its process alarm management. Based on the established
principles for alarm classification, grouping, zoning,
and display, the Group has defined protocols for alarm
prioritization and response procedures by leveraging
Hazard and Operability Analysis (HAZOP) with Risk Matrix
to semi-quantitatively determine alarm priority levels to
set up a process alarm management platform for the
Group. In 2024, the best practices for process alarms
were completed, promoting the optimization of process
alarms. The alarm optimization for 77 sets of devices was
completed by revising the alarm management system and
simplifying the approval procedure for process alarms,
so as to achieve synchronous warning between the
management system and DCS system. At the same time,
multi-dimensional analysis of process alarms is carried
out through indicators such as alarm frequency, alarm
duration, and alarm type, and performance evaluation is
conducted based on the analysis results to orderly improve
the informatization of quality management.
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WREESD FMRARADE

Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.

WREBBAMEER AT

Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Material
Co., Ltd.

WREREREMHFRAF

Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.

IWRREGREHEER DA
Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd.

2.

BRRAIEL

grade percentage

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.2 Comprehensive Quality Assurance (Continued)

Product quality inspection

Dongyue Group strictly complies with national, industry,
and enterprise quality inspection standards and
requirements, strictly implements the quality inspection
process. In 2024, the Quality Inspection Management
System was revised and improved to clarify the inspection
process and department responsibilities for raw material
inspection, central control inspection, and finished
product inspection. It requires subsidiaries to develop
quality inspection management system, which clarifies
the inspection methods and judgment basis for various
raw materials and finished products, so as to ensure the
quality of the supplied products. In 2024, the highest
grade percentage of the Group’s major products was
99.51%, an increase of 0.13% as compared to last year,
and there was no active or passive product recalls due
to product quality issues. During the year, the Group’s
fluoroplastic release agent and PVDF for lithium batteries
were awarded the title of Innovative Products of 2023 by
the China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation.

Table: The percentage of top product quality grades
of subsidiaries of Dongyue Group in 2024

2022 F 2023 F 2024 F
REE&BIEL
2024 Highest

grade percentage

B R AME L
2023 Highest
grade percentage

2022 Highest

98.68% 99.24% 99.15%

98.49% 97.08% 98.80%

100% 100%

100% 100%
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Comprehensive Quality Assurance (Continued)

Quality culture construction

Dongyue Group continuously strengthens the construction
of quality culture, builds its own internal trainer team
for internal quality training. The Group conducts various
activities, including special training on quality inspection
and control, themed publicity months, etc.. That
continuously strengthens the quality risk awareness and
prevention ability of employees, and improves the quality
management of the Group. For quality trainings in 2024,
our focus was on professional trainings. A total of nine
training sessions were organized. For these trainings,
we centered on IATF16949 clause trainings supporting
industrial product production license management and
quality management trainings during the production
process, with a total of more than 200 professionals
participating.

Enhancing Service Experience

Dongyue Group insists on catering customer’s needs,
listening to their requirements and expectation, providing
customer with reasonable solutions and improving
standards of service provided to them.

The Group has well-established customer service
management system in place. The Group implemented the
Dongyue Group Sales Management Regulations, regulated
the service behaviors of employees in each section
covering the whole sales process of pre-sale, in-sale,
after-sale to improve service standards and customer’s
satisfaction. Meanwhile, in accordance with the Customer
Feedback Information Management System, the Group
provided structured response to products’ after-sales
services, customer complaints and other issues to fully
guarantee the quality of customer services. In 2024, the
Group and its subsidiaries received 29 complaints from
customers. We actively resolve customers’ complaints
by taking the initiative to contact customers, providing
technique instruction and seeking legal consultation, etc.
Our complaint resolution rate is 100%.
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Enhancing Service Experience (Continued)

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of
user privacy and information and data security, and strictly
complies with the Data Security Law of the People’s
Republic of China. The Group has formulated internal
system namely, the “Information Automation Work
Management System of Dongyue Group”, continued to
strengthen the mechanism for the management of user
information security and comprehensively controlled and
prevented the risk of customer information security. In
2024, the Group had no incidents of customer privacy
leakage.

Enhanced Responsible Procurements

Dongyue Group has formulated the Supplier Management
System of Dongyue Group, Procurement Process Control
of Dongyue Group and Product Quality Tracking and
Investigation Feedback System of Dongyue Group,
establishing a comprehensive supplier management
mechanism with entire life cycle, formatting a synergy
in supply chain procurement through the three lines of
defense of supplier admission, auditing and inspection to
improve the quality of suppliers.
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2. Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)
2.4 Enhanced Responsible Procurements (Continued)
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Table: The supplier management mechanism with entire life cycle

HEBEA

Supplier admission

BYMHEEEAEFER  SERR(UEREAGE)EBER R -ERIAMH
BEERUIRTEERALER  BEMHEREERN FAEXE HEFAE=R
B HBEEFRE BHRI100%HEBEAREE - 2024F - EEIFS|AH
JERI 434K HPAER 406K EHR28FK o

The Group sets up electronic files for supplier admission and verifies the relevant
qualification information online and provides a compliance survey form in accordance
with the relevant requirements of the supplier Admission System, and then retains the
electronic file subject to the approval by the Supplier Management Department, Audit
Department and the Director of Suppliers, so as to realise the 100% coverage of the
supplier admission. In 2024, the Group introduced 434 new suppliers, of which 406
were manufacturers and 28 were traders.

HEBEX
Supplier auditing

BEYMHEREKS  RANMEBERERINEE CREVHERES  BEARE
FEFN BEREEBEEZREER EXHHHEESE B RE - BREE
ZXETHBAZR TRIZAFNERBERHNDENES - JEBER £
BRAFETRER M 20245  EEEHARER 145K EHRAELEERE
9.94% - HEM1,205K - EEMEHLLE.06%  BERIBRXERKEIN% |NFE
EBER SEXHEERABHEEAF1,338K -

The Group establishes supplier optimisation mechanism and achieves whole process
control of suppliers’ production by sorting out suppliers’ business registration
information, matching information from material team and conducting on-site
investigation and visits. The Group conducts evaluation focusing on the quality, delivery
date, service and price, and communicates with each company on site about the quality,
arrival and usage of the raw materials and goods purchased on a regular basis. In
2024, the number of group traders reduced to 145, the proportion of traders reduced
10 9.94%, and the number of producers was 1,205, and the proportion of producers
reached 90.06%, achieving the annual task target of “factory direct acquisition rate of
90%". The main database of the Group now has a total of 1,338 qualified suppliers.

HEBHEE

Supplier inspection

afEET &8  LBREFHFITHK 2024 FEEE D H7MET S| A ERETT
THAMERFS  EHERHEE RITXESHER) HBEEE T8
BRHOBESEETTE 20245  SEHFRAEEFI2IR  BEFHHETSR REE
HERE S EB(LIREKE -

Cooperate with the Group’s audit, compliance, discipline inspection and other
departments to complete a comprehensive investigation and inspection of the Group’s
sub-suppliers and newly introduced suppliers in 2024. Focus on inspecting their
warehousing, performance in the same industry and other supply capabilities. Put an
end to unqualified traders without warehouses entering the platform. In 2024, the
Group investigated a total of 127 manufacturers and 75 traders, providing a basis for
the integration and optimization of various suppliers.
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2.

Sound and Healthy Operation (Continued)

2.4 Enhanced Responsible Procurements (Continued)

In daily production activities, we monitor and
communicate with suppliers in real time to ensure
compliance of the whole production process of suppliers.
According to the Supplier Admission System of the
Group, suppliers engaged in special business shall
undergo compulsory certification such as transportation,
operation and industrial production licensing of hazardous
chemicals, and cannot participate in the platform system
quotation after the expiry of any qualification certificate.
Meanwhile, we emphasize timely communication and
publicity of relevant system and management changes to
suppliers, establish a complaint tracing mechanism, and
timely identify and solve security risks. In 2024, the Group
has approved 1,338 qualified suppliers, 594 suppliers
certified by quality control system (ISO 9000), 343
suppliers certified by environmental management system
(ISO 14000) and 327 suppliers certified by occupational
health and safety management system.

The Group launched the clean procurement initiative and
encouraged all suppliers to sign the Sunshine Cooperation
Commitment, promising to put an end to improper
bidding, non-public business dealings, payment of private
expenses and other illegal activities. As of 2024, the
Group's 1,338 qualified suppliers have sign commitments,
accounting for 100%.

HERbLES

Geographical Distribution of Suppliers

260

48

84 ‘l

528

N

o X ® THk
Shandong

Jiangsu

o b)§
Shanghai

o T 1R

274

HthE
Zhejiang  Beijing Others

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 75



R - HERERRS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

/6

R ER

RESEUNEXMEBEZMASBKAAZ
DR D BETER BB R &t
BENERERE NREFTKERE L - H#
EZRE SREELWE  BNITER
T 5 °2024F - RRIFHIZLAARE
70,7138 7T °

3.1 AIFTRER

RESEETEHTSREAFNER 5
ERFAIFER REEEEERYT
RIBIFTAERE - BN 288 T ERAAIE -
HEERREMES - SEH T (R
EEER AR BRI CEF B
HEHIE)RES TR A3 1EE 5
ot EERBEL2EBR  ER
B AATE - BRETEZHEFOE
TAA 2024 F 322 AANEBRHR S
BRAA  FEIAABILRESS
BAANA EEEH [ ERESFRE
Ritdll  BERy M EsGREA
FBE - ENER EWERAME -
HEeRRRECHSESNERAR
A EAERNRE 2024 FERL
ASHE1008 T HEFRAE
BoHEFREHRR  EEHEBERES
HEANBT80A  H B LI L(hEL
E56% °

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

Innovation Development

Driven by professional R&D system and talent team, Dongyue
Group contributes to the technological innovation of the
industry by constantly improving the scientific and technological
innovation system, strengthening the management of
intellectual property rights, accelerating the transformation
of innovation achievements and promoting the research and
development of multi-category and high-quality products. In
2024, the Company invested RMB707.13 million in R&D.

3.1

Research and Development System Innovation

Dongyue Group continues to improve the scientific and
technological innovation system and consolidates the
foundation of scientific and technological innovation.
Dongyue Group creates sound innovation ecology
and encourages all the staff to make inventions and
innovations, so as to facilitate advanced product and
technology. The Group formulated Incentive Scheme for
Technological Innovation in Dongyue Group and Patent
Innovation and Award System to clarify the scientific and
technological innovation incentive plans for employees. In
addition, the Group actively participates in the selection of
national and provincial scientific research talents, cultivates
and discovers outstanding scientific research talents. In
2024, we had two more employees being elected as
national high-level personnel and 1 more employee being
selected as Shandong provincial high-level personnel. The
Group initiated the “Dongyue Young Scientist Program”
to carry out basic and applied fundamental research on
the application of fluorosilicon materials in the fields of
5G communications, semiconductors, integrated circuits,
biomedical materials, green environmental protection and
catalysts, etc., and had set up a fund of RMB10 million
in 2024 to support young scientific cadres. As at the end
of the Reporting Period, the R&D team of the Group was
expanded to 780 persons, with the proportion of PhD and
master degree holders increasing to 56%.
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3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

3.2

Emmfffseia
Product Pilot
research
and
development

Implementation of Innovation Achievements

In the stage of product innovation, Dongyue Group pays
more attention to application and commercialization while
considering theory and experiment. The Group has formed
a management system for the whole process of product
development from application and market research and
development to product production and commercialization
to ensure superb quality and successful commercial use of
the final results of new product development. On 27 June
2024, Dongyue accelerated scientific innovation, with
26 scientific research projects established and the design
testing centre put into operation, kicking up a path of
high-quality development for the Group by transforming
the scientific research results to production capacity and
corporate benefits. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
the Group had established 24 joint laboratories with 20
organizations, including Shanghai Jiao Tong University,
Shanghai University of Applied Sciences, Sichuan
University and Shandong Academy of Sciences.

Y PN EmEE

EEGHE S

Product

scale-up production and
and commercialization

sample

delivery
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Figure: Flowchart of Scientific Research Innovation Transformation Application
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3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

3.2

Implementation of Innovation Achievements
(Continued)

During the year, Dongyue Group continued to adhere to
the innovative concept of “extreme technology, extreme
resource utilization and extreme benefit”, deepened
the industrial technology layout of “new energy, new
environmental protection and new infrastructure”, and
achieved a series of significant results.

The development of PVDF water treatment ultrafiltration
membrane products has achieved more efficient and
environmentally friendly treatment of pollutants: The Group
has keenly recognized the value of PVDF as a high-viscosity
composite material. In water treatment, it can efficiently
filter pollutants and degrade carbon; its excellent resource
utilization capability also enhances the environmental
optimization of waste treatment systems. During the year,
the Group focused on PVDF research and application,
and made significant R&D results. Related products
have now entered the sales testing phase. The Group
possesses strong technical capabilities in PVDF R&D and
has accumulated numerous successful case studies. The
Group also made remarkable progress in market expansion.
It has actively built a cooperative network by collaborating
extensively with enterprises and research institutions, which
effectively enhanced product presence. These achievements
are highly demonstrative and provide solid support for the
technological development of the Group.



RE - HBRERRS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3.

BFEE 2
3.2 EAIFRER(E)

BEMBE(HHERTELARRR
Z ¥ fst g ] A0 [ DFS-901 %1 2= Bt AU 741 |
BT AOERREHRBZ 95
NEIEEMENE) HERETEHRAE
RALGEERELES  FASHED
MiRBNES  EREEMED
BURR o K - SRR TR R E
{EEEEMBE  RKABRNE HEMIER
TENTSHER BRTHELEER
R o I FE BT B IR A 7] AIDFS-901 &L =
B ) 2 S 9 1ok B2 JBR R B R T AU
T —FAEBEA A - A A AR RS
REEMBEHESEE  BRAEMKE
BEHBMEAMOE RSB - ZE SRS
T % 4B A T B 7 T 35 R e A ) A 22
B TR AP s S RN B B
KB °2024F 4 8 + E W E M T
B4 [ 2023 F E b T M R85 E
EAEER A

3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

3.2

Implementation of Innovation Achievements
(Continued)

The “Polyvinylidene Fluoride Resin for Power Lithium-
ion Batteries” and “DFS-901 Fluorinated Release Agent”
independently developed by the Group have received
acclaims. In response to the national dual-carbon goals,
Shenzhou Company has independently developed a high-
purity polyvinylidene fluoride resin for power lithium-
ion batteries, which boasts the advantages of high peel
strength and anti-gelation. The overall performance
of the product has reached internationally advanced
level. This development addresses the localization of
key materials, making the company a major supplier
for leading domestic power battery manufacturers and
achieving domestic substitution. The DFS-901 fluorinated
release agent developed by the Research Institute Co.,
Ltd. is a release agent specifically designed for ultra-light
release of silicone pressure-sensitive adhesives. It provides
low peel strength and high residual adhesion for silicone
pressure-sensitive adhesives, enabling efficient separation
of silicone pressure-sensitive adhesives and substrates.
The development of this product fills the gap in the
domestic market for ultra-light release agents and breaks
the dominance of foreign companies in the mid-to-high-
end market. In April 2024, these two products were
jointly awarded the title of “2023 Innovative Products in
Chemical New Materials”.
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3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

3.3

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

Dongyue Group strictly abides by the Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Trademark Law
of the People’ s Republic of China and other laws
and regulations, pays attention to the protection of
patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets and other
intellectual property rights, and is committed to properly
protecting its own intellectual property rights while not
infringing the achievements of others, so as to reduce
the risk of infringement. The Group has built a sound
intellectual property management structure, formulated
the Intellectual Property Rights Management System of
Dongyue Group, and formed a clear, comprehensive,
practical, standardized and efficient intellectual property
management system and mechanism.

The Group attached great importance to the risk
management and control of intellectual property
rights, and has established an intellectual property
risk monitoring and management system covering all
subsidiaries of the Group and across the whole process of
the Company’s core business. In the second half of this
year, the Group launched a comprehensive investigation
into intellectual property and trade secret risks, covering
six companies within the Dongyue Group Park. The
Group completed the registration of core personnel
involved in trade secrets and core projects, implemented
secondary control over project documents, and tightened
the account management strategies for core personnel
to ensure the integrity of technical information, clarify
responsibilities, and maintain traceability of processes.

The Group actively carried out patent application work
to ensure that every technological innovation is getting
fully protected. During the reporting period, the Group
obtained a total of 121 patents. As of the end of 2024,
the Group owned 839 valid patents (representing a year-
on-year increase of 27.51%), of which 120 were utility
model patents, 17 were Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT)
patents and 702 were invention patents.
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3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

33

3.4

Intellectual Property Rights Protection (Continued)

In order to improve employees’ awareness and standard
of intellectual property management, we regularly carried
out training on intellectual property management system
and knowledge. In 2024, we organized 8 training sessions
on intellectual property empowerment at the group level.
The training sessions involved basic training on trademarks
for the Research Institute, special trainings such as group-
level seminars on trade secret issues, specialized trainings
on fluorosilicon trade secrets, and group-level trade
secret trainings for new employees, and inviting experts
and leaders of relevant departments to conduct training.
The training covers new staff, intellectual property
management personnel, and scientific research personnel
of the Company, etc., with a total of more than 320
participants.

Promoting Industry Development

Leveraging on technological innovation cooperation,
Dongyue Group brings into play its own leading
force in establishing an efficient operational system
of collaborative innovation across the value chain. In
addition, we actively engage in cooperation and academic
communication with universities and research institutes
to enhance our potential to innovate and promote high
quality development in the industry.
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3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

3.4 Promoting Industry Development (Continued)

During the year, the Group has actively carried out
industry benchmarking and internal communication work.
Externally, it organized visits to enterprises in the same
industry for study and exchange, broadening the thinking
on reform. Internally, relying on 26 “Experience Sharing
and Exchange Meetings”, more than 90 achievements
were shared, and 98 difficult problems from various
companies were collected and solved. Among them,
82 problems have found direct and efficient solutions,
effectively tackling the professional challenges in the
reform. At the same time, the Group has actively
participated in exchanges within industry associations
to contribute to the development of the industry. On
8 April 2024, the meeting of the Shandong Province
High-end Chemical Industry Development Promotion
Association was held in Jinan. Zhang Jianhong, chairman
of the Group was re-elected as the president of the
second session of the promotion association. Leveraging
the platform resources of this association, the Group
will, guided by the market, assist the government in
advocating and promoting new technologies, new
processes, and new models in the high-end chemical
industry, thereby vigorously promoting the structural
optimization and upgrading of the entire industry towards
high-end, differentiated and green development. In 2024,
the Group opened up its recruitment ideas and carried
its talent acquisition task centering on where it needs
talents. To meet its specialized transformation needs, the
Group introduced 10 established professionals in energy
management, public utility engineering management,
automation, new energy project construction, and
introduced 13 talents in consultation and professional
exchanges, which directly and efficiently solved the current
problems of product quality enhancement, equipment
management, corrosion prevention and management and
others. During the year, the Group efficiently carried out
its recruitment work targeted fresh graduates. It recruited
114 highly-educated talents, including 23 masters and 91
undergraduates.
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3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

3.4 Promoting Industry Development (Continued)

Dongyue Group played an active role in leading and
participating in the establishment of industry standards.
Collaborating with industry experts and peers, we
jointly develop a series of scientific, reasonable and
forwardlooking industry standards. These standards
effectively regulate the production and operation of the
enterprises and provide strong support and guarantee for
the healthy development of the industry. On November
12, 2024, the Zibo Standardization Association was
established. Zhang Jianhong, chairman of the Group, was
appointed as its honorary chairman, and Feng Wei, the
executive deputy general manager of Dongyue Research
Institute Co., Ltd., was elected as the vice chairman. In the
future, the Group will leverage the platform resources of
the association to actively carry out the formulation and
revision of standards. By promoting the transformation
and application of standardization achievements to guide
enterprises to participate in high-end standardization
activities, so as to strive for the leading power in standard
formulation and seize the commanding heights of the
industry, thereby leading the high-quality development of
the industry. As of the end of the reporting period, the
Group had completed 166 standard projects. In 2024,
the Group issued 28 standards, including 4 national
standards, 4 industry standards and 20 group standards.
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3.

Innovation Development (Continued)

34

Promoting Industry Development (Continued)

In addition, the Group has actively carried out learning,
communication and cooperation with universities and
scientific research institutions. Against the current
backdrop of the “dual carbon” goal, the Group and
such institutions jointly establish and strengthen the
cooperation mechanism in the fields of new energy and
new materials, promoting the integration of science and
technology and talents, and realizing the marketization
and industrialization transformation of scientific research
achievements. On 10 July 2024, a group of 19 young
backbone teachers from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
visited the Group for exchanges. The two sides had in-
depth exchanges and discussions on the themes such as
industry-university-research cooperation. They also had
an in-depth exchange on the Group’s achievements in
undertaking major national scientific and technological
challenges, as well as several major scientific research
achievements. Taking this exchange as an opportunity,
it is expected that the Group and the university will
promote in-depth and practical cooperation in the fields
of scientific research and talent cultivation.

Safety Operation

With the original intention of establishing the concept of
safety development, Dongyue Group continues to improve its
safety management system and comprehensively promotes the
prevention and control of safety risks in daily operation. The
Group also focus on employees’ safety and occupational health
protection and carries out safety culture promotion to ensure
production safety of the enterprise and the healthy development
of the employees.
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4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.1

Safety Management System

Dongyue Group remains committed to the development
concept of “safety and environmental protection is the top
value of Dongyue”. It adheres to the internal health and
safety management measures such as Risk Classification
and Management and Control Program (& 5 4% & 12
T HIFE 7)), Accident Management and Control Program
((EREHEEEFIFRFF)), Potential Hazard Screening
and Management Control Program ({F& 8 3 &5 12
2 % 2 5 )). During the year, the Management System
of Dongyue Group’s Competence Center ({F & &
B H e 0 E HE I Z ) and the Emergency Preparedness
and Response Control Procedure (€& £ % 5 7l £ Jig 12
il ¥ 7)) have been revised, to clarify and standardize
the management of the safety competence center,
emergency supplies and emergency response procedures.
The health and safety management system has thus been
further established and improved. Dongyue Group has
established a Safety Management Committee, with the
Group's safety director responsible for overseeing the
Production Safety Committee’s operations to ensure the
effective operation of the safety management system.
The committee adopts the dual-director system, with the
Chairman and President serving as director, to take overall
responsibility of the Safety Management Committee. The
Safety Management Committee organizes and convenes
meeting once a quarter to study and solve major safety
issues. It formulates the Group's safety strategies,
guidelines and major decisions; coordinates internal and
external resources in an overall manner to ensure the
human, material and financial support required for safety
work. The director of the Group’s Operation Department,
the safety director and the general managers of each
company serve as committee members to implement the
decisions and arrangements of the Safety Management
Committee, so as to break down the Group's safety
objectives to each company. They also regularly report
to the Safety Management Committee on the progress,
problems and suggestions of the safety work of their
respective companies.
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4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Safety Management System (Continued)

In 2024, the Group carried out its work with the focus
on the adequacy in four aspects (i.e., “adequate safety
investment”, “adequate safety training”, “adequate basic
management” and “adequate emergency rescue”), and
took the construction of the three basics (grassroots level,
foundation and basic skills) capabilities as the main line.
The Group comprehensively implemented the work safety
responsibility system of each company, and ensured that
work safety was truly put into practice. The overall work
safety situation of the Group has been steadily improving.
There has been a significant decrease in the number
of accidents and the number of injured people, and an
aggregate of 2,240 hours lost due to work-related injuries
of employees and contractors. During the year, there
were no work-related personal injury accidents of Grade 1
or above among employees. During the year, the Group's
subsidiaries accepted 223 external inspections. There
were no cases of penalties due to work safety issues,
and they have been highly recognized by government
departments at all levels. Among them, Lv Leng Company
hosted the on-site meeting of the “Four Modernizations”
transformation organized by the provincial emergency
management department and the emergency drill for
environmental pollution in Zibo City, and was awarded the
title of Advanced Unit during the Safety Production Month
in Shandong Province. The Fluorosilicone Company won
the Excellent Award in the Skills Competition for Special
Operators in Shandong Province and was commended by
the emergency management departments at the county
and city levels.

Security Risk Prevention and Control

Dongyue Group prioritizes the principle of “safety first,
prevention as the main” in its production and operation,
we insists on safety emergency drills, regular health
and safety management and conducts daily inspection
to identify potential safety hazards. These measures
comprehensively enhance the awareness and standard of
safety risk prevention of the Group.
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4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.2 Security Risk Prevention and Control (Continued)

Safety Production

Dongyue Group places a high value on safe production
and operation, with safety production management at
its core to ensure effective safety management system by
refining safety responsibilities. The Group requires that all
staff, regardless of department or position, implement a
production safety responsibility system and sign a Safety
Target Responsibility Letter and enhance their safety
awareness of staff through topics-specific training, regular
promotion and assessment of the responsibility system.
This ensures that safety management work is carried
out effectively. In 2024, the Group invested RMB66.832
million in safety production, no graded safety production
accidents occurred among employees in the production
system. The Group further reduced the risks through
enhanced safety trainings and equipment protection
measures.

In 2024, the Group included its overseas subsidiaries in
the monthly supervision scope for the first time, with
the scores incorporated into the investment entities
of each park, further strengthening the supervisory
responsibilities of the parent companies and promoting
the autonomous improvement of management standards
at overseas subsidiaries. The Group requires each park’s
investment entities to audit and provide services to their
affiliated overseas subsidiaries at least twice a year, while
the Group conducts at least one annual system audit
for each overseas subsidiary. By the end of the year, the
companies had audited and provided guidance to their
overseas subsidiaries a total of 18 times. This was the first
time the Group completed a system audit for all overseas
subsidiaries, organizing system audits across various
specialties such as safety and environmental protection,
process equipment, electrical instrumentation, and fire
safety. A total of 455 issues were identified during the
audits, with a 100% rectification rate for the problems
found.
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4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.2

Security Risk Prevention and Control (Continued)

Safety Production (Continued)

The Group continued to carry out information governance
of health and management and focus on promoting the
information construction of major hazardous sources,
responsibility system performance, special operations,
personnel identification, functional inspection, Al
intelligent video analysis, complete elements of safety
and emergency response module. Meanwhile, the Group
cooperated with SUPCON TECHNOLOGY to establish a
safety information platform to increase the support of
safety production while complying with the regulatory
requirements. During the year, the Group optimized and
upgraded the major hazard source alarm management
system to achieve unified monitoring across the Group.
The combustible and toxic gas detectors at each company
were integrated into the Group’s safety informatization
platform, and a major hazard source visualization system
was developed in cooperation with the IT department.
Through ongoing control, the platform triggered 148
alarms in 2024, representing a decrease of 54.74%
compared to the previous year. No general or higher-
level warning information occurred, and internal alarm
management has effectively eliminated the occurrence
of repeated alarms and long unresolved alarms, resulting
in more stable production operations across the Group’s
facilities.

Emergency Drills

Dongyue Group conducts emergency drills at the team,
workshop, and company levels with the frequency of “one
small drill per week, one large drill per month, and one
inspection per quarter”. Dongyue Group has continuously
improved the emergency plan system for all kinds of
accident scenarios, carries out special emergency drills
and practical training to enhance the staff's emergency
awareness and emergency capability construction in
workplace and comprehensively improve the emergency
management and response standards. In 2024, the Group
conducted 393 safety and emergency drills, including 120
fire drills, with over 7,000 participants.
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4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.2 Security Risk Prevention and Control (Continued)

Emergency Dirills (Continued)

To prevent power outages caused by extreme weather
conditions, the Group has carefully formulated the
Dongyue Power Grid Emergency Plan for Severe Weather
and established a real-time inspection mechanism to
closely monitor the operational indicators and parameters
of Dongyue Power Grid. This enables timely handling of
emergencies, eliminating safety hazards at the source,
and ensuring the safe operation of the power grid. During
the four extreme weather events in this year, the electric
power department of the Group followed the emergency
plan, conducted routine inspections during shifts,
and responded immediately to unexpected incidents,
handling them appropriately to ensure grid stability. On
24 September 2024, the electric power department led
a joint emergency drill involving the Group’s dispatching
department, the maintenance department of Shenzhou
electric instrument, and other relevant departments.
The drill effectively assessed the ability of each relevant
department to fulfill their responsibilities during
emergencies, mobilize resources, and deploy emergency
response teams. It also tested their capacity for quick
response, effective control, and resolution of potential
hazards when faced with predefined emergency scenarios.

Hidden Danger Screening

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the national
Supervision and Management Regulations on the
Implementation of the Main Responsibility for the Safety
Use by Special Equipment Users, and has formulated the
Supervision and Management Regulations on the Use of
Special Equipment based on the Group’s actual condition,
S0 as to establish and improve the system of risk detection
of special equipment. The Group carries out regular
safety hazard investigation and equipment maintenance
for special business and equipment with high safety
risks, which supports to reduce the incidence of hidden
safety hazards to a controllable level. During the year, the
Group organized the preparation of the “Dongyue Group
2024 Major Overhaul Safety Production Competition
Implementation Plan ((REE B 2024 F KRB %X
THEEBRBEREEIEST X)), which clearly defined
four disqualifying indicators, five production efficiency
improvement indicators, and ten safety and environmental
process control indicators. In 2024, the Group inspected
special operations more than 600 times during the major
overhaul period, distributed more than 400 Guardian Star
cards, and promptly conducted on-site supervision on
the rectification of problems discerned ,achieving a 100%
inspection completion rate, effectively ensuring the safety
and controllability of the maintenance process.
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4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.2 Security Risk Prevention and Control (Continued)

Hidden Danger Screening (Continued)

At the same time, the Group categorizes safety hazard
investigations according to organizational levels:
company-level, workshop-level, team-level, and position-
level. At the company level, a comprehensive safety
inspection is conducted once a month, led by the general
manager, with additional special hazard investigations
during holidays and key periods. At the workshop level,
inspections are organized weekly, led by the workshop
manager and conducted by workshop management
personnel. At the team and position levels, frontline
employees carry out hazard inspections during their daily
patrols. In 2024, the number of hazards reported by each
company decreased by 53% compared to the previous
year, with a rectification completion rate of 99%.

Park Safety

Dongyue Group took management measures of the
Group's Security and Guarding Workflow and the Code of
Conduct for Security Management at the Gate, to further
clarify the responsibilities of the security personnels for
security prevention. The Group also organized professional
skill tests for security personnel, with a view to improve
the security management level of security personnel in
the park and build a safe park. In 2024, the Group was
continuously concerned about traffic management,
maintained safety facilities and removed potential security
hazards, with no major security issues or traffic safety
incidents occurring in the Park.

Contractor Safety

The Group has formulated Contractor Safety Management
Measures. Through methods such as signing of safety
responsibility agreements, onsite safety publicity,
manual on-site supervision and the establishment of a
contractor safety education account, the Group ensured
contractor’s health and safety compliance in the whole
cycle of admission, construction, direct operation,
project acceptance, etc., and prevented contractor safety
accidents. In 2024, there was no serious accidents or
above involving contractors of the Company.



%

- HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4. RTERE¥#)

4.3

BEREERE

RESEZEHRERBIE(BERE
TREHKE FEEEHE) B
(BERRERZGHREFERER
EEGIE)  BEATRBEREEN
ABEEEEGE)  LRERFEEL
EERAMAE B S EFIERER
B 2EREEIAEXKELEHH
MREEZL S -

SEEBELEHETRISEN - HE
MEERES  BBETEHRERAKES
g1t - B e L KTF - ERK BRE M E B
fREEfE M KA ABRBERERE
Fx - SEHEERETRESSE
A MEREERELENEST R
B RETIRESENENE -
THIREE T AFZZHERE - 2024
F EELRAREABARETAR
k801 &L o o EE T HARER
XEEEBIHF BUBREREE
Ro2024F  KEEBTIREBEEXRE
100% °

4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.3

Occupational Health Protection

Dongyue Group issued the Physical Examination System
and the Occupational Disease Hazard Identification
and Evaluation Management System, updated the
Occupational Health Management Control Procedures
and the Emergency Medicine Management System,
and continued to implement the Occupational
Disease Hazard Prevention and Control Responsibility
Management System. Additionally, the Group updated
the corresponding duties of each department based on
the organizational structure of the health and safety
management to comprehensively safeguard the health
and safety of its employees in its business operation
activities.

The Group conducts on-site monitoring of occupational
hazards to detect potential hazards in a timely manner
and reduces the exposure of personnel to occupational
hazards by continuously improving the level of automation
of installations and level of intelligence, and by achieving
strict enclosed isolation measures. The Group equips safety
and protective equipment and facilities for positions and
key areas that may pose health hazards to employees, and
provides employees with appropriate protective materials
to protect their personal safety and health. In 2024,
the Group spent a total of RMB8.01 million on labor
insurance supplies. In addition, the Group will conduct
regular occupational physical examinations and establish
an occupational health file, and in 2024, the Group has
achieved 100% coverage of medical examinations for its
employees.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 91



R - HERERRS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4. TR E¥#®)

92

43 WERERE(Z)

AREMESAEEEER ITNER
Zr SERBEEEEXELIEERE
BT BBRBSHEZ  RIEEE .
HREERERE EF L MESS
FRUERSEaEE LA IEER
HYESBIEEABENETEAERH
ML 2R EKE  BRBEHEZEEW
MEA - HERERR B TRKIE
EFFEEREE100% ©

SESEETABHBERREAMR -
202495 AF110 A EEE A H
RTREERER  FEHZERADM
B E BRI ANRE R 2MEORE
MiRE - Bt EIREEA 1418 HER
FEBNRTE [ SEAZEAES
O ERN RS - RISESE
B HF2EABSTA BT
RITRHFIIHR -

202498 EFBRIEREZEHE
MIEET  SEM12EBERERE
RNEEUSHSTRARAMERXERSA
TENE  BENBRS RHIEER
BERBER  EEERER BB
B EEHERARMESE %
RLR2RE68IE  HERREHR
E2HERZEE AR KMAETE
CHEERNRHAAESIBECERA
EMEUETRE  £REHERER
EERRIZE-

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.3

Occupational Health Protection (Continued)

In order to safeguard the health and safety of workers
engaged in high-risk special operations, the Group
launched the supervision and management of special
operations. Through on-site examination, operational
supervision, inspection of special operations with permits
and punishment for working without permits, the Group
has been able to raise the awareness of safe production
and safe operation standards of workers engaged in
special operations such as working in height, melting and
soldering and thermal cutting, and effectively prevent
the occurrence of safety accidents. As of the end of the
reporting period, the staff certification rate for special
operations had reached 100%.

The Group has been highly concerned about the
occupational health of contractors. In May and October
2024, the Group carried out the inspection of the
contractor’s health examination records, the wearing and
distribution of personal protective equipment and the
inspection of heat prevention and cooling measures. A
total of 14 issues were identified and rectified in the same
year. Meanwhile, the Group organized practical training
of CPR for contractors and on-site emergency response
training with a total of 87 participants, achieving good
training effect.

In September 2024, under the guidance of China
Chemical Safety Association, 12 professional internal
auditors for occupational health of the Group conducted
occupational health and safety internal audits for
subsidiaries, including system construction, occupational
health archives, identification of laws and regulations, site
management, wearing of personal protective equipment
and other aspects, and found 68 hidden risks. As of the
end of this reporting period, all corrections have been
completed. At the same time, we commissioned a third-
party professional company to test all positions involving
occupational hazard factors, with the results all lower
than the national hazard factor standards.
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4. Safety Operation (Continued)

4.4 Safety Culture Promotion
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Dongyue Group has actively carried out safety training
at all levels, continuously updated and improved the
forms and contents of health and safety training, in order
to constantly enhance the safety awareness and self-
protection ability of the employees. During the year,
we conducted a total of 15 group-level safety trainings,
including 5 induction trainings for new employees and
10 trainings for subordinate units, covering basic safety
knowledge such as major sources of hazards, key points
of management of high-risk operations, dual-prevention
mechanism, emergency plans and drills, as well as safety
skills such as safety observation and communication,
investigation and analysis of accidents and incidents, and
audit of system elements, etc. We mainly conducted face-
to-face interaction and exchange of knowledge and skills
with the trainees in the way of offline trainings, laying
a foundation of knowledge and skills for improving the
safety management capabilities of safety management
personnel, internal auditors, local managers and other
relevant personnel.

Table: Employee Occupational Safety Training
Performance in 2024

ER By 2024 FH

Indicators Unit Data for 2024

BT AR EERINEEH AN VPN 30.6

Training hours for all staff on production safety hour/people

R ARE 5 SREBAR (BRERIALE) ANEVDN 25.1

By employment  Senior management (Directors and above) hour/people

grade FEEEAS (KEXE) ANSTON 28.1
Middle management (Managers) hour/people
EWMET(R2EEAS RREERMEEL  ERBEI) KA 37.5
Ordinary employees (Safety management personnel, safety  hour/people
operations certification personnel, ordinary employees)

BT AT HEEEIIRE /N 17

Number of safety production training sessions per employee times

=R E D RREBEAE (BERNAL) /N 15

By employment  Senior management (Directors and above) times

grade FEEEAS (KEXE) P/ 18
Middle management (Managers) times
THET(X2EBAR L2EEMBFET  EBWEI) X 18.5

Ordinary employees (Safety management personnel, safety

times

operations certification personnel, ordinary employees)
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Green Leading

Dongyue Group actively advocates and undertakes the
responsibility of environmental sustainable development and
integrates green development into all aspects of its operation by
continuously reducing the consumption of energy and resource
as well as promoting circular economy to create a resource-
saving and environment-friendly enterprise.

5.1

Responding to Climate Change

Dongyue Group has actively responded to the climate
change initiatives of the Paris Agreement and China’s
strategic targets of “Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality”
by identifying risks and opportunities related to climate
change and disclosing information related to the Group’s
climate change risk management with reference to the
recommendations of The Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD). The Group has also given
due consideration to the impact of national climate
action and energy transition trends on the industry.
By identifying and analyzing its own climate risks and
opportunities, the Group has developed a climate risk list,
on the basis of which the Group has formulated targeted
countermeasures to enhance the Company’s adaptation
and resilience to climate change.
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Types of climate change risks
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Transition risks
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Policy risks

5. Green Leading (Continued)

5.1 Responding to Climate Change (Continued)

R

Description

BERRERBEERESIBLEERE
BELEFREEBHRRL G HEXE
THRELE -EREBTIH REEM
BERHRETESENR  HEEFREM
B A E X BT C KR IEE R
BRRBY  HHAHEERNL B -

With the introduction of national targets
of Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality
and climate-related policies such as
increasing the proportion of renewable
energy use, higher requirements have been
put forward for enterprises to practice
green production, build green factories,
and reduce the carbon footprint of their
products. Fostering a new trend of clean
and low-carbon industries has become a
necessary way to comply with the trend
of green development and promote
sustainable development.

Table: Climate Change-Related Risks and Responses

FE 4 it

Response measures

BB RRRHX HRBRAEA
B(t RERBRIEHAARTHH
BOEBLRINAE ERWAER
BIEHOEERS -

SERERERKE NMBEMERE
mER CEHEEMHRS -

Dongyue Group pays close attention to
the changes in policies and regulations
related to climate and carbon trading,
actively undertakes the responsibility of
being one of the “first power generation
enterprises included in the pilot carbon
trading scheme” and enhances the
ability to manage greenhouse gas
emissions.

The Group promotes green operations
by strengthening control requirements
of product energy consumption and
enriching the supply of green products.
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5. Green Leading (Continued)

5.1 Responding to Climate Change (Continued)

P

Description

EF kW5 R DR R R RS
ERAMERBKETFER REEER
R BB TN E K E @ e P g
- AFEEEREERPHOREL ¥
EREEHRAMGEENMGT -

Customers and the market pay utmost
attention on the Company’s performance
in responding to climate changes and the
carbon footprint of its products. If Dongyue
Group overlooks the increase in emissions
and the carbon footprint of its products,
it may lose potential customers, and thus
negatively affecting investors' estimation of
the market value of the Company.

BENZEBL (BREEF -BI -KRE
EMRR) EHREECHERTER
AOHCEBTHEEE HARELER
ERLTERMNER-ZEZEZRR &
ARAH I - ARIEEIH TE -
With the increasing awareness of
stakeholders (including customers,
employees, investors and shareholders)
for climate change, the requirements
on corporates to fulfill their social
responsibilities and in disclosures is stricter.
If such requirements were unmet, the
capital cost may increase and the value of
the Company may decline.

¥ 3y

Response measures

EEHERELRMFROBT - B
BAT R A 1FH M A B Bl B2 3R
BRERE BREMEE -BIF
BAERREERS  REFMHBLERR
BORNEM THEEREE NN
TRHGEE  BERIER - BIT5
FTRMITESM REREANZED
AERMGEERER

Paying more attention to technologies of
low-carbon operation and continuously
improving the technology and
equipment through industry cooperation
and communication for better
performance in environment, so as to
achieve low-carbon production. Paying
attention to renewable energy power
trading and promoting the marketing of
renewable energy power, continuously
enriching green power trading, thereby
to reduce carbon emissions. Focusing on
market demand and industry trends to
develop green and low-carbon products
that meet the needs of stakeholders.

RRARRERECEYS TE MRE
MERBETNER THREMRBE

B YRERAGEHNELE -

Carrying out works actively in response
to climate change, strengthening
communication with stakeholders as
well as disclosing relevant information
regularly and continuously improving
the quality of information disclosure.
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5. Green Leading (Continued)

5.1 Responding to Climate Change (Continued)

P

Description

REE e

ZEIRA FE ARZSETETEMN
2 PInER - BE - PER - BR-
13 25 B KR N B R U K R 3R R
KigS  BAREER  REENELRE
TUBRTHE - HM B 7 AR FE 1
IMARMEREM  EERAE—FRS -
The global warming increases the
instability of climate system. For example,
the increasing frequency and intensity
of extreme weather, such as rainstorms,
hurricanes, sandstorms, freezing and
extreme heat and cold, have impact on the
operating continuity of the Group. Besides,
the operating costs further increased due
to higher expenses incurred in responding
to extreme weather conditions.

RE{aIENEERREERELN
BREBTELAS - HERRA
Qﬁﬁiliﬁﬁmgmﬁgw i
ARE AmMBBELRART lzu
KEEBRREA BRI HEM.
BERMAE)  FEAREL %mﬁm
RIE - EREFE LR EBIRK -

Chronic risks arising from climate change
include persistent high temperatures,
drought and sea level rise. Such risks
may affect the Group’ s production and
operation bases and other infrastructures,
which may lead to higher operating costs
(such as higher utility costs, increased
cooling and heating expenses, more
equipment wear and tear, etc.), and thus
affecting the operating stability of the
Company, resulting in sustained economic
losses.

i
=
G2
4

¥ 3y

Response measures

*"ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ PETRNETSEE M
FE HEESBRTIREETE
ﬁ ReESmKEEN -

Evaluating the impact of weather risks
such as rainstorms on business continuity,
developing emergency plans and
conducting drills as scheduled to enhance
the capability in emergency response and
disaster resistance.

MEEIMMERAER #R2SE
ARHBTHRAURERBE - UK
BMREERE  MBREEL 2

Strengthening measures on preventing
heat stroke and cooling for employees
to avoid potential harm to their
health caused thereby. Strengthening
maintenance of equipment and
production safety measures.

Based on business insights and situation analysis, the Group had

identified the following development opportunities in relation to

climate change and actively explored the feasibility in operating, so as

to be a doer in the fighting against climate change.
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Efficiency of resource use

RELERBURE BRLERER

PEEEREEMA

Improving the efficiency of production
equipment, reducing resource
consumption, and lowering corporate

operating costs

HESMERRE Sk BESEER
RAAKNRMSERE  REERE

RRE

Promoting technological improvement
projects for energy conservation, water
conservation, and high-value recycling
of by-products to improve the efficiency

of resource use
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5. Green Leading (Continued)
5.1 Responding to Climate Change (Continued)

Table: Opportunities of and Response to Climate
Change

BETR IR EmMR%

Energy source Product and service

ERERREET BERBARESE SERREEFRR]OZBERRK

77 3Bl A 3 R 2 Ak R BRI i HEBITEREREYE

Introducing and developing new energy Keeping focusing on green and

technologies in the existing energy mix low carbon technologies of “new

through the procurement of green environmental protection” to promote

power, etc. the industry to reduce environmental
impacts

EEEEFTRZERBRER &

— IR ] B A BRI A A B

Exploring the use of clean energy in

production and further expanding

the usage of renewable energy and

production technologies

In order to better respond to China’s goal of “Carbon Peak” and

17 YRR (CPE - RELEBER  “Carbon Neutrality” and cope with challenges from climate change,
ER=REHMEE  UHRFEEZL  Dongyue Group has strengthened its greenhouse gas emission

BAZ A AR B UA S SRR

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

feREg -

management, aiming to reduce carbon emissions and climate change
risks in the course of its operations.
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5. #ZB5|E®) 5. Green Leading (Continued)
51 EHRE#L(E) 5.1 Responding to Climate Change (Continued)
R REEEBE=FRERBHEN Table: Emission of Greenhouse Gas of Dongyue
&R Group in Recent Three Years
BERE 2022 F 2023 2024 F
Greenhouse gases 2022 2023 2024
#E— Scope 1 1,449,811.39  1,716,567.84 FNFEvEyLtIvL)
#E— Scope 2 1,080,718.50 1,127,223.23 1,134,552.30
RERBHRE (HF) Emissions of greenhouse gases 2,530,529.89  2,843,791.07 | Akl
(tons)
BT EUCEEREBME Greenhouse gas emission per 1.26 1.96
(W, BTEEWRA) RMB10,000 of operating
income (tons/RMB10,000 of
operating income)

af Notes:

(1) RRBEBUEHEELAREEEBFRUE (1) The scope of data collection is the scope of the consolidated
pREE - financial statements in the annual report of Dongyue Group.

(2) BERBEENE (BB KB REHER ) The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 1) were from transport
YRR OR0m) BB A o /Rm KB R E vehicles and the consumption of fuel (petrol). The emission factors
HMEF2EZEEMERHMBERIFRN of petrol and transport vehicles refer to the “Appendix II: Reporting
2020 3 A FIZ 2 (Al B IRIR -+t g Guidance on Environmental KPIs” in “How to Prepare an ESG

RERME) 2 M8 = - IRIFAHEEN Report” issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
BEERESD - March 2020.
(3) RAEREHIWE (F2)RE8IMNEENN (3)  The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 2) were from

PR RBAERBRRBHEA(RERR
REHMAE R ZAREEREERE
(2022 FEETHR) ) KR BR S i S 1 (L 55 P
Z B & (IPCC) T % /(2006 F IPCC B K A
EREVRIEREITRE -

consumption of purchased electricity. It is accounted for in
accordance with the Guidelines on Accounting Methodology
and Reporting of Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Power
Generation Facilities (2022 Revised Edition) issued by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the PRC and the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories published by
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
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5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.2 Environmental management system

Dongyue Group complies with relevant laws and
regulations. According to the requirements of laws and
regulations, including the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Administrative Measures for the
Environmental Information Disclosure of Enterprises, and
requirements for standardized management of “Four
Standards Integration”1 system, the Group continues to
improve and implement its environmental management
system. To this end, the Group has developed a series
of systems such as the Environmental Protection
Responsibility Management System, the Environmental
Monitoring Management System, the Environmental
Factor Identification and Evaluation Control Procedures,
the Rules for the Implementation of Environmental
Management of Construction Projects and the Sewage
Discharge Permission Management System. During the
year, to further standardize the disposal process for solid
waste and clarify the responsibility of the receiving entity,
the Group revised 2 environmental management systems,
namely the Regulations on Solid Waste Management
and the Regulations on Environmental Management for
Contractors, so as to guide and regulate environmental
management in daily operations.

In order to strengthen the independent management
ability of its branches and subsidiaries in environmental
protection, Dongyue Group has established an
assessment mechanism for environmental protection
management system. At the beginning of each month,
the Group distributes a monthly checklist and requires
each branch and subsidiary to conduct self-inspection
according to the content of the checklist. In the middle
of the month, each branch and subsidiary is required
to report the problems found in the self-inspection
together with the corresponding rectification plan to
the Group’s Environmental Protection Department for
record. Problems filed by the branch and subsidiary will
be exempted from the Group’s comprehensive inspection.



- HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

5.

#Es|EE)

5.2

RIEEERAR ()
FRARMIRRERIBENETEE

ﬁmvﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁm \%@

ATURSTD Rt EES - 72

ARG R ERREME R BARR
BERN o

EEHE
ERERIEIREEEER Bt
REEEBRFBENENRE -REEE
BiGER  THEHRBIWEZ AN
HIREEZ A S EEIRRSE - HER
B R RE N R 2L 2R 0 2024 4F » 2B K 5
RIOXEEBEBHSE  RitHEd
BEREBERRINHERE101I8 - BR
KEPQOI% - SAAIEBETHERS
HE - tﬂLﬁﬂA AR &4
FE—RGAMRE  MEARTHE
BEK Vﬂ BEfE REESER
TEBTOK BRE T?F/?ﬁ—fw
H1E - RESAM6 A EEERIR
REBHFEREREE 1,544 A2
B ABE2ERAEHIETER-

TRAESA  IIREE L RRERE
ﬂﬁ@%l@ﬁ%% M*%%%
B HABRS THOSA  RIHE -

2023F R2024F EHFREBEY &
B - b TOKESA - BI7TESBISRE - B
ME*~ Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ%&%ﬁ%%
BITiRE  SRIEFRBELR -

5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.2 Environmental management system (Continued)

In the late month, the Group organizes a comprehensive
inspection to assess the environmental management of
branches and subsidiaries in an all-round manner and
gives higher scores to branches and subsidiaries that have
completed the rectification work on schedule, with a view
to encouraging the branches and subsidiaries to actively
implement the environmental rectification measures and
improve their environmental performance.

Hidden Danger Screening

Reviewing and supervision serve to guarantee the
improvement of environmental management system
and means of environmental management. Dongyue
Group regularly initiates and accepts internal and external
environmental audit and various special inspections, and
promptly rectifies any problems found. In 2024, the Group
conducted 9 Group-level hidden danger inspections with
101 Group-level and external problems cumulatively
identified and rectified, achieving a rectification rate of
99.01%. Each company independently carried out hidden
danger inspections, conducting a routine inspection
on a weekly basis and a comprehensive inspection on
a monthly basis. The inspections cover aspects such
as wastewater, waste gas, solid waste, environmental
emergency management, soil and groundwater, site
environment, and discharge permits. In May and
June of the same year, the Group held a large-scale
environmental hidden danger inspection campaign,
involving 1,544 participants, which laid the foundation
for the establishment of a comprehensive environmental
protection mechanism involving all employees. From July
to August, the first ecological environment protection
inspection team of Shandong Province conducted the
third round of provincial environmental inspections on the
industrial park. They reviewed detailed records, including
discharge permits, environmental impact assessment
approvals, hazardous waste ledgers for the first half
of 2023 and 2024, groundwater monitoring, routine
monitoring reports, monitoring plans, and records of
rainwater and sewage separation, as well as the operation
records of environmental protection facilities. Finally, we
successfully passed the inspections.
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5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.2 Environmental management system (Continued)

To enhance the skills of professional environmental
managers, raise our employees’ awareness of
environmental protection and strengthen the building
of professional environmental protection teams, the
Group organizes regular environmental training for
senior management, professional managers and front-
line operators in the workshops, covering topics such
as environmental compliance, energy saving and
consumption reduction, and the three types of waste
management, etc. After the training, we conduct online
or offline examinations for the participants to consolidate
their knowledge of environmental management. During
the year, over 600 participants attended environmental
training organized at the Group level.
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5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.3

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

Dongyue Group strictly follows the Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws
and regulations, continues to optimize the Group’s
energy management system, and adheres to the refined
management goal of “focusing on improvement in the
first year, catching up with advanced practices in the
second year, and achieving first-class performance in the
third year”, takes various measures to strengthen the
energy management, and comprehensively improves the
efficiency of energy utilization. In 2024, we have fully
achieved the comprehensive energy consumption targets
for various products and actively formulated energy
consumption targets for the next year. In 2025, Dongyue
Group intends to achieve the energy consumption per
unit of product not exceeding 0.26 ton of standard coal
for Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd., 0.83 ton of
standard coal for Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.,
and 0.18 ton of standard coal for Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd.

In response to the national policies promoting the
development of clean energy and the strategic adjustment
of the national energy structure to support China’s goal
of “carbon peak and carbon neutrality”, Dongyue Group
actively promoted the use of clean energy. In 2024, the
Group purchased 395 million kWh of new energy power
in market-based transactions, including 172 million kWh
of photovoltaic power and 223 million kWh of wind
power, accounting for 20% of the traded power, In
addition, Dongyue Group installed photovoltaic panels in
the park of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials
Co., Ltd., with a total annual power generation capacity
of approximately 180,000 kWh.

Dongyue Group actively advocates the concepts of
green environmental protection and energy saving in
its daily production and office work, promotes green
office and low-carbon production initiatives to enhance
employees’ environmental awareness and reduce resource
consumption. In the office area, we prioritize the use
of energy-saving equipment and rationally regulate the
usage time of air-conditioning, lighting and other devices;
during employee travel, we set rated fuel consumption
and rationally allocate routes to reduce vehicle fuel
consumption.
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5. Green Leading (Continued)

5.3 Enhancing Energy Efficiency (Continued)

R REEBE=FHEERABR Table: The Energy Usage in the Past Three Years of

ERER
Use type

SMNBE (TRLEY)

BRRERAEE
(TRE)

rEEe (8u)

BEE(TRE)

RAE2(BRE)
(W)

Al ()

5em ()

KAR (LA K)

Dongyue Group

2022FHFEE 20235 HMEE PIVLESCE:S |
Consumption in ~ Consumption in  FL&e]y il olelg iy

2022 2023 2024
Purchased electricity (kWh) 1,895,000,000 1,976,544,320 1,859,616,955
Electricity consumption for clean
energy (kWh) 336,100,000 394,800,000 395,000,000
Total coal consumption (10,000
tons) 67.7 79.97 72.95
Generating capacity (kWh) 531,488,750 629,920,700 606,038,500
Steam production volume
(self-used volume) (tons) 3,207,918 5,286,736 5,779,942
Gasoline (liter) 15,543 19,631 16,074
Diesel (liter) 13,447 15,153 7,339
Natural gas (cubic meter) 23,063,216 29,145,696 23,878,842

BEREE

Energy consumption

iR ReRE (MR -
BIEME 8-
RAR ~ /U~ 50H)

2022 5 20234
2022 2023

Total energy consumption (tons
standard coal, including
coal, electricity, natural gas,
gasoline, diesel) 788,521.74 852,923.30 784,978.23

BILEBEMRAER Total energy consumption per
(MR - B1E RMB10,000 of output value
WRIE & (tons standard coal, including
RAR coal, electricity, natural gas,
Yem, BITER) gasoline, diesel/RMB10,000
of output value) 0.39 0.59
e Note:
1 AR BARE Chm - £ RIERAR) (1) For unit conversion factors of non-renewable fuels (gasoline, diesel,
MEMNBERAFL2EEEHERINA LNG), please refer to “Appendix II: Environmental Key Performance
FR A A 2020 3 A T8 2 (Al £ &R Indicators Report” of “How to Prepare an Environmental, Social
BB REARE) 2 (= IR and Governance Report” published by The Stock Exchange of
FREBIEFERES) - WRPEAR Hong Kong Limited in March 2020, and the “General Principles for
A RERMBEZ B ER2020F Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption” published
9A29 A FIE 2R E ReFERT HBA) © by the National Development and Reform Commission of the

People’s Republic of China on 29 September 2020.
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5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.4 Optimization of Water Utilization Management

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the
conservation and management of water resources and
strictly follows relevant laws and regulations such as the
Water Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Action Plan for Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, etc., and strengthens the
management of water conservation throughout the entire
process of water intake and use. In 2024, the Company
has not experienced any problems in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose.

The Group has set the target of achieving a water
recovery rate of not less than 40% by 2025. During the
production and operation process, the Group regularly
optimizes water supply and water use equipment,
undertakes various technical renovation projects for water
conservation, water resource recovery, and recycling, and
prevents the occurrence of running, seeping, dripping,
and leaking through regular equipment maintenance
and other work. In 2024, the total water consumption of
Dongyue Group was over 13,890,000 tons, with a water
resource reuse rate of 98.72%, an indirect cooling water
circulation rate of 99.75%, a process water reuse rate of
46.70%, a steam condensate water reuse rate of 96.55%,
and a reclaimed water reuse rate of 47.60%, all of which
have met the relevant indicators.

Table: The Water Consumption of Dongyue Group in
the Past Three Years

AXKERZ 2022 & 20234 2024 F
Water consumption indicators 2022 2023 2024
FEIK #AKE (BE) 14,740,196 14,794,251 13,892,217

Water consumption Total water consumption (tons)

FREE (W BTEERAN) 736 10.21 9.80

Water consumption intensity
(tons/RMB10,000 of operating
income)
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5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.5

Reduction of Pollutant Emissions

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the
management of wastewater, waste gas and waste
materials, and adheres to the management policy of
resource recycling and comprehensive utilization to
reduce the three types of waste pollution. The Group
strictly follows the relevant laws and regulations on
various pollutants, and has set a target to achieve ultra-
low emission of the three types of waste by 2025, with
a continuous compliance rate of 100%. The Company
continues to improve its internal three types of waste
management system to reduce the emission of pollutants
in production and operation and enhance the recycling
of resources. During the reporting period, the Group has
not experienced any external environmental pollution
incidents or major environmental penalties.

Exhaust gas management

Dongyue Group strictly follows the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, the Regional Comprehensive
Emission Standards for Air Pollutants (DB37/2376-2019)
and other laws and regulations, conducting classified
monitoring and treatment of various types of exhaust
gas generated in each production process. The Group
equips its R&D and production sites with corresponding
ventilation facilities, strengthens source control of exhaust
gas pollutants and encourages the implementation of
alternative processes.
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55 WATHRIENRE) 5.5 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions (Continued)
BEREE(E) Exhaust gas management (Continued)
EEERBRKERERERERS & The Group has built an online management system
REBTEBARBEKEREEETD for wastewater and exhaust gas, achieving real-time
BBEERRY  WIREKERBED synchronization of data between the Group's subsidiaries
ERUEMRENE - RREHE ERBE and the municipal authorities to ensure the accuracy
WE - BEREE BEZEEETEIH and timeliness of waste water and exhaust gas data.
BWELDHT - B BEKAE DT H The system conduct s a comprehensive summary
L. BEENRRERRES D analysis of real-time emissions, exceedance data, and
B o data quality, automatically generating monthly analysis

reports to provide strong data support for the Group’s
environmental management.

R REEBE=FEIKHERER Table: Exhaust Gas Emissions of Dongyue Group in
the Past Three Years

BRYER 2022 FHERE 2023 FHEmE 2024 5HHE
Emissions in Emissions in Emissions in
Type of emissions 2022 2023 2024
Z &b Hi (W) Sulfur dioxide (tons) 146.72 135.10 107.14
AE by () Nitrogen oxides (tons) 294.12 330.64 216.75
EEE,/ 1 EE (W) Soot/dust (tons) 18.11 27.43 26.72
BRI A RY (1) Volatile organic
compounds (tons) 112.75 189.66 101.93
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5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.5 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions (Continued)

Wastewater Management

Dongyue Group has strictly complied with the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution, the Action Plan for Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, and other relevant laws
and regulations, established the “Wastewater Discharge
Assessment Management Regulations”, the “Pollution
Discharge Permit Management System”, the “Soil
and Groundwater Pollution Prevention Management
System”, and other wastewater treatment and discharge
management systems, and monitored and managed
the major drainage links in the process of production.
The Group has established and improved the drainage
network to ensure that subsidiaries of the Group discharge
wastewater into the park network on the premise that
the water quality parameters are in compliance with
the regulations, and strictly prohibits direct discharge of
wastewater into surface water bodies.

The Group follows the principle of “rainwater and
sewage diversion; clean water and wastewater diversion”
in classifying and collecting draining water. During the
year, the Group sorted out the “Management System
for Opening Rainwater Valves” and put up a poster of
relevant introduction of the system at each drainage
outlet of rainwater. We used both textual explanations
and flow charts to clarify the operating procedures of
rainwater valves, and provided corresponding guidance to
field staff to ensure that rainwater and sewage diversion
are managed in a compliant manner.
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Green Leading (Continued)

5.5 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions (Continued)

Wastewater Management (Continued)
Table: The Wastewater Discharge of Dongyue Group
in the Past Three Years

EmER 2022 F 2023 F 2024 F
The types of emissions 2022 2023 2024
JE K BEKEERR B 2 (HR) 3,875,779 4,272,622 4,412,545
Wastewater Total discharge of wastewater (tons)
CODHERE (HE) 56.4 54.1 54.4
COD emissions (tons)
SAPEHM=E (uE) 1.54 1.4 0.911
Ammonia nitrogen emissions (tons)
Elfg e 12 Solid Waste Management

RESEHERENETEBNDE
BIE - REBE(REARKAMBE R E
WIsRBRE AR EMITTFS
REFIREXEREYEREERE)
FHEMRE  KEREDD RERE
MM —REY - B AFHACE
BENEERE) S —RIIEENE
ENRESE EREEEENER
RENRE  HHREREEBENER
ERMA -

REEEELENGCREDEIERRE
R152a & (L7l « B F&F « SCREGH
BEfE LBl - IEEARIK - BEHIHRE -
HEEREY  RMOBRECEEREE
Belk ZABGCRENKEEE
ME=ZHEEERBETEDHRE -
BRMEE -8 —MEE SEZE
FIREEPITEEE R AR
BE¥I100% A M EE - LI - BMIE
BG5S MABITHAR)ENR - B
REAAEE2AFREYERKEZA
B

Dongyue Group carries out strict classification
management of solid waste by classifying solid waste into
hazardous waste and general waste according to the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Solid Waste Pollution, the Standard for Pollution
Control on Hazardous Waste Storage, the Measures for
the Transfer of Hazardous Wastes, and other relevant
provisions. In addition, the Company has issued the
Regulations on Solid Waste Management and other waste
management and disposal systems to actively explore
resource utilisation of solid waste while ensuring that solid
waste is disposed of in compliance with regulations.

Hazardous waste generated from Dongyue Group
primarily includes R152a waste catalyst, waste molecular
sieve, SCR denitration waste catalyst, incinerator fly ash,
and waste oil. For hazardous waste, we strictly handle
the transfer record of solid waste and entrust third-party
disposal organizations with hazardous waste operation
qualification to collect, transport and dispose of the
waste. For the general solid waste, the Group entrusts
the environmental sanitation department to remove it
regularly, ensuring that all the solid waste is disposed
of in compliance with regulations. In addition, we have
completed the full substitution of perfluorooctanoic acid,
a restricted and phased-out substance, in accordance with
the requirements of the Action Plan for the Treatment of
New Pollutants.
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5.

Green Leading (Continued)

5.5 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions (Continued)

Solid Waste Management (Continued)

The Group took improving the comprehensive utilization
ratio of solid waste as its goal, and reduced waste
emission through upgrading of production processes
and optimisation of solid waste treatment technologies.
In 2024, the Group's subsidiaries achieved significant
results in waste reduction. By the end of the year, the
Group had implemented an informationization system
for the management of solid waste in accordance with
the requirements for the whole process management of
hazardous waste. The system can automatically acquire
key data on the generation, storage and transfer of
hazardous waste, and automatically generate a detailed
account of hazardous waste, covering various aspects
such as the generation, storage and transfer of hazardous
waste, as well as the disposal of hazardous waste. As the
solid waste system has been connected with various in-
house environmental management monitoring facilities
and equipment and automated collection terminals and
can bring us a comprehensive integration and integrated
presentation of data, we are now be able to collect,
analyze and utilize environmental protection data in an
efficient manner.

To meet the Group’s internal management needs, the
Group has conducted exhaustive classification for the
waste management matters of the solid waste information
system, which mainly includes two core modules,
namely “Environmental Protection Overview” and “Daily
Billboard”. Through these modules, the executives of the
Group and its subsidiaries and environmental protection
personnel can comprehensively and rapidly understand
the overall situation of the Company’s current waste
management, which can provide strong information
support for the normal operation of the Company and
environmental compliance management.



R HERERRE

. y

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

5. #ZB5|E®) 5. Green Leading (Continued)
55 AT HRERE) 5.5 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions (Continued)
EIREREY &2 (48) Solid Waste Management (Continued)
R REEBIOI=F—REEVERE Table: The Disposals of General Wastes of Dongyue
&R Group in the Past Three Years
ERIER 0256 RER 203FRES 2024 FREE
The types of emissions Disposals in 2022 DISSEINWIEM Disposals in 2024
BmAaE (M) Desulphurization gypsum
(tons) 0 14,232.02 30,223
BRERRE (M) Ash and slag of power
plant (tons) 243,890.90 268,367.46 167,499
SRR (E) Domestic waste (tons) 2482 245 260
Pt (1) Office waste (tons) 4.28 43 5.0
B AYE (HE) Acetylene sludge (tons) 181,814.82 130,581.00 88,250
—REEMES Total general wastes
#mE (ug) (tons) 244,143.38 413,429.78 198,270.76
—REEEMEE Intensity of general
=E (M, 87t wastes (tons/
EERAN) RMB 10,000 of

operating income)

0.12 0.29

R REEECRBERNEBERE

BEENEERER
REBREZYES
Types of hazardous wastes
felnEmERE () HWO06
Transfer volume of hazardous HWO08
wastes (tons) HWO09
HW11
HW50
HW18
HW45
HW?29
HW49

Table: Transfer of Hazardous Wastes of Dongyue
Group to Qualified Institutions for Disposal

022FREE 023FREE 204FREE
Disposals in 2022 Disposals in 2023 IRDIE LN WIrL]

2,223.85 2,103.89 2,488.38
189.08 120.02 145.83
29.82 0 33
1,649.42 2,596.04 2,423.18
443.27 391.83 244.14
414.59 6,993.68 5,343.57
28,815.75 35,261.42 15,938.85
59.88 11.14 42.76
3,160.23 1,762.61 1,093.98
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Win-win Harmony

Dongyue Group places the well-being of its employees and
society at the core of its corporate development and takes
practical actions to fulfill its corporate mission. The Group
strictly protects the legitimate rights and interests of employees,
promotes their career development, continuously strengthens
employee care, and endeavors to create a harmonious, upward,
and warm working atmosphere. At the same time, we readily
undertake social responsibilities and actively participate in public
welfare undertakings, contributing to the construction of a
better society.

6.1

Protecting Labour Rights and Interests

Attaching great importance to the rights and interests
of employees, Dongyue Group is committed to creating
a vibrant, respectful, and growing working environment
that will attract more excellent talents to join us. In strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Company signs labor contracts with its employees
according to the laws and has always adhered to the
principle of equal and non-discriminatory employment,
treating employees of different genders, geographical
regions, races, and religions in a fair and just manner.
At the same time, the Company has formulated internal
policies such as the Regulations on the Recruitment
of Employees of Dongyue Group and the Guidance
Measures on the Employment of Labor Dispatch
(Outsourcing) of Dongyue Group to continuously improve
the Company'’s diversified workforce and fully protect the
legitimate rights and interests of its employees. During the
reporting period, Dongyue Group did not experience any
employment discrimination, forced labor or child labor,
and the collective bargaining agreement covered 100% of
its employees.
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.1

Protecting Labour Rights and Interests (Continued)

The Group continues to deepen the Dongyue E+ Smart
Court construction, which contributes to the protection
of the rights and interests of its employees. During
the year, the Group, in cooperation with the Political
and Law Committee of the CPC Huantai County Party
Committee as well as the Public Security Bureau, the
People’s Procuratorate, the People’s Court and judicial
administrative authorities, established the first enterprise
legal affairs workshop in Huantai County, which served
as a demonstration model at the county level and a
bridge to connect the Group and the judicial authorities.
In the meantime, the Group had five online connections
with judicial and administrative authorities at various
levels through the Dongyue E+ Smart Court, which fully
reported and showcased the construction achievements of
the Group and the Dongyue E+ Smart Court. Meanwhile,
the Group has actively coordinated with the courts
and banks through the labor dispute coordination and
joint handling team to successfully mediate two cases
involving economic disputes related to overdue credit card
payments by employees and suspected credit card fraud.
The Group always focuses on the source of disputes
and conflicts while striving to build a solid firewall for
legal compliance and risk prevention, so as to ensure the
Company'’s sound development and protect the rights and
interests of employees.

By establishing a comprehensive recruitment system, the
Group proactively shoulders the social responsibility for
talent recruitment and cultivation, and has constructed
a harmonious and stable labour relationship and created
diversified workplaces by means of internal transfers,
internal promotions and external recruitments. In 2024,
the Group recruited a total of 98 undergraduates,
24 masters and 2 professionals. As of the end of the
reporting period, the Group had a total of 6,922
employees, all from Mainland China and entering into
labour contracts with the Group. The loss of employees
was 394.
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

Protecting Labour Rights and Interests (Continued)

R REEE22024F8TERER
Table: The Employee Structure of Dongyue Group in 2024

RUREIHNET AR
Number of Employees by Gender

890

BN

= 6032

58T ZRT
Male employees Female employees

RFRESNETAH
Number of Employees by Age

569 ~ /1

=

2,226 (

= 30/EFAT 31-40/E %
Aged under 30 Aged between 31-40

= 41-50 = 50/E5R0A L
Aged between 41-50  Aged over 50

/56

N 2371

114 HE&£EERAF —B-NEFR

REREINET AR
Number of Employees by Grade

90 —_ 955

o

N\~ 5877
BB RIA LR BT EHRET
Directors and above Managers Managers
BREEEINET AR

Number of Employees by Household Registration

520 N

N 6402

= HEEmAEET SMBFFEE T
Staff with local Staff without local
household registration  household registration
of Zibo
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6. MHEHE® 6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.1 RELIERE) 6.1 Protecting Labour Rights and Interests (Continued)

RREEEM2024FETREAER
Table: Employee Turnover Rate of Dongyue Group in 2024

BRERIEDE I RALE REREDETIRKLE
Employee Turnover Rate by Gender Employee Turnover Rate by Grade
100% 100% 97%
87% 90%
80% 80%
70%
60% 60%
50%
40% 40%
30%
20% 139 20%
10% 0 3%
0% 0% -
BET ZET MENAL gBXE EBRET
= 58T ZET m BER LA HETE wmE@BET
Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
REREPETIRALER
Employee Turnover Rate by Age
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50% 47%
40% 36%
30%
20% 13%

10% .
30/8p% 31-40 41-50 50EB%
AR A 53 AL

= 30[EBIAT 31-40/E5%
Aged under 30 Aged between 31-40
= 41-505% = 50/F5RA L

Aged between 41-50  Aged over 50
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6.2 BhYHEIRRE

RESEERET(hEARKLME
BERBRSHBER BLBR
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EEBIE)ETERTEE RELHE
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BER)KEEANERRERER
BER)MEIMNEREREZN
SEFIE TREAFESR  MEER
REYREY SN HRGR— - ERE
HEERRPEEREDNT 20245 B
ANEIREESE  ABFERTS5KTA
NERBERERTESH]  FEHEH
mEBRREER  SEAETRENHA
BAEPPI B G AR - BBBIE ) B RIR
B ARG IR R - A PR IR
AL SEENINELEERE
6EREFRLEFSEI S RFEES
hoBAMARTETRESES
RATEIMNEERREAGERE
DEPHHETESERERKRENE
XER-

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.2 Promoting Staff Development

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the Vocational
Education Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other relevant regulations, establishing a practical and
forward-looking diversified employee development and
training system to comprehensively support staff growth.
In 2024, the Group revised and improved the Academic
and Professional Qualification Subsidy Policy for Employees
(B I 27 B AL B 12 %1 ) to solidify institutional
support for their personal capacity enhancement. Aligned
with the overarching objectives outlined in the Guidelines
for Deepening Human Resources Reform of Dongyue
Group and the Supporting Incentive Scheme for Human
Resources Reform, the Group implemented a tiered
evaluation mechanism to accelerate reform efficiency
and benefit synergies across all production workshops.
Organized by the Human Resources Department, five
Human Resources Reform Tier Assessment Meetings (A
NERMERERTEEE) were conducted in 2024,
with evaluation panel comprising senior leaders from the
relevant departments of Group General Management
Department and the Group General Operations
Department. Through rigorous defense sessions, detailed
on-site inquiries, and comprehensive evaluations by
the evaluation panel, 31 production workshops and 6
maintenance centers of the Group participated in the
assessments. This initiative has significantly expanded
career advancement channels while elevating employees’
professional skills and holistic competencies, ensuring
sustainable career development within the Group.
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.2 Promoting Staff Development (Continued)

EEFEEMBE TN TR B
ETRELZEZHEMNEIIRE BB
BEEE - 2024 FF - BRAEEINAE
TN ITIER MR EI R TT - FIIF L
IRFTFEEFIFTE - SIS B 2 A
DIREFA - WERFARESERFH
BREBIANRBERMAERET R B
R EE I REME R E - EE
HEFIIFE  —RERMEEHEIIRAD
BENE BREIEAMMERBANRR
WIS WERASM  RALE
E—% AEEE2ISEEIEHETE
MEE ERWMEITE  —2HM
OB ESEMMBRAEESIE
B HEARZELCRIRE 278
RTRKRBNEBIBA4200AR D=F
RmAR 15618 - WEFR RS R A
PR 2 5 78 98 f& - H A 82 [ i R #k B
BRI - RS EFPHREMNER
26035 X BB T RE TG 0 7T
HERBTTFHE D =EWS6D B
EFRFA T 3.2% © 750 B M
FIE B R AR -

2024 - EEHEBHEEREFN180
5 BE16EEE E HEZHE
ReENMEEREFEREAMEY
83 - NAIPMEIEEFIG225 BE
A EEE - EEEEHUBEEREATF
Mt FEFEREI2M  IERE
169F9 » HET L H BB 195 -
MR FE 523815 0 B E63,494
AR EFE2EEHERTHHBA
85%  FHF 4 F K 50.66/
FEERE-BILEI - TE2ERR -
BREEE BE RERHEI - H
EEE ARE)NERE - AFEE
Bl/ASENEZ 71,100 AKX °

The Group has reinforced its employee training framework
by offering diversified programs and optimizing learning
channels. In 2024, we enhanced the planning and
execution of training initiatives through meticulous
monthly breakdowns of annual targets and multi-tier
needs assessments conducted by the Training Center,
ensuring that training content closely matches actual
needs and focusing on training quality and effectiveness.
For specialized training, firstly, we place great emphasis
on the quality of our training faculty by inviting industry
experts and two-tier internal trainers within the Group to
conduct training sessions. These sessions are organized
at the workshop level, delving deep into frontline
production to provide more direct and effective support for
comprehensive workshop process training. Secondly, we
fully leverage the expertise of top professionals in various
positions to drive professional development, continuously
organizing experience sharing sessions. These exchanges
have benefited over 4,200 participants, resulting in
the sharing of 156 practices and the identification and
resolution of 98 inter-company operational challenges,
with 82 issues successfully addressed. Additionally, we
conducted post-training evaluations for over 260 specialized
training sessions, with an average score of 96.56, marking
a 3.2% improvement from the previous year, reflecting the
quality and effectiveness of our training.

In 2024, the Group organized 180 Group-level training
sessions covering 16 topics, including 8 annual expert
training sessions conducted in collaboration with
professional skill departments. At the Company-level,
822 training sessions were held, covering 41 topics.
The Group’s Online Learning Academy uploaded 372
professional courses and 169 internal courses throughout
the year, implementing 195 learning programs and
conducting 238 online exams, with a total participation of
63,494 trainees. The platform achieved an average login
rate of over 85%, with an average annual online learning
duration of 50.66 hours per person, primarily focusing on
integrated training, safety and environmental protection,
equipment management, electrical and instrumentation,
maintenance systems, policy learning, and compliance
training. The Group's training programs during the year
covered a total of 71,100 participants.
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.2 Promoting Staff Development (Continued)

R REEEEIHEIER
Table: Staff Training at Dongyue Group

BEMRE S NZIEEAR

Number of Trained Employees by Gender

890 N

= 6032

= 58T ZET
Male employees Female employees

BRI E DAL Z AN

Average Training Hours by Gender

95
90
85
80
75
70

65

m Bt g3

Male Female

118 HEE£EERAT —B-NEFEH

RESEBEINZIEEAR
Number of Trained Employees by Employment Type

90\

!N .

N\— 5877

mRENAL

Directors and above

BT TimET
Managers Ordinary employees

RESEHE DN AGZINEFE
Average Training Hours by Employment Type

95
90
85
80
75
70

65

AN PAE
Directors and above

R TE O EEART
Managers Ordinary employees
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Percentage of Training By Gender of Employees

0
13% N
N 87%
m 5 7t
Male Female

BRI 8 2 B Z AN B
Total Training Hours By Gender

73,785 N
—493816
m S 7t
Male Female

6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

Promoting Staff Development (Continued)

RESEHEINZINEDL
Percentage of Training By Employment Type

1.30% BN

I —1370%

N\ 8596
m AR IR E EBET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees

RESEHE D HNZIBNER
Total Training Hours By Employment Type

482,462 —.

LR IR EE EBET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.3 Caring for Employees’ Life

Adhering to the people-oriented development philosophy,
Dongyue Group continuously improves the Company’s
compensation and benefit system and the construction
of communication and feedback channels. The Group
provides a wide range of employee care and actively
protects the physical and mental health of its employees,
which greatly enhances the cohesion of the Company and
the satisfaction of its employees, as well as reinforces the
relationship between the Company and its employees.

Remuneration and Benefits

Dongyue Group continues to improve employee
compensation and benefit protection system. By strictly
complying with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other regulations, Dongyue Group pays
five insurance premiums and one housing fund (i.e.,
basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance, and housing provident fund) for its
employees in a timely manner. Meanwhile, employees are
entitled to statutory holidays such as sick leave, marriage
leave and maternity leave in accordance with the law,
and are also provided with benefits such as annual leave,
holiday allowances and free meals to reward them for
their efforts and enhance their sense of belonging. This
year, the Group revised the Academic and Professional
Qualification Subsidy Policy for Employees (& T £
JE B %8 %9 B & T2 % 2 )) and the Guiding Opinions on
Group Position Allocation (Trial) ({5 [ & iz 5 B & I8 38
BE R (A7), resulting in the cancellation of subsidy
eligibility for 142 employees. A review of management
(A series) and professional staff (B series) was conducted,
resulting in 107 staff adjustments to correct misaligned
assignments. Additionally, to enhance employees’ sense
of belonging, the Group increased contributions to the
housing provident fund.
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.3

Caring for Employees’ Life (Continued)

Employee Communication

Dongyue Group understands the importance of
communication with its employees and attaches
great importance to the opinions and views of each
employee. The Company focuses on building an open
and transparent communication platform, encouraging
employees to share their ideas and opinions through
organising surveys, seminars and other activities, while
providing active feedback on issues raised by employees to
ensure that the views of employees are fully understood
and attached enough importance. In 2024, the Company
organised 17 seminars on production, maintenance,
research, technology, management, equipment and
other professional aspects, and conducted more than
20 communications and exchanges in the form of
surveys, activities and meetings, as well as 3 face-to-face
exchanges with the General Manager. We understand the
concerns of our staff through surveys and seminars and
proactively identify problems. During the year, the Group
coordinated and resolved more than 50 key challenges
and pressing issues.

Employee Care

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, and provides employees with benefits such as
annual leave, holiday allowances and free meals according
to the Labour Law, to enhance their satisfaction and sense
of belonging. Meanwhile, the Group is committed to
maintaining a warm and mutually-supportive corporate
culture, especially for female employees and employees
with disabilities. The Group has instructed its subsidiaries
to set up “Mothers’ Cottage” to meet the breastfeeding
needs of some female employees. Moreover, to
celebrate the International Women’s Day (8 March), the
Group organised a reporting meeting on the Group's
outstanding female employees and a special seminar on
the care for female employees, where 10 redbanner pace-
setter were commended, and the director of Huantai
Maternal and Child Health Hospital, the associate research
fellow of the China Studies Centre of Fudan University
and the founder of the Home Education Research Institute
of Yunjia Jiaoyu were invited to conduct two seminars on
women'’s physical and mental health respectively, with a
view to enhance the happiness and sense of belonging of
the Group’s female staff. In addition, during the reporting
period, the Company paid visits to 22 staff members in
difficulty and provided each of them with caring materials
to enhance the cohesion of the Company.
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.4 Contributing to the Social Development

Adhering to the philosophy of “building hometown,
repaying the society, serving the country, repaying
the party”, Dongyue Group continuously strengthens
the investment and construction of charity funds, fully
leveraging its own strength to drive employees to
participate in social welfare activities and jointly build a
harmonious society.

Charity Funds

Dongyue Group continues to ramp up its investment
and development of the five charity funds in the field of
staff-caring, education, elderly respecting, scholarship,
and healthcare. It actively participates in social public
welfare projects, promotes social harmony and integration
through practical actions, and contributes to the
improvement of people’s well-being. During the year,
the Group donated RMB50,000 to the Nankai University
Education-Dongyue Green Innovation Fund in Tianjin
and RMB446,200 of condolences for the elderly to the
Dongyue Elder Respecting Fund, fully demonstrating the
Group's responsibility.
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2\
R REEELIAEESHERHBE

HEHeAB
Name

REBELES
Dongyue Staff-caring Fund

REHEESR

Dongyue Education Fund

Dongyue Elder Respecting
Fund

Dongyue Scholarship Fund

REHEBEES

Dongyue Healthcare Fund

B 3 B

Year of
establishment
2005 4

2005

2000 4F

2000

2007 F

2007

2000 4F
2000

2017 4

2017

Win-win Harmony (Continued)
6.4 Contributing to the Social Development (Continued)

Charity Funds (Continued)
Table: Overview of the Five Dongyue Group Charity
Funds

HRAR
Target and purpose

RARERES THETHRE -
It is designed to support the Group’s staff in financial
difficulties.

AREZBAHREHBRER OB NESEEKEN
B GERHBEFXERBRI0MBET -

It aims to reward teachers and students with outstanding
performance in local education, and donates over RMB1
million annually for the development of education.

AREFREMELET0RN EN2EEAZER200TE
A ERIRL o

It is designed to provide an allowance of RMB200 each year to
elders aged over 70 in Tangshan Town.

ARBEARE ILRBITAREEHBEXNERENEFET -
It is designed to reward the students of Tsinghua University
and Shandong University of Technology with outstanding
academic achievements.

AREHRESHRAREBR EaBEHRER B8 5H%
TERE=RKERBR  VERSEMERKT -

It is designed to provide financial support to three hospitals,
namely Huantai County People’s Hospital, Huantai County
Women’s and Children’s Healthcare Center, and Huantai
County Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital, effectively
improving local healthcare standards.

m
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6. Win-win Harmony (Continued)

6.4 Contributing to the Social Development (Continued)

Supporting the Education Industry

Dongyue Group continues to support the education
industry, injecting inexhaustible momentum into the
development of education industry. The Group has
established the “Dongyue Education Award Fund” to
commend and reward outstanding teachers and students,
and has supported the development of education in
Huantai County for 19 consecutive years. In 2024, the total
amount of the awards by the Dongyue Education Award
Fund and our Teachers’ Day donations was RMB1.51
million, focusing on awarding rural teachers and teaching
innovation teams, of which RMB200,000 was awarded by
the Dongyue Education Award Fund in Tangshan Town,
RMB1.01 million by the Dongyue Education Award Fund,
and RMB300,000 was our Teachers’ Day donations to
schools (including kindergarten, primary school, middle
school, and high school) in Huantai County. At the
“2024 Model Organization for Esteeming Teachers and
Education in Zibo City” this year, Dongyue was honoured
as the “Zibo's Celebration of the 40th Teachers’ Day and
Reporting Meeting on Outstanding and Model Teachers”,
demonstrating the Group’s solid practice of social
responsibility in the new era.

Contributing to the Community

Dongyue Group continues to carry out social welfare
actions, encouraging employees to participate in various
public welfare activities and contribute their own strength
to society. Looking ahead, the Group will seek for more
opportunities for making contributions to the community.
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BE 15
Indicators Details
A.IRIE A. Environment
EBEA1: BEHMY Aspect Al: Type of emissions
— R EE General Disclosure
BHABERIMAEREHMR  F/KERTHOEES EERBEEEEVNELESNBRMNE
SFHLERER

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste

A1.1 Pem e 5a K AR R B BUR

The types of emissions and respective emissions information

BHE (BE—) REREZ (SR ) B=mEasineE At E
BR)EE (NN EESEN  BERETE

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions in
tons and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility)
EABEBEEMEE UNEFE
BIERMGAE

5 ) K (40

Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

FrEEREREEDRE (UETE) R (WER) BE (WU EESE M -
BIERMETHE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
FrE] LBV HEIE B 12 R R E R E L B R AT ERERA) 0 B

Emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

Al.4

A1.5

A1.6 REBEREZERVNIIL
B IR AT EREN ) 2 B

How hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

APTET SR REE B IR R R EE

5 ) K (40

ER)BE (MAEBES S -

HEZH
Corresponding
Chapters

VRO SE7 35
FEH Rz 8t
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
Responding to
Climate Change
VRO SE7 35
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions

& 5 R R Z (L

Responding
Climate Change

AT R HE R

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions

A5 R

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
AT R
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions

A5 BRI

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
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B

Indicators

EEA2:
EiRER
— R EE

BRERER(BREEER - KMEMRME) BEER

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

15
Details
Aspect A2:

Use of Resources
General Disclosure

REASSMEER SEEER(WWE - foh) @FE (ULTFETR
REtE) R BE (MAgESEM - BIERMHE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or
oil) in total (kWh) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility)

BFEKEREE (WUNBESELN §ERMEFE)
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility)

PRETSZEVBEIR (2 M A as B 1R R R E B 5 & B AR AT RO 2 B

Energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

SKEGE AR LA B EMERE - ARFAFT LA AKERE B R AESD
5L B 1R FTERER A 25 B

Whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

X mPFABREMHNEE (CANEE) R(WER) B4AEEMLEE
Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tons) and, where
appropriate, with reference to per unit produced

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

7.

Stock Exchange ESG INDEX (Continued)

HEZH
Corresponding
Chapters

REAEIRKE
BLAXER
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
RE AR E

Enhancing Energy
Efficiency

B RKER
Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
RS aIRA K
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
BLAKER

Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
N K

Not applicable
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Ei-g: S HESH
Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
EMAS3: Aspect A3:
BERRARER  Environment and Natural Resources
— PRI R General Disclosure
BERAARHRFERRAEREKNEAZENBR e RARE b
RIEEEBR
ReEeRaE
B RKERE
A5 RN
Policies on minimizing the Company’s significant impact on the environment and natural Responding to
resources Climate Change
Environmental
Management
System
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of
Water
Utilization
Management

Reduction of

Pollutant Emissions

A3.1 EBEHHRERRABRNERZERDENEEFATZENTH FE¥T RARE b
RIREEER

ReeRaE

B RKERE

VERENEE e i

The significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Responding to
resources and the actions taken to manage them Climate Change
Environmental

Management

System

Enhancing

Energy Efficiency

Optimization of

Water

Utilization

Management

Reduction of

Pollutant Emissions
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B RXFTESGIEBEES| (@) 7. Stock Exchange ESG INDEX (Continued)
Ei-g: S HEZH
Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
EMEAAL: Aspect A4:
RS -2 d Climate Change
— AR R General Disclosure
BRI REHEERAEEHARESATENE RRIRIBEE TR e RARE b
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have Responding to
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer Climate Change
A4.1 ERAFAEGHBETAEEXENEARGHBEE - RELHTE FEH R # 1t
Significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which Responding to
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them Climate Change
B.#E B. Social
EBEB1: EfE Aspect B1: Employment
—MRIRER General Disclosure
ERAHM KRR  BEREN  TERE - BRE - TERE 2ot RERAREMET REELE Tz
B R FAEETHEE
(@ BE: K
(b)) BFHETABEATZENHBZEZLAONER
Information on: Protecting Labour
(@  the policies, and Rights and Interests
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Caring for
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working Employees’ Life
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare
B1.1 MR ERER (MEBRFEE)  FRERtEREDHNEBREH REELS T
Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time or part-time), Protecting Labour
age group and geographical region Rights and Interests
B1.2 BRI FhMER R R B 5 B E B IRALLE RIS THEss
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region Protecting Labour

Rights and Interests

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER
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Bt X FTESGIEE R S| () 7. Stock Exchange ESG INDEX (Continued)
Ei-g: S HESH
Corresponding

Indicators Details Chapters

fEMB2 : Aspect B2:

BRERZE Health and Safety

— PRI R General Disclosure

FARHZE2TIFEREMMREREEERCBELREN ZEEERER

(@ BUR- K BEEERE

() EBTFHBETABEARZENEBMZEZLRINEHR

Information on: Safety

(@)  the policies; and Management

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the System
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from Occupational
occupational hazards Health Protection

B2.1 BE=F (BRERFE)SFRAITHROAZR ML X 22 A%

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year

B2.2 AIBERIEER
Lost days due to work injury

B2.3 PR B R ER R L 20 - ARBERTRERX

Occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

Security Risk
Prevention and
Control

% 2 B fg
Security Risk
Prevention and
Control
= A g 1%
B 2 R AR PR
ZEXLER
Security Risk
Prevention and
Control
Occupational
Health
Protection
Safety Culture
Promotion
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B RXFTESGIEBEES| (@) 7. Stock Exchange ESG INDEX (Continued)

BE R HEZH
Corresponding

Indicators Details Chapters

fEMB3 : Aspect B3:

BRREI Development and Training

— AR R General Disclosure

FARAREBRITIEBENMBA R EENBE - HltFES - BhET#R

o EIEREE TREREENEONIEERE -
Policies on improving employee’s knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the employer.

B3.1
P2 d
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle management)

B3.2 RIER REEERIE S - BREE TKZINE TS
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category

JEMEBA: Aspect B4:

2T XA Labor Standard

— MR E General Disclosure

BHAGIEET S EGIB TR

(@ BER: R

(b)) ETHBETABEARZENERERZIRINER

Information on:

(@  the policies, and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced labor

B4.1 et R EAERARRE T KEH ST
Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labor
B4.2 TR E RGNS H IR A BB 5P ER AL 27 B

Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

R REBEN (MaREEE TREEES) A0NRIIEERE

Promoting Staff
Development

BhET%RE

Promoting Staff
Development
BhEBI%R
Promoting Staff
Development

RIS T s

Protecting Labour
Rights and Interests

RIZE Tz
Protecting Labour
Rights and Interests
REELE Tz
Protecting Labour
Rights and Interests
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Bt X FTESGIEE R S| () 7. Stock Exchange ESG INDEX (Continued)
Ei-g: S HESH
Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
JETEBS : Aspect B5:
HrEEEs Supply Chain Management
— AR R General Disclosure
EIRHEENIRE Lt g AR EBER sl B ERE
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain Enhanced
Responsible
Procurements
B5.1 ripEE R ERHEE b B RS
Number of suppliers by geographical region Enhanced
Responsible
Procurements
B5.2 RO EREAMRERNEN MERTAEENNHEREE UK sBIL B RS
BRABHNMITRERTA
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers Enhanced
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented Responsible
and monitored Procurements
B5.3 fu B AR HEEEGERGNRE LTS RARANED - LARMERER b B RS
TRERFE
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks Enhanced
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored Responsible
Procurements
B5.4 R EEREHRERRREEZARRERMRBHED - LAKRMEREHR b B ERE
TRERFE
Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Enhanced
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are Responsible
implemented and monitored Procurements
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B RXFTESGIEBEES| (@) 7. Stock Exchange ESG INDEX (Continued)

BE R HEZH
Corresponding

Indicators Details Chapters

fETEB6 : Aspect B6:

EmEE Product Responsibility

— AR R General Disclosure

FHFMEERNBREORRELZ S BS  BERBALEEUARBRA AR 2HEERE

(@ mBE: Rk RHARBER

(b) BFHBTABERAZENHBZEZELRINER
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress
B6.1 EEHCEXEMBHEPTRL 2 EBEREHMARNKNED L
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons
B6.2 EERRNE MM REIRFHE AREH A
Number of products and services related complaints received and how they
are dealt with
B6.3 i it BB 4 o K% AR PR NGB EE R R R AV 1B 151
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
B6.4 il E 810 B AR ME B 7
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

B6.5 BB BEEBBRRERLBEE - L RAAERTRERTE

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

Comprehensive
Quality Assurance
Enhancing Service

Experience

2HEHEERE
Comprehensive
Quality Assurance
R IRTS B85k
Enhancing Service
Experience

IRAERBERR

Intellectual Property

Rights Protection
2HEERE
Comprehensive
Quality Assurance
RITR%G 8%
Enhancing Service
Experience
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B X FTESGIE B R S| (@) 7. Stock Exchange ESG INDEX (Continued)

EZ B3 HEZE
Corresponding

Indicators Details Chapters

JEMEB7 : Aspect B7:

RES Anti-corruption

— AR R General Disclosure

BEA TR - B15R  BGFRIERE - BEHESR

(@ BE: Kk

(b) BEFHBITAFERTENHBEEIEZRRMNGER

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

B7.1 RERMAHETARHEEREICDEENE SHLARETNERE R
FAEER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

B7.2 &b i i R BB T - A RAERFRIT RE R A
Preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

B7.3 HimMEERE I RHIRESE
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff

fETBS : Aspect BS:
HERE Community investment
— R General Disclosure

FRALHR2EXBEREEMELRFTENEREEB TS E BHLENFZNBER
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the
issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities interests
B8.1 BEIEREE(NHE REFE SIFR E#E b 8B5)

Commitment
to Integrity and
Compliance

BERELH

Commitment
to Integrity and
Compliance
BRHEAR
Commitment
to Integrity and
Compliance
BRHIEAR
Commitment
to Integrity and
Compliance

BERtgER

Contributing to the
Social Development

Bt EER

B8.2

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labor  Contributing to the
needs, health, culture, sport) Social Development
EEIHEMBAER (MR ERERE) BERitERERE
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area Contributing to the

Social Development
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DONGYUE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 138 to 258, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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HZEAREESEIBBGAMBHREAILAR
REBETREN  BETeHRFRERERN
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1. EBEZERWRE

BRI AR A MRS MR M RE25

R2024F12A31H EEBEFEEEHE
U R TE 4B R 49 A R #51,962,821,000 7T (£
5 FE Ug =45 A R %5 1,579,632,000 7T) M
BEREHEH AR 12,876,0007T °

—BmE - BEEERTRFPEWRERNE
BN T302900K - EERBEMPATER
HE SR KIBH AT RE R E KR ERE
MRERMEETEHFG BETRAERLHN
FERAMR EHEWFEBEERR FLEE
ik BRELEBR ERARREEHD
BHNEANcELEEEEFNREES
BE - EEENTSREAEFERFEER
W Bl & eree DRIBTIE EE R - M BB A
TR EEEE ([TEREERED -

TEE SRR R AR EH I
R BRI E BT EAEHEAY
BT R M3t RIS B R R T A N -
ETRNHMENEEmAERRBER U
RRTHANBLER -

EZHEIEBN2024F12831BME S
JEW R B R E T TR B I

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.

1. Trade receivables

Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had gross trade receivables
of approximately RMB1,962,821,000 (including bills receivables
amounting to RMB1,579,632,000) and provision for impairment
of approximately RMB12,876,000.

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days for trade receivables.
Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency of
provision for impairment based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement status,
expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and ongoing trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected credit
losses (“ECL") for the impairment assessment.

We identified trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
the measurement of ECL requires significant estimates and
judgements, including determination of whether there is
significant increase in credit risk, use of models and assumptions
in determination of probability of default, incorporation of
forward-looking information.

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment

assessment of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2024
included:
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

1.

Trade receivables (Continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Understanding the management’s estimation on the allowance
for credit losses on trade receivables, and the key controls that
the Group has implemented to manage and monitor the credit
risk of the trade receivables;

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2024 to the underlying financial
records and subsequent settlements;

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology, examining the key data inputs on a sample basis
to assess their accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the ECL.

We consider that the Group’s estimation for ECL allowance for
trade receivables is supported by the available evidence.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/
Standards/Our-views/auditre/

SR E L 2 2B R E N — 5

PEZESHMEKMERAT
HEDIED

i

FIHAESE
HEEZEERSP08158

F# 202543 A27H

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

“A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at:

https://Awww.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-views/
auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.”

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tse Kit Yan
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P08158

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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mERmREMEEBARE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE20245F 12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Wz Revenue

$HE A Cost of sales

E¥ ] Gross profit

HARARE M FIEaR Other income and other net gains or losses

SIEREERXE Distribution and selling expenses

TR B R 2 Administrative and other expenses

W7 AR Research and development costs

& — R E QRSO E2EH Gain on disposal of partial interests of
Wz an associate

HERBRARMER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

A& KA Finance costs

DIEBE R RIEE

Share of results of associates

RRBE AT R Profit before taxation
Frigfim s Income tax expense
FREF Profit for the year
FREMEEUE (BIX) Other comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year
ETEEFTIEE Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
BaaAA - loss:

BATFEFAEMEEY R
(ME R FHEFAEMEZR

Fair value changes on equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income

W) AR T A ("FVTOCI")
FAXERREHE Total comprehensive income for the year
THE&EFEEFER Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
wmH (BB
— RRFEHEA — Owners of the Company
— FEIER AR R — Non-controlling interests

138 HE&£EARAF —B-NEFR

2024 &
2024
AR® T
RMB’000

14,181,087
(11,114,506)

3,066,581

226,237
(437,188)
(734,857)
(707,132)

139,049
(100,216)
(1,357)
(28,071)

1,423,046
(435,549)

987,497

21,266

1,008,763

810,804
176,693

987,497

20234
2023
AREF T
RMB’000

14,493,323
(12,057,192)

2,436,131
269,157
(503,038)
(647,286)
(935,099)

653,171
(42,086)

611,085

(15,449)

595,636

707,793
(96,708)

611,085
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
ARET T BN S
RMB’000 RMB'000
THEFEGEFERETE Total comprehensive income/(expense)
Wik (BAX) 448 for the year attributable to:
— KRB A — Owners of the Company 832,070 692,344
— FEPERR R R i — Non-controlling interests 176,693 (96,708)
1,008,763 595,636
BREF Earnings per share
— EAREE(ARET) — Basic and diluted (RMB) 0.32
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2024912 HA31H
As at 31 December 2024

&E

FRBEE

ERE 1Y

EREEE

BEYME HERREZ
EftEE

KBRS R R B R

BIVEE

BRFERARMCEE
Was (M2 R FER A

Hitzmas ) 2lATA

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Deposits paid for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Interest in associates

Intangible assets

Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

RIETHIEEE Deferred tax assets

[EES Goodwiill

REBEE Current assets

FE Inventories

ERERG 23 Properties for sale

E 5 K E b e IE Trade and other receivables
EEBRITIER Pledged bank deposits
IRITEHRLR S Bank balances and cash
REBEE Current liabilities

B 5 R EH A N FRIE Trade and other payables
HIEAE Tax liabilities

HEaE Lease liabilities

FEIEUTA Deferred income
REBEEFE Net current assets
HEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities

140 HE£EARAT —B-NEFRH

2024 &
2024
AR® T
RMB’000

12,279,823
889,852

217,378
97,809
18,769

129,629
85,667
440,767

14,159,694

1,429,752
10,820
2,777,363
88,745
2,470,496

6,777,176

2,822,668
71,934
5,138
39,938

2,939,678

3,837,498

17,997,192

20234
2023
AREF T
RMB’000

12,193,145
866,630

222,722
469,130
17,345

103,174
129,339
299,024

14,300,509

1,546,407
917,316
2,493,357
143,859
2,547,297

7,648,236

4,500,284
11,449
5,198
42,858

4,559,789

3,088,447

17,388,956
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2024912 H31H
As at 31 December 2024

R
AT ERTAARGER

P
fii 178

EQUITY

Equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

RRBHA ANEGERER

Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company

FERBREER Non-controlling interests
BiER Total equity

kRBERE Non-current liabilities
EEFHIRAE Deferred tax liabilities
HEaE Lease liabilities

PRIEUTA Deferred income

2

2024 &
2024
AR® T
RMB’000

163,506
11,943,554

12,107,060

5,364,777

17,471,837

198,809
21,304
305,242

525,355

17,997,192

y

20234
2023
AREF T
RMB’000

212,196
14,582,025

14,794,221
2,144,188

16,938,409

129,481
26,851
294,215

450,547

17,388,956

KEEGH2025F3 F27 AR BRRETIE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

March 2025.

RER R
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EBEF EF
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

ERTREARS
Attributable to the owners of the Company
RAVE
HARA {1
2EkE BEE
ZRBIR iR il FER
RE  BfER BE  AMBE  RARE  R2BE  EBEE  FERE  REEA Mt REER EL
Share
Equity held for
instruments Statutory  employee Non-
Share Share  atFVTOCI Merger Capital Safety surplus option Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve scheme eamings Subtotal interests Total

ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARMTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTr  ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
el Hite) Hit) Kt Kt Mg k() Hit(s)
Note (30) Note (3) Note (b) Note (¢) Note (d) Note (¢) Note (f) Note (35)

R0BE1A18 At 1 January 2023 212,19 3935865 (1,680454) (32,10) 195,790 6243 1,950,342 (474850) 11,969,096 16,082,018 2411459 18493477
ERgR| Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 707,193 707,793 (96,708) 611,085
BRATPESAL B2 ERGL Fair value changes on equity instrument
BRATAZATERY athvToCl - - (15449) - - - - - - (15449) - (15,449)
ERRE(AR)/hEEE Total comprehensive (expense)/income for
the year - - (15,449) - - - - - 707,793 692,344 (96,708) 595,636
232 Transfer - - - - - 274 683,819 - (683,819) 274 107 381
ERRREIET Purchase of shares under employee option
BERG scheme - - - - - - - (240,893) - (240893) - (240,893)
2HkE Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (119613 (1,19,613) - (1196,613)
FEENBRADRANRE Dividends paid by subsiciaries of the Group - - - - - - - - - - (55,055) (55,055)
e et PR Other comprehensive income carred forward to
retained eamings - - 1,569,329 - - - - - (1,569,329 - - -
TGRS Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary
WEAAHENMER from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (542,909) (542,909) (115,615) (658,524)
RABENANER As at 31 December 2023 and
20451818 1 January 2024 PAVAL) 3,935,865 (126,574) (32,210) 195,790 6517 2,634,161 (715,743) 8684219 14794221 2,144,188 16,938,409
ERET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 810,804 810,804 176,693 987,497
BATET AL REREZ Fair value changes on equity instrument
RATEZATERE athvToCl 21,266 21,266 21,266
FR2ENREE Total comprehensive income for the year 21266 810,804 832,070 176693 1,008763
E4d Transfer 308,545 (308,545)
18 Rk SRR 7oAk (3 30) Completion of Shares repurchased
and cancelled (note 30) (3,408,040) - (3456,730) (3,456,730)
BEHRE Dividends paid - (155,609 (155,609) (155,609)
RELENBRARNSA R Deemed partial disposal of interest in subsiciaies| - - 4922 3001717 3,006,639
RIEREREARNSHER Deemed partil acquisiton of interest in
subsidiaries 86,912 (122,622) (35,710)
EWANELEIRRRER (i 36) Nor-contraling interests rising on
business combination (note 36) - - 163,206 163,206
EEBREMTRT Employee share option payment expenses 1204 1204 1,595 2,869
R20UE12831R As at 31 December 2024 163,506 521,825 (105,308) (32,210) 287,604 6517 2,942,706 (714469) 9030869 12,107,060 5364777 17471837
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

GEE

Bt 18

RIEFMEFSREE (EER])  ARBEM RO EER
ADREARBMAEE  HERRERDIRREZ A%
ARABERNEREEARERBRETIMOERS -

BOTEG AR 2 TS ORA T A

EATFEAAR 2 EREOBA TARBRERBE
AR IEERE SR EAE O A 2 A TEEA
Hip2EkEZRATAZ AFERFLE -

B Ot
EOHEBRER 2006 F TR 2 KEEMH -
[N

2007 F 11 A16 8 ARRIEREMARIEHITER
E{E0.13E L2 &A% 275,000,000 % @ MZEER TR
BEBEZAMZMAEAEERETRA—HEHE R
A - #155%4,000,000,000 8 F R EEON B L2 TR
% -+ #5575 E Mg AN 18 2= 400,000,000 7 T ° 742007 F 11 A
158 - [A) 3] A A% B % 17 275,000,000 B¢ & B E (E 0.1 75
TZHEREE - BESEBBDBITHRMNEEZ REE
B ARG o mE QR IEE R AR R 2 N E
=R AR EER 225 - BES 2 BB
BOREEERRAGESIR -

e

BREFEARKNE ((FE])FARBRERLEEE
EEERARRMIET AR  AKREZETHEKE
REVANRELL TR BERIECBRHEBRAZ05%E
A%TRE—FHHEzR2HHED - ZHEIRIEAKE
HREERZ2EERERGEZR  BRARXIEE
WREARF AR

ETE B

RIEPERREREBARMAEERZAR - ARFHE
M B RABESERREE @ EREE 2 R Rk
F10% 2 S EBNETE BERRFEE o

EEABRBRERESZ . M0 BEEGHENEE
NEMEAR0% 25 BBAE TSR - BETD
BRENE ATASHEBBERMAEHER ENt
EREBEEREEZRA -

Notes:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is distributable to the owners of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve

The equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period.

Merger reserve
Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.
Capital reserve

On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000
previously issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary
shares were cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as
of that date. On the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to
HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued
to the shareholders existing on 15 November 2007. The excess of the repurchased
amount over the nominal amount of new shares issued was credited directly to
the capital reserve. The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling
interests and the corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly
against capital reserve.

Safety reserve

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), some of
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside an amount of safety reserve
at progressive rates from 0.5% to 4% of the total revenue from the sales of
hazardous chemical. The reserve can be utilised for the spending in improvements
and maintenances of work safety on the Group’s daily operations, which are
considered expenses in nature and charged to the profit and loss as incurred.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the relevant Articles of
Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to appropriate
amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance
reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation
is not required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus
reserve may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and business
operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.

143

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024



b

RERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE20245F 12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

REEY

Bk A0 A )

HAEIER

BB A

AT AOFLE A
EIE AN B

Hfth i Y R IR B )

g 5 RNGRIERE, (FE)
HEMFERE

M R MRIBITE

H B E
ERREERE
WoRTF &

HEME  #BEkREEBR
VAME 25 45 B BV B 0 S AT
W - 2R MERERIE
HE—ME e R FMKE
HEMB AR EER

DIEEE R RIRAE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Bank deposits interest income
Realisation of deferred income
Reversal of other receivables

Impairment/(reversal) of trade receivables

Impairment on properties for sale

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Write-down of inventories

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Equity-settled share-based payments
Impairment on property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of an associate
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Share of results of associates

EEASBON ZEERERE
RS,/ (HM)

=

EHH 8 iR 2 MR D

B 5 R A MR HORA

SEFEUAIE I

Operating cash flows before movements in working

capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
LB 5 M E b FEUCGRTE (32 41), 82> (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in properties for sale
Decrease in trade and other payables

REABEWEZIEERM D, (E) Decrease/(increase) in deposits from pre-sale of

properties

Increase in deferred income

REMERE
B PS5 & IEMB

Cash generated from operations
Income tax and withholding tax paid

REFHFB/REFE

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

144 HE&£EARAT —B-NEFRH

2024 &
2024
AR® T
RMB’000

1,423,046

1,357
(25,908)
(39,938)
(25,441)

8,578

90,976
1,161,308
2,961
31,009
66,806
110,380

2,869

135,080
(139,049)
100,216

28,071

2,932,321

83,697
(437,614)

308,304
(610,199)

67,663
48,045

2,392,217
(320,520)

2,071,697

20234
2023
AREF T
RMB’000

653,171

1,659
(89,509)
(79,878)

(1,754)
(2,590
1,185,879
7,726
20,694
174,668
59,001

49,100

1,943,202
(279,363)
551,255
285,025
(719,686)

(241,784)
45,289

1,583,938
(207,988)

1,375,950
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2024F 12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

REED
BREYX  HENEE
HEME B RREBAEHA

HEFREEERBLEE
RS RIA

BEELAE
TEAEEE

BB

B IRIR 1T AP FR0E
Ui B et 42 X B P 5RO0E
HEMBATRLSRA
Om) 58

WEMBARIRERA
Om) F58

e e QA RE o R
Frig 58

B — R A T UER AR B

HERAFEF AR M@ RS

ZBARTARMMEHRIA

Wi AP ER AR MRS

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposals of right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

Purchase of intangible assets

Payment for right-of-use assets

Interest received

Payment from pledged bank deposits

Payment from acquisition of associates

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal of
subsidiaries

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisition of
subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of partial interest of an
associate

Dividend received from an associate

Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at
FVTOCI

Payment for acquisition of equity instruments at

ZBRARTEZ 3R FVTOCI
RETEBFTARSFE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
MEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EEMHEAR Repayment of lease liabilities

BELIERE S HITRMOFIA

BEBEASETRBERD
A FRIA

ENFE

EffAE

B IR R R AR

ETS’E%? HIENER T HE
B 8

EEI2t Hﬁﬁ&%ﬁéﬁuﬂﬂlﬁ%ﬁ\ G
B 8 X B RO RS ME

Repayment of repurchase existing issued shares

Payment on purchase of shares under employee
option scheme

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Disposal of subsidiaries without losing control

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary from

non-controlling interests

BMEZHAAREFE

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2024 F
2024

AR®TR

RMB’000

(1,793,555)

128,121

(4,385)

(2,625)

25,908
(12,549)

(40,876)

29,148

165,000
5,689

(1,500,124)

(5.607)
(3.456,730)

(1,357)
(155,609)

3,006,639

(35,710)

(648,374)

20234
2023
AREF T
RMB’000

(2,011,283)
190,296
40,694

(1,269)

89,509
(12,557)
(352,846)
11,364

(618,178)

6,715
39,203

(15,648)

(2,634,000)

(16,427)

(240,893)
(1,659)
(1,196,613)
(55,055)

(1,510,647)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 F
2024
ARE T
RMB’000
Be¢RERESEE R FHE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (76,801)
FYNRERERESLEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR 2,547,297
FEREASREFDRLER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
YEAR

B sRITEMR AR ® Represented by: Bank balances and cash 2,470,496
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20234
2023
AREFIT
RMB'000
(2,768,697)

5,315,994

2,547,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

— &R

RESEARAA ([ARAF]) R20064F 7
R24BRHAEHEEMKLAZHREER
A B EEAMAP.O. Box 31119,
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands ° R A & # A% {9 B 2007 12 A 10 A
REBBBAZHMBR AR ERLT -

ARAB R —EREZERRR - ARA ME
MEBAR (AMIAKE]) 2N EHE
DHENEERS FME A RS
Ko — S R B A S EL A o

HEaMBRRAARE (ARED 27
HIRARNRR 2T -

4 T
Al&s
FE - AEBCRMWEREBEKAR -
WA ZZE_NFE—A—HBRBNSHFE
BT A FR] RIS R BN B 75 3R &5
| & 51 2 Bl o B BR B 7S R 45 A & 5T 2 A
BIEBR RS ER - BE e ([FE
R R KRB o B A TR E SN
HMNZE 5 7] M 5T BB B 7% i &5 YE Bl
SR ENTEHAEEAFERBAFE
TEETHER  MBEBREREIRENRESEE
BAFE -

?%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%

A

= 2l

i
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P

2 HH

REE I RN E R E R ERZ FA]
BIFR B 7 5 E R AT 2R - AEE 5
AT (A2 5 TR BIRR B 15 3R 5 S R & 7 2
A28 BRAREREZEMTERMT
BHREEANSTRAREHHELLERE

KA BAHRRAERERTZE

General information

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O.Box
31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale
of polymers, organic silicon, refrigerants and dichloromethane,
and liquid alkali and others.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Adoption of new and revised IFRS
Accounting Standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised IFRS Accounting Standards that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
January 2024. IFRS Accounting Standards comprise International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"”); International Accounting
Standards (“IAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years except as stated
below.

The Group has not applied the new IFRS Accounting Standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new IFRS Accounting Standards but is not yet in a position to
state whether these new IFRS Accounting Standards would
have a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

3.
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BRETEHE
BERRKE

FAEMBmRDREEER G ENESS
BHHBERYE RS ERNST LR -
SN REMBRREREARERIM
BRAAEZ EMARAREERBGEMR
EZEMBE -

GAMBREDRELNALERY -
SBIANERE AT EATFEI AR
R EATFE AR R ERSH BRI -
B A —RIERAESREH 2R E2
DFEE -

NPEERAERRTSE2REREKRF
REZPHE-REEARRAERE—HA
BEEAXNZER TwxBBREEEEA
BRI AMEREMGETEEL G -
ME2EENFERNEEEXRETEE
HeEREEXRENREH  AAKER
MAEERABNATERSGEEZSR
B ZEGEAVBRERPIETER IR
BERZNAFEDRLEEETE  EER
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BELAF16FRBEANEERS - UK
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ERFEIERETENEIREERE
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HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
International Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair value through profit or loss and fair
value through other comprehensive income at the end of each
reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

—  has power over the investee;

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

— has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amounts by which of the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets, and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Separate financial information

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

—  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

— the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

— any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

— an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

—  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable; and

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as
at the commencement date. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and
are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

—  the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

— the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants of
which the primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
the current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings in the course of construction in progress for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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3.

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of the
relevant interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the
same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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3.

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassified to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities. When a group entity transacts
with an associate of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effective of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.
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3.

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to relevant cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established.



rE MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

EpN- 4 )

Mk HERRE ERAEEERBEN
INEFEERME ()

Al E S FR R A TR H SRR B E R E
BENREE -FEHEMEEK  BFRK
RenEEABAIR KRR ERRE -
ZAER R R BRI TISEE SR EEM
AR AAFBGEARRECRENEE
(KREELEM) WFERR

At EE (RS EEEM) WATKRE S
BEREREE  AIKEE (BRSELE
i) WREEREE AT B S5 - LEEAR
EEM-—ENEEENEERSELEN
MEXEERCEEENIME  AKH
B —dHReELEUNEEE BFES
REZARcELEUNEXREESLE
BESINERE ERZERSELE
R ey AT UL Bl & 588 - X0 BCRE B 1Rk - Al
BADEBEBRUIRLD DE TZEMD
EEEER) WEREE  ARIZLH
REFBELATEENREENAEEH
MWEE BENRKAEIEREERNER
FERLDERA (MAFE)  HEREE
(WAEE) RE=FEPHNHSE KNED
EEEEMNREBESBERLIOEEZX
BUSZARSELAEUNEMBEE - &
BERASERa PR -

R EBEBRNERER  MEE(RBRSE
EBfg-AReESAEM) FREERES
HE @RI Al e s g me k|
BErNSBEEE (REELBEML—HAR
TELEM) EREEFELEERRE
EiETEREE) WREE - AR B C R
BB an P RERR ©

3.

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group
of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under
development for sale are classified as current assets and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
both the prepaid lease payments for land and development costs
for the properties. Development costs of properties comprise
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to
the Group's accounting policy and directly attributable costs
incurred during the development period. Costs necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale. Cost of each unit in each phase of development
is determined using the weighted average method.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below) invest income are
included in the “other income” line item.

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the equity
instruments at FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank
balances and cash) which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at each reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition.

In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following
information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread,;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 171



rE MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

172

BEXETTEHE#®)

¢RI AE)
IR 15 B B 81 75 4R & 2E Rl 8 9 92 3 77 ) (H &7
ez m & ERE (&)

(i)

8 R AR I (&)

B LA EARIMA - BAHNK
BHEBE30AK  AREREEER
B W FHERIAKRE RIRIE I - BR3E
AEEAREMAFEENERAFTEY
FEan L RIE Blew o

AEBETHEZERUARIGEERRE
BARIEE MR E 2 Was - BERTR
(AR RERIEEEESEAY
GIEERINEN S N R

EHTER

FABEERAREREMNS  AEER
R BREHENTHIRT RS BEIMN
FIRENE BB ER AT KA R
FEEA (BREASE)ERCRE &
AREBFAFERERGR) BEAE -

Tiwm EX /A AEEIRS &/
EEOHBRIFROTERN  H
AEBEEEENABBENKBRE
MR ENTEERRE °

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

—  Past-due status;

— Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

—  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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3.

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefit

Retirement benefit cost

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employee’s relevant income and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed in the central pension scheme. The Group has no
forfeiture of pension scheme contributions (i.e. contributions
processed by the employer on behalf of the employee who has
exited the scheme prior to vesting of such contributions).
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefit (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost
of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another IFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share options reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefit (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium.

Shares purchased for employee option scheme

When the Company’s shares are purchased from the open
market for employee option scheme, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as shares held for employee option scheme and deducted from
total equity.

The fair value of services received from employees determined
by reference to the fair value of shares granted at the grant
date is expenses on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share option reserve.

At the time when the shares vested, the difference on the
amounts previously recognised in shares held for employee
option scheme and the amount recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision for ECL on trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment on trade receivables based on the expected
credit losses which uses a related loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Management reassesses the provision at the end of each
financial reporting period.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group's financial assets,
unquoted equity instruments, amounting to RMB129,629,000
(2023: RMB103,174,000) are measured at fair value with fair
value being determined based on significant unobservable
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and
the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating

WERZZEHIEEHZEIAN A TED to these factors could result in material adjustments to the fair
REAMAE - value of these instruments.

EERIBEE Deferred tax assets

R2024F 12 A31H » st& T ol 08 & b5 As at 31 December 2024, a deferred tax asset of
EZHELADATEERENS  BERIEBEE RMB85,667,000 (2023: RMB129,339,000) in relation to certain

BE AR B 85,667,000 (20234 : AR
129,339,0007T) ER A KB LG B RN
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BURR KRR Z R B TR MR K a F ok fE 3R

deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses has
been recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable

RENEHE MAEENERRRERM temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
w A DR SEBBTIE R - S ETﬂiin where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or
AR RAMEFTTOEERBERNLEEH - 8 more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances

AREEAEAEOSE —FTHEIE LTRIE which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a

BE - ,H\H#E/‘?‘iﬁxﬁﬁé‘@ i — R material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets

HIE R Em P HER may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes
place.

B R E Impairment assessment of goodwill

HENEEDRERAMGTESREMEE Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an

ZEeESLEN (K—HERSEELESMN) A estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
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unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating
units) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss/further impairment loss may arise.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to RMB440,767,000 (2023: RMB299,024,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 22.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share
premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

A= 5N

2024 & 20234
2024 2023
AR® TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost 5,142,591 4,856,363
Equity investments at FVTOCI 129,629 103,174
5,272,220 4,959,537

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 2,619,029 4,026,999
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deposit
paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and trade
and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The Group’s management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risks

(i) Currency risk
The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries
are RMB with most of the transactions settled in
RMB. However, foreign currency (mainly the United
States dollar “US$") were received when the Group
earned revenue from overseas customers and when
settling payables for purchases of machinery and
equipment from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts
the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while
taking into account its foreign currencies payment
schedule in the near future.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as

follows:
B5E =L
ASSETS LIABILITIES
2024 & 20234 2024 & 20234
2024 2023 2024 2023
ARET T BN SN ARETT NS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
510,090 204,905 18,808 25,949
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(b) BiIHEKEEEBERBEEKE)

5 R B (&)

iy EERRE
MR2024F 12 4318 WAR
WA ETABE/BZEI10% M
FTEEMAEREGHTE
FEBRBEIGFG TR EF
AR 849,128,200t (20234 :
B,/ EF AR ¥ 17,895,600
L) EBEABENETLE
MIRTTHEBREREUARE S K
H {h JE Uk FIE B AR TE N U eSS

e

BEERS FHEAMNRART
EERBRERNER  WHEED
FARERREAIMNERR -

1= B E g KR BV 14
EERREAKRENIZHFENS
BASEEX Y HEROER - N&E
EmEERREIEREE S REME
Woskog -~ EHEIRIRITF R SR IRTT 45 5R o
AEBEY ERHEEMERAmIEME
ERGERARMEE SR EERH
MEERER o
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2024, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB49,128,200 lower/higher
(2023: RMB17,895,600 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of US$ denominated bank balances and
cash and trade and other receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The credit quality of customers is assessed
after taking into account the customers’ financial position
and past experience with the customers.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had concentration
of credit risk, 12.80% of its total trade receivables were
due from its largest customer and 34.24% of its total
trade receivables were due from its top five customers
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
J external credit rating

J actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations

J significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the customer, including changes in
the payment status of customers in the group and
changes in the operating results of the customers.
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g

(b) MBEBREEBFERBEE)

1= B R R E G (&)
HEFIVANEENE S EWHRIE
(&)

2024 M 2023F12A318H - B4
g 5 RWHIEmERMNEERR & T8
FEEBENERBMMT -

A 2024%12A31H

BNER (K@ HER) Current (not past due)
BH—FNR Within 1 year past due
BH—F LA - More than 1 year past due

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is
summarised as follows:

As at 31 December 2024

FEHEER
Expected
Loss rate

fRE#AE
Gross carrying
amount

AR T
RMB'000

EiEEE
Loss
allowance
AR®T
RMB’'000

1,817,610
139,300
5,911

1,962,821

2023412 A31H

As at 31 December 2023

TEEAE R & RHAEE gistedis

Expected  Gross carrying Loss

Loss rate amount allowance

ARET T ARET T

RMB'000 RMB'000

BVER (AR H) Current (not past due) - 1,526,444 -
BE—FR Within 1 year past due 5% 40,067 2,003
BHE—F LA E More than 1 year past due 100% 2,295 2,295
1,568,806 4,298
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
agencies. Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these counterparties. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for pledged bank deposits and bank
balances by reference to information relating to probability
of default and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances is considered to be
insignificant.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits excluding prepayment,
the management makes periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The management
believes that there is no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group assessed
the ECL for other receivables and deposits are insignificant
and thus no loss allowance is recognised.
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5. EXEBREMERMEEBZRK 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

Rg) objectives and policies (continued)
(b) HBEREERERKXE(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
=B e ) BB () Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
HEib W B R FR (&) Other receivables and deposits (Continued)
NEFBMASZERRITER TG BTE The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
T 5% comprises the following categories:
Hitv @
ABEEFR HEul B 2 EWFEIE &E HitER
Internal credit Other financial assets/
rating Description Trade receivables other items
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
default and does not have any not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
1K [ B REEFEARRK - FEMEREERE — NREAEHREEESSE
B3 4 ] 2 B 5 IE BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Life’ume ECL— 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
ERRE BEHEAZRRE BB RESE FEMEREEEE — NREAEHEEESE
BimERBME BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition  not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

through information developed
internally or external resources

] k¢ FRAMELIINRRNOER - FEPEHEEBFE — FERRHAEEEHE —
B ¥ FRAREERR BEERE BEERE
mREE N
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
is credit-impaired not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
B8 BERARTEECEERE FEMEMREERE — FENBAREEEE —
BEERE BEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
s BREETEBAGENERENR  SECME © FE
ME - mAKEEEERTKD
RIEH B
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EE

(b) MBEBREEBFERBEE)

REE LR
EERERDECRRE AEEEE
VHBEEERAREARNAEEE
EMERBREREREKBDTENR
ERERRERBKF -

EREEXEENFERER - R2024
F12A31H AEBKREAMHIRT
EE5EE A AR 1,810,000,0007T
(20234 : AR#1,597,000,0007T) °

72024128 31H

BHREMBENZE  Trade and other payables

2023412 A31H

ESREMEFUE  Trade and other payables

5.

18R R

Less than
1 month

ARBTR
RMB'000

959,413

1fAAR

Less than
1 month

AEBTT
RMB000

1,925,280

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

1-3 months

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings. As
at 31 December 2024, the Group had available undrawn
borrowing facilities of RMB1,810,000,000 (2023:
RMB1,597,000,000).

As at 31 December 2024

okl
£k
Over

3 months
to 1year
ARETR
RMB'000

B1F
B5F
Over
1year

to 5 years
ARMTT
RMB'000

RER
HeRENE
Total
undiscounted
cash flows
AR¥TT
RMB'000

M12A318
WiREE
Carrying

amount at
31 December
ARBTT
RMB'000

AR®TR
RMB'000

678,714 750,723 230,179 2,619,029 2,619,029

As at 31 December 2023

#3(EA fafka3 AER R12A31A

12384 ER F5F  RERSLE BRE(E
QOver QOver Total Carrying

3 months Tyear  undiscounted amount at

1-3 months t0 1 year 10 5 years cash flows 31 December
ARETE  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
697,143 1,294,906 109,670 4,026,999 4,026,999
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5. EXEBREMERMEEBZR 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

BR &) objectives and policies (continued)

(0 2WMIANAFEFNE (c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
EREBRERN  KEEFD S/ Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured
TEREEATERE - at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
ERFATER  AEEEAAEM In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market
SGUBRHE RE=ZBETAEX observable data to the extent it is available. For
TABRGABBNITAMS - A& instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
HEFF =B MEMETHE - level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
TREHEBNAETZEeREE to perform the valuation. The following table gives
BRATFERER - information about how the fair values of these financial

assets are determined.
FABRRAYBHAT
LREE RTISIRENATE ATEER HERTRBREAZE EXTABERAUE BzHRE/BE
Fair value as at Sensitivity/relationship
2024 2023%  Fairvalue Valuation technique of unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2024 2023 hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs to fair value
AR¥TR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
BATEHAEM FETRA  ELTRA  EZE BAFE-BRRLREERT URE GERFRAFEECERAERNER Bals/ METHER
2EKHEHRATA I8— I8— BREERUAZNEHEES WA/ METHERRA NT68%Z985%  KAXHZHHREML
44,447 ZEEAREENENRE - METaERRLE 2

RZMERBEMETNRR EZRERMBL
EEMETHRIMEERATS S EEENTE
£ H20%

FEES R2HH

Equity instruments Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Income approach — discounted cash  Discount rate, taking into account the cost of equity  The lower the COEWACC
at FvToC instruments —  instruments — flow method was used to capture  (COE)Aweighted average cost of capital (WACC) or discount for lack of
- 44,447 the present value of the expected  determined using a Capital Asset Pricing Model, market ability, the higher
future economic benefits to be ranging from 6.8% t0 9.85%. the fair value, and vice
derived from the ownership of this versa.
investee, based on an appropriate  Discount for lack of market ability, determined by a
discount rate. number of research studies including restricted stock
studies by an independent valuer, of 20%.
¥ EHRA ¥rmk  FZE  WHHE—ERRBERNRT THITARNEHRHE- EHR5ERES AT
IE— RIA— ROE ETRARNRSEE - BEE R2HA -
129,629 58,727 RZMERBUMETHEE SERBEMEY REZTHRBUMMR
HEMETNRAERZHRSSEAEHRE BE ATEEE R
E ' B22.6% (2023 :20%) )i
Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Market approach—based on trading  Recent transaction price of the comparable public ~ The higher the recent
instruments —  instruments — multiples derived from publicly companies. transaction price, the
129,629 58,727 traded companies that are similar higher the fair value and
to the subject company Discount for lack of market ability, determined by a vice versa. The lower
number of research studies including restricted the discount for lack of
stock studies by an independent valuer, of 22.6%  market ability, the higher
(2023: 20%). the fair value, and vice
versa.
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EXRABEBRVERBREEEER
BUR (#)

(0 EWMIANAFEFTEE)

IR FEFAREMEEEEMHEF
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EOHMENEELATERE  tha
EEERMSE BNEERARE
t?tm AT E  RHBEBZ
RERNFENEEEES -

EZELFEIEHE

5.

Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

There was a change in the valuation techniques of one
of the investments of FVTOCI, namely Taihe (defined in
note 20), from income approach to market approach,
for the stake of providing better information of fair value
of the company by comparing with comparable public

companies.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

BA¥E

ST EH A

ZHE K

BARTE

Equity

instruments

at FVTOCI

ARET T

RMB’000

202341818 At 1 January 2023 152,849
4B 1S Total losses:

— REMmEERE — in other comprehensive income (15,449)
k= Disposals (10,671)
BE Purchases 15,648
RIBFIA Refund (39,203)
M2023F 128318 K At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 103,174

202418181
EERAIE Total gain recognised:

— REMEE RS — in other comprehensive income 21,266
W b — I BT BB A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 5,189

2024128 31H

At 31 December 2024
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6. WzmkoEBE R 6. Revenue and segment information
Wests kR B E m R HEE I - Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.
6.1 Wz 6.1 Revenue
BERPEHAWREST Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:
2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
ARET T BN
RMB’000 RMB'000
EmmREES Types of goods or service
HEETERD Sales of chemical product
=0 FI Polymers 3,824,967 4,552,407
LA Refrigerants 3,247,702 2,871,580
BHRE Organic silicon 5,212,703 4,862,426
“R R MRS Dichloromethane and liquid alkali 1,104,337 1,176,824
13,389,709 13,463,237
ENE Other operations 791,378 1,030,086
wza Total 14,181,087 14,493,323
WHETLEmR Sale of chemical products
HEEY 2 W MR IBER S E Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from
I ERIE) NERPHAHBEY the sale of goods are recognised at a particular point in
Bt EERBERER  —K time when customers have control of the promised goods,
BREVERNERPMEFPCEMEY which is generally the time when goods are delivered to
HIREE] o customers and customers have accepted the goods.

192 HE&£EARAT —B-NEFRH



rE MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

6. WERD

6.2
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AEEEBIHEMNELE D - [
ARBEFE (AIREERKEA) (T4
BERREAD BEMEE RSB MDD
MEABFENER T RERNELE
Bl o BTN B 2 B HE o

2

I

23
R

— BATMH

— B

—  BLE:

— ZEFERER K&

HEMER — FERHEERLH
DE B FMESE - Bk
DER —E R - PVC R ER D
=i JF CMERBELES

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.2

Operating Segments

The Group's operations are organised based on the
different types of products. Information reported to
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of products. This is the
basis upon which the Group is organised.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

—  Polymers;

—  Organic silicone;

—  Refrigerants;

—  Dichloromethane and liquid alkali; and

—  Other operations — manufacturing and sales
of side-products of refrigerants segment,
polymers segment, organic silicone segment and

dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali segment,
property development and rental income.
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6. WamkoEER ) 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
6.2 REDE(E) 6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)
REBIRZ2WMREE D E e W &3 The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
BRI © results by reportable and operating segment.
BZE20245 12833108 LLEE For the year ended 31 December 2024
EYERE: HRHE BEE C—ERRRGR EfbsR Hi 3
Dichloromethane
and
Polymers Refrigerants  Organic Silicon liquid alkali ~ Other operations Eliminations Total
AEBTR ARMTT ARETR ARBT R ARMTT ARBTT ARBTR
RMB'000 RME'000 RME000 RMB'000 RME000 RME000 RME'000
HiMgE Bxtemnal sees 3,824,967 347,102 5,212,703 1,104337 791,378 - 14,181,087
PHBENEE Inter-segment sales - 227130 - 25,400 12472 (3519,174) -
Bhs —HikE Total revenue — segment revenue 3,824,967 5,519,004 5,212,703 1,129,737 2,013,850 (3519,174) 14,181,087
pEES | SEGMENT RESULTS 508,088 806,356 101,668 372,161 (368,749) 141952
APRLERR Unallocated corporate expenses (5,883)
HE-MBANIAPIERZME  Gainondisposal of partial nterest of
an associate 139,049
LERBARZER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (100,216)
EEBELR EE Share of results of associates (28,071)

BERA Finance costs (1,357)

) Profit before taxation 1,423,046
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6. WERDHER 2

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.2 RENI(E) 6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)
BZ2023F12A31HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2023
85
BAFIE 2RH B R At bt k]
Dichloromethane
Organic and Other
Polymers Refrigerants Silicon fiquid alkali operations Eliminations Total
ARBTT AEBTT ARBTT N S AEBTT ARBTTL NS S
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HMEE Extemnal sales 4552407 2,871,580 4,862,426 1,176,824 1,030,086 - 1449333
APENHE Inter-segment sales - 2,608,866 - 29,559 1,182,577 (3.821,002) -
s — 28%E Total revenue — segment revenue 4552407 5,480,446 4,862,426 1,206,383 2,212,663 (3,821,002) 14493323
PHEE SEGMENT RESULTS 336,766 310574 (330512) 248,359 85,458 - 650,645
RARLERT Unallocated corporate expenses (20,109)
LECRARRERLIER Losses arising from the disposal of
financial asset investments (10,671)
EBENARE Share of results of associates 34,965
wﬂéﬁm Finance costs (1,659)
BRALAT Profit before taxation 653,171

DREBREL BEORRD LM -
HEBZRALEREEREZNR
wm/ (R LRERAZBERT &
DEBEEAE o WA EERRAZ
BIAMEE R D I M RAF AN ER
B e Hﬂ#*ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?&%iﬁ’]"%éﬂ
WIEMBEERREAZHRAMEE RS
Eﬂﬁﬁiﬁaﬂéﬁﬁlﬁﬁ © B 2 51 5%

DEEHHEETIRRITHIGERAE -

Segment results represent the results of each segment
without allocation of unallocated expenses, gain/(loss) on
disposal of associates & financial asset investment and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. No segment information on assets and
liabilities is presented as such information is not reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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6. WERDHEFR 2
63 EMBBERE
BT EREEEN

HE2024F K 2023F 12 A31H IE4F
B BERBE-—XFPZRBHAE

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.3 Entity-wide disclosures

Information about major customers
There was no revenue from a single customer that
contributed over 10% of the total sales of the Group for

B @ISR 10% A £ o the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
% Y Geographical information
REBERBINEEP 2 WHIRE P The Group's revenue from external customers by
BEFIBLT - geographical location of customers is detailed below:
2024 5 20234
2024 2023
AR T T NS
RMB’000 RMB'000
FE(EEE) PRC (Country of domicile) 11,872,043 12,295,769
oM (BrA EISN) Asia (except PRC) 1,518,776 1,354,130
EM America 317,499 361,932
M Europe 381,452 391,448
FEM Africa 85,765 79,738
RAFEM Oceania 5,552 10,306

14,181,087 14,493,323

M2024F12A31H KREEB S
95% (20234 : 95% ) WIE R B A &
(T ERELERIBEERIN LR
FE-FH WEEHNEBEEZLE
EOHIERDEENER -

196 HE&£EARAT —B-NEFR

Over 95% of the Group’s non-current assets other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets (2023:
95%) are located in the PRC as at 31 December 2024.
Accordingly, no information about its non-current assets
by geographical location is presented.
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6. WRRDEHER (&)
6.4 HirH|ER

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.4 Other segment information

BHE  ERRRGR HfpxH
Dichloromethane
Organic and Other
Polymers Refrigerants Silicon Liquid alkali Operations
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
045 2024
FAABRENEE: Amounts included in the measures of segment

profit or loss:

nE HERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 309,126 20,65 380,523 100,471 150,532 1,161,308
FRESENE Depreciation of right-of-use-assets 3,756 5,671 5511 1,189 14,882 31,009
BRAEER Amortisation of intangible assets 1809 760 361 = 2961
0% KERREBAE Impairment on property, plant and equipment - 15,655 119,425 135,080
BENERE Impairment on properties for sales - - 90,976 90,976
BARNGERE Impairment on trade receivables 4,591 3300 611 8578
REREERK Research and development cost 197,723 217,611 172,713 4,13 707,132
i/ (BRE)FE Wiite-downlreversal)of inventories 22,600 (2,148) 20,767 25,225 66,806
BENE BERKEEE/(RE)  Losslgain) on disposals of property, plant and

equipment 3110 64,330 24,663 10,253 110,380
TERETAEERRARY Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but

MIANBERREE: not included in the measure of segment profit

orloss:
HERBN TN (Gain on disposal of associates 139,049
LEHBRAER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (100,216)
Eli-HBENAEE Share of resuls of an associate (28,0m)
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6. WERDHER 2 6.
6.4 HitmmER (4)

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.4 Other segment information (Continued)

3%
TANBERNSE:

223
Amounts included in the measures of
segment profit or loss:

N HARRERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 305,020 315,320 332,709 111,052 121,778 1,185,879
[FRELERE Depreciation of right-of-use-assets 3633 5297 5,648 1,206 4890 2069
EBREEES Amortisation of ntangible assets 2828 1550 60 335 2953 1726
HESE -V E )i Impairment on property, plant and equipment - 49,100 - - - 49,100
FENERE Impairment on property for sales - - - - 47,084 47,084
BHEUFA(RERE)/BE  (Reversal of mpairment)impairment on trade

receivables 455 (1,736) (1,823) 3 481 (2,590)
REREENA Research and development cost 399,532 206,845 230823 45170 52,729 935,099
s Wite-down of inventories 36,207 90,314 433 195 4,869 174,668
HENE EEREERR Loss on disposals of property, plant and

equipment 11,671 39,744 3970 716 2900 59,001
THRETALEARARET  Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but

HASTERNSE: not indluded in the measure of segment profit

orloss:
SHEERE financial asset investments - - - - 10,671 10,671
Eli-HBENA%E Share of resuls of an associate - - - - (34,965) (34,965)

198 =®=E&£EARAFN —B-NEFH
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7.

HWAR AR ERER

7.

Other income and other gains or losses

2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
ARET T BN
RMB’000 RMB’000
H A Other income
BT A (BEEEG) Government grants (note (i) 89,697 124,522
RITFERAEHA Bank deposits interest income 25,908 89,509
HIFURA Sundry income 73,285 55,477
188,890 269,508
Hih s EiE Other gains or losses
E & ZRF5 Exchange difference, net 37,347 (351)
37,347 (351)
226,237 269,157
B3 Notes:

REZE2024F12A31BILFE - AEETLRE
18 25 7% i 52 BT 7 8 A R 6 49,759,000 7t (2023
F: AR 44,644,00070) © BT BE = Z
REBIL  HEERALAEEREHEEN
X c AEBETNFERREHNEHRKAEEER
B 2 S BT MBI RER A H MUk -

SN REE2024F 12 A3 ALLFE  AEE
T SR BT 4 Bh A R 539,938,000 7T (2023 4F A
R#79,878,0007T)  #IELE WP ELERAE
BHEX - AEERBEEAREELCEERND
¥ WERSBESEMAMA - ZSWUNEE
MHERARDERABETWRA - LR BEEER
BErAI A F IR B 1B R IR -

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised
government grants of RMB49,759,000 (2023: RMB44,644,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Government grants mainly
represent the expenditure on research activities which are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred by the Group. The Group
recognised these government grants as other income when there were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, in addition, the Group
recognised government grant of RMB39,938,000 (2023: RMB79,878,000),
which was released from deferred income to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The Group received subsidies from government in respect
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for manufacturing of
chemical products. Such subsidies are classified as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 199



y "N

e M RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

8. mERAK 8. Finance costs
2024 5 20234
2024 2023
INGL-ESA ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ME Interests on:
HEB®E Lease liabilities 1,659
mER Total 1,659
9. FIEBiFAxX 9. Income tax expense
2024 5 20234
2024 2023
NGBS ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BIEAT I8 Current tax
FEICEMSH ([NZEASH])  PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
— EBRFE — Current year 222,156 170,939
— BEFERET R, (HBEEEME) — Under/(over) provision in prior years 35,908 (3,596)
TR ER ([ IR ER ) Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 115,218 40,645
373,282 207,988
EERIE Deferred tax
— PR B AR A 2K ER 2 — Withholding tax for distributable profits
TEHAR of PRC subsidiaries 21,000 (148,000)
— Hitb — Others 41,267 (17,902)
62,267 (165,902)
Frigfifms Income tax expense 435,549 42,086

MIA S E BB IEA R AR A B S A B

BRBCEMRETE(TREMREHZED &
TEMSFEERKS  PEHBRAN
FRE A25% (20234 : 25%) » tEH TIEME
BB XEZENTRREMBLAR 7]
ZHH25% = 15% BT IEE 25 5] -

200 =E£EARAF —B-NEFR

Tax charge mainly consists of income tax in the PRC attributable
to the assessable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2023:
25%), except for certain PRC subsidiaries being awarded the
Advanced-Technology Enterprise Certificate and entitled for a
tax reduction from 25% to 15%.
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gy e )

ARRREFEEMARIZOME QR ARE
NERMEF AT CEREEERNE?2
BEEITGNEHE8.25% HERET - #iB2
BEBITA D KRN K12 16.5% TR E -
& ST R AR B B0 5 B B B A ek A
HEBIZ16.5% K& —BLR B o

REFSHESEWHRANESR  ~&EE
FERRAEREHRETMAMEN -

St ) S A 2 2 BORIRARRE DR
RATREEH -

Income tax expense (Continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong is
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

2024 F 2023
2024 2023
AR Tt NG
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 50 A ) Profit before taxation 1,423,046 653,171
LAQR5%) (R EFTBTEZRTEH  Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate of
HIAZ H (Fifsta) (25%) (Note a) 355,762 163,293
HEEREFTENMEHROTE  Effect of income taxed on concessionary rate (49,777) (36,384)
AR AT IE & Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose (4,564) (7,661)
AR BIESE Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 31,031 78,939
A SE A AR HERR TR TR B 1R Y Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously
HIEFE not recognised (15,210) (440)
BEFE (BEEAEE), BETR  (Overyunder provision in respect of prior years 35,908 (3,596)
REIF B AR D IREF Deferred tax on distribution earnings of PRC
RAETIE (FisEb) subsidiaries (Note b) 21,000 (148,000)
T IR E R (i sk o) LAT (Note ©) 115,218 40,645
2 & A hnEr kR Super deduction for research and
development expenses (41,459) (66,473)
HAth Others (12,360) 21,763
REEMBEREZ Tax expense for the year 435,549 42,086
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9. FBHHEX®

202

ot &x

(a

B5%EACEMSRBXEARRATEMEAR
ALRRESAFMHBRAR(RESDF))
RIURREBMBEXERAB (HAEED M
PRECEMSHRBE - IWREBWAMM AR
RA([FEHAD)  IWRREAEMHERRD
A ([RERAE]) RIURREFEENE RS
RAR(REEREDNMEHHEER15%
TEEBRGS MM ERXER -

AR 4R B AT % B R B 7S 48 B A 25 B B [2008]
FHF PEERE2008F1 A1 ARAE
EHEFPDRNBE - BREBEGNFREDERN
SNEERTSRA) B3R 27TIEA RGN IR E
BEMINE S EREBEERAADE I IENR
EHNEEFER - MBARRD RABF BT
TR EE AR 21,000,0007T (20234 : AR
148,000,000 7T) B R EFERBEING (G A) -

TS ER R L EE FEIR30% 260%
B R BRI - BIY) 2 85 S TS FOE R AT HR
S BIE L AR AR EREX
ﬁo

EERB IR IE N HIEE21 o

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

9.

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(©

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.
(“Dongyue Polymers”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd
(“Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the Company. The
income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Co.,Ltd. (“Huaxia
Shenzhou”), Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue
Fluo-Silicon”), and Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd.
(“Dongyue Organosilicon”) is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a
high and new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State Administration
of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall be subject
to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law Concerning
Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91
of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax
asset of RMB21,000,000 (2023: RMB148,000,000) on the undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries has been charged/(credit) to profit or loss for the
year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 21.
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10. FEimFl
ERHFEING,GIA) -

2

10. Profit for the year

y

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2024 &
2024
AR%TR
RMB’000
(a) BIMXK Staff costs
(BREESEMS) (including directors’ emoluments)
I&ERF® Wages and salaries 784,680
RIRETEIMER Pension scheme contributions 200,921
VARE 55 A5 AR 1 AR AL Equity-settled share-based payment
PANEN 2,869
Hith 8 TEF Other staff welfare 66,403
B8 T A Total staff costs 1,054,873
(b) HftpEAE Other items
M EE#HE GIAHEENE) Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales) 2,961
ZEEN BN Auditor's remuneration 2,564
M WRRBETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,161,308
CRREERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 31,009
HEWE KB REEERE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 110,380
BT 65 B Government grants (89,697)
Hth pe R R D Reversal on other receivables (25,441)
B 5 RN GIERE, (BE) Impairment/(reversal) on trade receivables 8,578
ME - HERFERE Impairment on property, plant and
equipment 135,080
WO FE Gt AHERA) Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales) 66,806
EHERZ 2 MERE Impairment of properties for sales
(FFASEERKA) (included in cost of sales) 90,976

20234
2023
AR®ET T
RMB’000

990,149
231,311

124,218

1,345,678

7,726
2,590

1,185,879
20,694

59,001
(124,522)
(1,754)
(2,590)
49,100

174,668

47,084
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1. EERTETHRAEHMH 11. Director’s and chief executive’s emoluments
RELEHEZ
ik E2 BETAL BAGEER  UROXAS 2R aE
Pension Equity-settled
Discretionary Schemed  share-based Other
20245 2024 Fees Salary bonus contributions payment benefits Total

ARBTR AREBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR AR%Tn AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000

HiTES Executive Directors
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong
BEXED Mr. Fu Kwan® - - ]
RELAED Mr. Zhang Jian® - - 48
REEEE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 1,200 7,565 9,068
THhREE Mr. Wang Weildong 6,000 10,840 17,173
BEELLO Ms. Chung Tak Lai® 1,234 - 1,308
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRB%4E Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
BRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
BEREE Mr. Ma Zhizhong
14,434
RiEEE
e e BEEL BB UROIA Hin B Fx
Pension  Equity-settled
Discretionary Schemed  share-based Other
2036 2023 Fees Salary bonus  contributions payment benefits Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTES Executive Directors
RERLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 16,276 - - - 22,420
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
RRAE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - - 144
RAWBLE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 8,876 - - - 10,220
ThERE Mr. Wang Weildong 144 6,000 16,276 - - - 22,420
BUKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 435 - - - - - 435
BEELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 - - - - - 204
BERLE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 120 - - - - - 120
1,479 13,200 41,428 - - - 56,107
(i) MN2024F3 A27 BBHERITES - (i) Resigned as an executive director on 27 March 2024.
(ii) M2024 53 A 27 BBHERITES - (ii) Resigned as an executive director on 27 March 2024.
@iy ~ R2024F3A27HEZTARTES - (i) Appointed as an executive director on 27 March 2024.
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1" EERFTETHAEHFMHN @)

EZQIRFRERAL  TAARATR
mE - EXHEEBENFTMEREERITR
B RHERB O FE -

LRATEFHNMES IR EEFEEARA
RASEEHAE®RZREMERE - £t
BURTESOMENAREERES
Prigfit 2 R METE °

FR AEETEREETRAEETSHA
TR ABEENBEREE S EA M
AREBENRS BB EE - EITHRE
H A EFHERE2024F %k 2023F
12A31BLEFENEAME -

P 5T -

0] BB TR IBEESHOEARRMEE

(ii) 2024 FRER B IR 19 A9 5 2 5F 1B R MY 3 35(0)
o

11. Director’s and chief executive's emoluments

(Continued)

Mr. Zhang Jianhong, the Chairman of the board of the
directors, is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. His
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of
the directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Note:

(i) Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of
the directors.

(ii) Details of the expense of share-based payment recognised in 2024 are

disclosed in note 35(b).
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12. TEEEFHES 12. Five highest paid employees
FA FAEELEERTEERRENEE The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
F(2023F  MABEE) EBeFBEIR included four directors (2023: four directors), details of whose
EXMEET1 e RFEHT —H (20234F ¢ remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
—Z)IEARREEHEZTHAEZRR remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2023: one)
FEENHFMFBOT highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

2024 F 20234
2024 2023
NHEE ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
TERHES Wages and salaries 470 9,979
I IFIEAT Discretionary bonus -
RIRET B0 Pension scheme contributions -
MR 4 E 2 ARR 19 3K Equity-settled share-based payment -
9,979
FARFEENERFTEEABRNME N The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
FLATER : directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:
2023 F
2023

3,500,001 7 7T % 4,000,000 7 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
9,500,001 /70 % 10,000,000/%7C  HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000
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13. ERER

ARRFEBANEBEERERREERF T
BT BERRE

13. Earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

following:
2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
AR T T BN -5
RMB’000 RMB’000
RABHEE NEEFERRF - Profit for the year attributable to owners of
AREFTESRERREEREF the Company, used in the basic and diluted
(AR®IT) earnings per share calculations (RMB) 810,804 707,793
gl 4=|
Number of shares
2023 F
2023
F A&
‘000
MERERREERNMEH Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
LimAR nsE & the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per
share 1,746,485 2,197,479
BREN (BRARET) Earning per share (RMB per share) 0.46 0.32

HZE2024F12831BIEFE » AAF
ERELERGCEHEME30MEED
520,978,000 A% J& 1 + Br MY s 30 FT 4 = &
h o BERE T IEAR (20234  RIEEERE
P =+ 2 B8 [0 33,923,000 A% P17 °

HE2024F K2023F 12 A31HIEFES
REREARBERNM S /L @A ME
FHE TR AR B EEE ARG
#%EH -

B ZE2024% K2023F 12 A318BIEFE -
A R A AR BT A SN AT AR o
HZE2024F K2023F 12 A31BEFEW
SREERT HETREARZFHERE -

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
completed the repurchase of shares and cancelled 520,978,000
shares as disclosed in note 30, other than disclosure in note
30 no ordinary shares were repurchased (2023: 33,923,000 of
shares repurchased under the employee option scheme).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 has been arrived at after
deducting the shares held in trust for the Company.

The Company did not have any potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023. Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 are the same as the basic earnings
per share.
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14. BE

2024 FEIRFTHIBLE 1 2023F K Dividends paid during the year 2024:
HiR B8 f%0.108 7T (2023 F - 2023 final dividend of HK$0.10 (2023:

14. Dividends

2024 F 20234
2024 2023
AR¥ T NS S
RMB’000 RMB’000

2022 F R EFAZ0.60/87C) 2022 final dividend of HK$0.60 per share) 155,609 1,196,613

MEE2024F12A31BIEFE - &
EFECOREFTIR173,271,1647% 7T (2023
F:173,271,1648 L) (BERAR
¥ 160,456,029 7T (2023 F : AR ¥
155,608,768 7)) &A% 0.1078 7T (2023 4F :
FRL0.10/870) Z KA B - HEZA R FE fE %
RAREG FEREAEETAESR -

208 HE£EARAT —B-NEFR

A final dividend HK$0.10 per share (2023: HK$0.10 per share),
amounting to HK$173,271,164 (2023: HK$173,271,164) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2024, equivalent to
RMB160,456,029 (2023: RMB155,608,768) has been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
the forthcoming general meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

15. Y% - HBRFRE

15. Property, plant and equipment

BF BERRE AE  BAREE EEIR Fok o]
Plant and Motor Furniture Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  and fittings i progress Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARET:T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B cost

720231 A1 8 At 1 January 2023 4,776,800 10,855,579 62,632 2,191,29% 875898 18,762,205
RE Additions 234,675 629,971 5,315 66,301 1,150,616 2,086,878
HE Transfer 269,442 321,723 - 141,039 (732,204) -
HE—HRBRA Disposal of a subsidiary (159,435) (9,146) - (10,683) - (179,264)
HE Disposals (116,656) (289,216) (2,844) (38,871) - (447,587)

R2023F12A318R At 31 December 2023 and
202451818 1 January 2024 5,004,826 11,508,911 65103 2,349,082 1294310 20,222,232
RE Additions 161,971 325,317 1,711 27,944 825,027 1,341,970
wE Transfer 140,075 599,169 205 144,836 (884,285) -
Yk — R B AR Acquisition of a subsidiary 176,658 99,421 696 2,912 378 280,065
HE—HME AR Disposal of a subsidiary - - (1,164) (1,445) - (2,609)
HE Disposals (211,564) (642,648) (6,838) (78,626) - (939,676)

72024412 A31 8 At 31 December 2024 5271,966 11,890,170 2,444,703  1,235430 20,901,982
RAMERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT

20231 A1H At 1 January 2023 1,200,071 5,050,036 40,577 939,978 - 7,230,662
AEERT Charge for the year 222,366 729,549 6,343 227,621 - 1,185879
AEERE Impairment for the year - 49,100 - - - 49,100
HE—HE AR Disposal of a subsidiary (64,990) (8,485) - (5,749) - (79,224)
B 8 Eliminated on disposals (57,725) (227,046) (2,683) (69,876) - (357,330)
R2023F 1283181 At 31 December 2023 and

202451 F1H 1 January 2024 1,299,722 5,593,154 44237 1,091,974 - 8,029,087
AEERY Charge for the year 231,417 728,914 6,555 194,422 - 1,161,308
AEERE Impairment for the year 5,174 - - - 129,906 135,080
HE—RINBAA Disposal of a subsidiary - - (933) (1,208) - (2.141)
HEREH Eliminated on disposals (84,377) (534,038) (6,561) (76,199) - (701,175)

2024612 A31H

At 31 December 2024

REE
12024512318

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2024

20234612 A31H

At 31 December 2023

1,451,936

3,820,030

3,705,104

5,788,030

6,102,140

5,915,757

16,415

20,866

1,208,989 129,906

1,235,714 1,105,524

1,257,108 1,294,310

8,622,159

12,279,823

12,193,145
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HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

15.

210

M3 - HEBEREE®)

R2024F12831H AREENHET
EFHANERERE EFEAEA
ANR#71,498,0007T (20234 : AR
166,588,000 7T) °

ME HEMREBEBERER NI
AHEREHINIRERARFIERMER BN E

EF 20F S FRHR (A B & AE)
23 K 5% 1 5-104F
E 54
RILREE 54

BFURTE L ERRIEPHEERSS

W% - EBERRERE

() BHERAEEESRMEMSBRESL
AN B 522023 FF K 2024 F 4 E b 4%
EOERYE R REBENTIRE
SRRMEITIRGT ©

TR EHERBREBEBRARE
119,425,000 (20234 : &) - %A
BEEEERNIEEER - HEEETK
[0 & %8 & AR #529,912,0007T * T3
ARFERARETEFENRFTERLE
RABE ZAVFERBLE=-F7Z
EMEMETHMG KANENEES
ABEBEEERKAMCERZER -
BIRRAE R EER AN _E 2 s HAE
RIRLE R - A BB ERA15% ©

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had not obtained the
building ownership certificates for certain buildings with
carrying values of RMB71,498,000 (2023: RMB166,588,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(i) The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of its property, plant and machinery of other operations
segment in 2023 and 2024 as a result of the deterioration
of the markets of the Group's products.

The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of RMB119,425,000 (2023: nil), that has been recognised
in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant
assets of RMB529,912,000 has been determined on the
basis of their fair value less cost of disposal using cost
approach, such fair value was assessed by an independent
third professional valuer. Key inputs of the cost approach
included recovery cost and economic depreciation rate.
The recovery cost equaled to the construction cost plus
funding cost during the construction period while the
economic depreciation rate was 15%.
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15. ¥ - WBERRE @)
M - MR RERE(E)

(ii)

HARAEBERMEMSRES(L
AN £ B 52024 FF K 2023 F ¥ 5 # pE
DEHE  MRERZENTKRE S
REHEITARET

R EHERAREEEARE
15,655,000 7T (20234 : &) - &% R1E
BB N ERER -

BB EE BRI RET A R MR
R -

REFmME  HREENATKEESE
A AR #10,058,0007T © JhEAMFE B
MEEAENAFERLERKAEE -
MBENEZHASE BB LETF
MERE - D BEFTHRERRE
BANREES174,0007T (20234 : &) -

R RREMS  HEEAENTIK
EleEAARESIC  JTHERERK
FEFENRFERHEXNEAETE -
RAER) E B8 A BUEBIEREIRAKA ©
EHED PEBRREBOREEER
AR #10,481,0007C (20234F : &) -

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(ii)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of its property, plant and machinery of organic silicon
segment in 2024 and 2023 as a result of the deterioration
of the markets of the Group's products.

The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of RMB15,655,000 (2023: nil), that has been recognised
in profit or loss.

The aforesaid impairment loss resulted from the buildings
and plant and machinery.

Regarding the buildings, the recoverable amount of the
relevant assets of RMB10,058,000 has been determined
on the basis of their fair value less cost of disposal using
market approach. Key inputs of the market approach
including the sales price of the comparative buildings. The
impairment loss of buildings of organic silicon segment
was RMB5,174,000 (2023: nil).

Regarding the plant and machinery, the recoverable
amount of the relevant assets of RMB nil has been
determined on the basis of their fair value less cost of
disposal using cost approach. Key inputs of the cost
approach included recovery cost. The impairment loss
of plants and machinery of organic silicon segment was
RMB10,481,000 (2023: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

16. EHEEE 16. Right-of-use assets
HELH HEWE W
Leasehold Leased

lands properties Total
ARBTIT AREFTT AR%®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202341818 At 1 January 2023 916,981 6,182 923,163
NE Additions 1,351 3,491 4,842
HE Disposals (33,271) (7,410) (40,681)
TEER Depreciation charge (19,574) (1,120) (20,694)

R2023F12A318 K At 31 December 2023 and
202441 A1H 1 January 2024 865,487 1,143 866,630
NE Additions 2,625 - 2,625
W g — KB B~ & Acquire of a subsidiary 51,394 212 51,606
TEER Depreciation charge (29,795) (1,214) (31,009)
2024912 A318 At 31 December 2024 889,711 141 889,852

212

HET 2 MLUNTEARMLERN - B
Rt el s ABUS BB b 8 A LA
RRIHXERMNERHESENSEE T
Rt -

EAETHMEAEIREEESFZ -2
202412 A31 B - REE M AREISE TR
HMEAARBEZIL(2023F : ARBZ L)
MEARET HMEBEE -

HZE2024F12A31HILFEFE - HERS
T 4258 A AR #55,607,000 7T (2023 4F ¢
ANE#16,427,0007T) ©

PREFEMS AEEREEREZE
WAE - HEANERITNETHRA =
ZF(2023F  —E=4F) - HEGEZK IR
BEBIE R - W TR AR B AFH
FRETHERIFETIREAENRE
B AEBEEAAGANEETEETEON
ATEATTHARR o

HEEEBRAR —ZE-WEER

The leased land is all within the territory of mainland China,
including State-owned land use rights acquired by concession
or transfer and collective land use rights temporarily leased from
industrial parks and villages.

Ownership certificates are available for State-owned land use
rights. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had not obtained
ownership certificates for certain state-owned leasehold lands
with a carrying value of RMB nil (2023: RMB nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the total cash
outflows for leases was RMB5,607,000 (2023: RMB16,427,000).

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of between 1-3 years (2023: 1-3 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.
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16. FRAEEE )

16. Right-of-use assets (Continued)

AEEREEEHELHONTIMERTA - B

WE%EZ%%¥¢*“¥

_%ﬂ_fh

BHEEEXM -

BEINOKEERBASESENBERLT

“EA ﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬁﬁf"fif@a‘ﬁ

SEBIIIR

The Group is the registered owner of the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

17. REEE QRIS 17. Interest in associates

2024 5 20234

2024 2023

INGL-ESA ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

»1A1H At 1 January 469,130 88,034
BB E N R 2 ¥4 Share of results of associates (28,071) 267,071
AEFEWE Z KB Dividend received by the Group (5,689) (6,715)
BES Goodwill = 120,740
& (i FE) Disposal (note) (25,951) -
RIERBE—RKMELR Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary (311,610) -
®12HA31H At 31 December 97,809 469,130

MiEE: R2024F HE—HBERTAN BRI R

CEXE

U 25 A R % 139,049,000 7T (2023F : ARBZ

7T e
REFNEEBZR
=

=
XEE RUEAFATS

REEE

Name of entity

KEEBECEEREARA
Zibo Xiaoshuo enterprise
management limited

company

Al(E2RF LM

WE) 25E
ES 20 0y RIBER
Form of
business Country of
structure establishment

BREELA
Limited liability
company

i
PRC

Note: Partial interests of an associate were disposed and resulted in a gain
amounting to RMB139,049,000 during 2024 (2023: RMB nil).

The following list contains only the particulars of material
associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose
quoted market price is not available:

TREXWE FRROMN ARERENEMER  FEXE

Principal place  Class of Registered capital held
of operation  share held

by the Group Principal activity

2024 2023F
2024 2023
i AMER BER%
PRC Registered 51%  Commercial service
capital
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17.

214

REENTINERS &)
SEEECEXETEGR AT

MR2022F 12 A8H  AEBHHEEREEE
B (S ARARAENR Y SIEEECE
EEARAR (EEERE])  TMEARE
ARB1EEBL A5EREBESEAARK
450,0007T * #5R%45% : 722022912 A 20
H B2ilRELBAREKG60,000T  #F4H
HIEEECEETIEBRAAIAS1% KK -

20234 fF - #24 352,846,000 7T ' A
RS EETIEBRAFAST% K -

HRAKERAREE  AREEEZEG
EZeBEREL B —EHER—HEE
NCIUN: S

R2024% 12 A25H » A& E k5 — R B
ERRDSIEEENRER ST ERER
A (EEERMA) - BRIBASEZAA
MIEFTANE  AEBEASHISHEELS
EERIESIE  ESTERAMAMERMA
A ERT S BB E BB EN EBH A 0 -

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

17.

Interest in associates (Continued)
Zibo Xiaoshuo enterprise management limited company

On 8 December 2022, the Group and Qilu Asset Management
(Zibo) Co., Ltd. jointly established Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise
Management Co., LTD. (Zibo Xiaoshuo), with a registered
capital of RMB1 million. The Group’s subscription amount is
RMB450,000, holding 45%. On 20 December 2022, with an
additional subscription amount of RMB60,000, it holds 51% of
the equity of Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise Management Co., LTD.

In 2023, with capital increase by RMB352,846,000, it still holds
51% of the equity of Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise Management
Co., LTD.

Due to the provisions of the articles of association, the
Group cannot control the level of the board of directors and
shareholders, so it is accounted for as an associate.

On 25 December 2024 the shareholders of Zibo Xiaoshuo,
one of the prior associate of the Group, resolved to amend the
article of association (AOA). Under the amendment of AOA, the
Group obtained the control of Zibo Xiaoshuo over the operating
activities, the Directors assessed the amendments of AOA
resulted in the business combination of Zibo Xiaoshuo.
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17. REEERTINRER &) 17.
KEBECLERARAT (£)

e A RIRARSARZ SR
ABR o 1R 1% BIFR B %5 S &5 2E R
MM BERMERIINT -

MWK

AN
=
S EAR

pal]

Interest in associates (Continued)

Zibo Xiaoshuo enterprise management limited company

(Continued)

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with

IFRS Accounting Standards.

2024 %

2024

AR¥T T

RMB’000

mENEE Current assets N/A T iEH

EmEEE Non-current assets N/A T 3E H

RBEE Current liabilities N/A T & H

FERBEE Non-current liability N/A T iE F

BEEFE Net assets N/A T E H

Wz Revenue N/A T3 A

B9 4 ) Profit for the period N/A i H

ZEW AT Total comprehensive income N/ATEH

FREE¥IER - Reconciliation to carrying amount:

REERMEFEFRBEEER Group's ownership interest in weighted

average N/ATiE H

AEEEGEEETZE Group share of net assets N/ATE H

Goodwill

associate

22
E@MAB LN FERMEEE[E  Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the

N/A T E AH

N/A & A

20234
2023
AREF T
RMB’000

342,508
493,038
350,156

30,280
455,110

226,715

8,238
8,238

51%
232,106

120,740

352,846
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17. REFE QRN RER (5) 17. Interest in associates (Continued)
HEBRBELCXEEFRAR (&) Zibo Xiaoshuo enterprise management limited company
(Continued)
BRIETE I T EAHEL L N T &R E 4 - Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

2024 F 20234
2024 2023
ARE T BN S
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR E I T EAMEEE ARHN  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
RE TS HRER M R EE LT immaterial associates in the consolidated

financial statements 112,082
SEEGZEBLEAAIMNEELEE  Aggregate amounts of the group’s share of
those associates
— BEREER 2 % — Profit from continuing operations (28,071) 30,764
— BRI EEBEED — Post-tax profit or loss from
BieBm discontinued operations = -
— B 2mEmla= — Other comprehensive income = -
— 2EEEEE — Total comprehensive income (28,071) 30,764

216 =E£EARAT —B-NEFR
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18. ML EE 18. Intangible assets
HEHM w0 e
Proprietary
technologies Software Total

ARBTE ARBTT AREBTRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BRA cosT
M2023F1A1H At 1 January 2023 138,383 34,212 172,595
NE Additions 198 1,071 1,269
& Disposal (4,956) (2,316) (7,272)
M2023F12A31H R At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

202451 A1 H 133,625 32,967 166,592
NE Additions 140 4,245 4,385
HE Disposal (40) (439) 479)
202412 A31H At 31 December 2024 133,725 36,773 170,498
BERRE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
2023 1H1H At 1 January 2023 126,537 22,243 148,780
REERE Charge for the year 2,882 4,844 7,726
& R 8 Eliminated on disposals (4,956) (2,303) (7,259)
M2023F 124318 R At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

2024% 1 A1H 124,463 24,784 149,247
REFRZ Charge for the year 395 2,566 2,961
= Disposal (40) (439) (479)
2024F 12 A31H At 31 December 2024 124,818 26,911 151,729
REE CARRYING VALUES
2024612 A31H At 31 December 2024
K2023512A31H At 31 December 2023 9,162 8,183 17,345
REBREENEEARFE=FEE - All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third

parties.

EERMEREREGTABZLERAAIE Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
REH  WRESEDHINRSEEZ10F K3 finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
FESFH - 5to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.
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19. EEEH
R Ik REBBATAELR

WA FE26 T B - B = 20244F 12 A 31
HIEFE  AEESREASARES8,274,000
TR AR 471,000 L EIRRITFHRE1E
R HAERENEBRKRETEEWE
2B o

HE2023F12A31BILFEE  AEH
LA ARMET5,725,000t K AR
68,134,000 T RITF R E A - H AIE
BENERERRETEEMERS ZER -

20. RAFEFAHMBEZEKE 2K
AIH

FEETRAES  ROAFMEIIR Unlisted equity securities, at fair value

19.

20.

Pledge of assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
pledge of assets:

As described in notes 26, the Group’s pledged bank deposits
amounting to RMB88,274,000 and RMB471,000 have been
pledged to secure the bills payable and deposits from presale of
properties, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits amounting to
RMB75,725,000 and RMB68,134,000 have been pledged to
secure the bills payable and deposits from presale of properties,
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
INL-E A ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

ZHRBEEEER AR ([FA])@ Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd. (“Taihe”)@ 73,443 44,447
BEEEREAELE (BRA %) Hainan Guji Investment Partnership (limited

(MgmEE])® partnership) (“Hainan Guji"”)® 3,218 2,958
ST BEREMNMEIRZERE  Zibo Runxin Dongyue New Material Equity

EEEBLEEREE) Investment Fund Partnership (limited

(EEREEDe partnership) (“Zibo Runxin”)®© 47,779 55,769
L\ R ERITRMBRAF  Leshang City Commercial Bank Co.© 2,047 -
2| B R SR ITIRD B R A F© Leshan Rural Commercial Bank Co. © 3,142 -

129,629 103,174
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20.

BAFEFAEMEZEKE 2R
AIA#®

LR ETRATASAEERE TRF
BRI AERBOEE - KRR ESRRE
BRZEREBER/EAFEFAAE LR
RSB ATE  TERZFREREK
HIRBEAEMEE HEXERE/EAR
FEFFAEMEEKEORARE TTE R
ZERENFEEHRHNIERHR -

REEFLTRATARFEE  A&E
ZEBYEXGHEMETERMGEE %2
BMORBEAARRERERAEZHRE
MRSRERMNETE UFEERETER
®OBRBEAXR ZRERX -BEKH
REME - TEZBINEBTFRERAAR
BEERYMSERNBERTH A
AEREFRNABEUN LT RARNR 5 E
8 MALEMPEEE

B

@ FEA HETPERINLAEE -ZEEE
WRELECEURPRALEESANSMEET
REEHEEEEB AEERAMEEBHT
R ZRE - Hift &A% AR 10,000,000,000
TOHERAERLENIMERBARYE
600,000,000 7T " {h %= & MM & N85 6% ° &
Z2024F 12 A31H  AEEE AWML EREA
R 120,000,0007T (2023412 A318 : AR
120,000,000 7T) °

HE2023F12A318  ARAEERAE UK
AEBZENB L EEGEMTE  BREAE
BEREEHIEE A FELHAREA4,447,000 T
(2022512 A318 : AR#57,163,0007T) °
I B E2023F 128310 CER L AFE
BB AR 75,552,000 7T (202212 A31 8 ¢
AE#62,837,0007T) °

HE2024F12A31B  ARAEERA I
KASBEZRNBYIEEGBEMIGE A58
REEMIEE RN TFELH A ARIET3,443,0007T
(2023412 A31H : AR#44,447,0007T) © I
EREE2024F 12831 BILFERAAFEK
= #9 AN R M 28,996,000 7T (2023 4 « [HIE AR
12,716,0007T) °

20. Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

The above unlisted equity instruments represent the Group’s
equity interest in several private entities established in the PRC.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for
long-term strategic purposes. Designation of these investments
as equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income can avoid the volatility of the fair value changes of these
investments to the profit or loss.

In determining the fair value of unlisted equity instruments, the
Group engages an independent professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The amount is determined based on the cash flow
projection for the estimated future cash flow discounted to its
present value and requires the use of key assumptions, including
the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted revenue and
gross margin taking into account the relevant industry growth
forecasts and financial budgets approved management’s
expectation for the market development and the market
approach, based on trading multiples derived from publicly traded
companies that are similar to the subject company.

Notes:

(a) Taihe is a private entity established in the PRC. Taihe was principally
engaged in asset management and bulk transfer of non-performing assets
of financial enterprises in Shandong Province, the PRC. The Group and
other partners jointly established Taihe and the registered capital of Taihe
was RMB10,000,000,000, of which the register capital contributed by
the Group was RMB600,000,000, representing 6% of the total registered
capital of Taihe. As of 31 December 2024, the total capital contribution
of RMB120,000,000 has been paid by the Group (31 December 2023:
RMB120,000,000).

As of 31 December 2023, the directors of the Company considered,
and as assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Group, the fair value of the Group's investment in Taihe of approximately
RMB44,447,000 was recognised (31 December 2022: RMB57,163,000).
Accordingly, as of 31 December 2023, the cumulative fair value loss of
approximately RMB75,552,000 (31 December 2022: RMB62,837,000) was
recognised.

As at 31 December 2024, the directors of the Company considered, and
as assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group,
the fair value of the Group's investment of Taihe was approximately
RMB73,443,000 (31 December 2023: RMB44,447,000) and a fair value
gain of approximately RMB28,996,000 (2023: a loss of RMB12,716,000)
which had been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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20. BAFEFAEMBEEKEZR
AKI R

220

P 5T -

(b)

(%)

BEEER—HRPEKINEREBEE &
FRIRETHEREAR -

AEEBMEREREFEARE 278,500,000 7T
155 B HPEN89.73% - AR B EH I
ARAFEFNEBEBEAQRETE RIS - AR
RIEERA  ARREEENEZAR - ARRE
FEEERLRERTARAFEFALME
ERENRATE  HARZFRE ARIHRE
REmiEs -

HZE2023F 12831 HILFE  AEEKEEE
B H AR E FIB AR 39,203,0007T © Fitt - A&
EENFREEENRERLEARE 897,000 ¢
HZE2024F 128318 ARAEERAE - UK
AEBZENB Y EEGEEMTE  NEMEE
EMEERAFEAARY32180007C (20234 :
AR #2,958,0007T) ' W E R EE2024F 12 A
BMNALEFENHM2ERSFHRAFERS
AR 260,000 7T (2023 F : U2k A R 9,840,000
JL) °

EEBER—ERNTEKINAREEES  H
BMEERERELT  BHE BN REEHE
ESE 3

MR2021F1R128 AR A MBEKE QA
REREMBERSRAR ((RERERED
RLEREEHEMRRBROBERAR ([RE
EEM]D) RN ESRBYE=FIL—HE
Bipa o RIEBEAERS 2K IERs
A AR #500,000,0007T HFERAB AR
ERERE REEMIRIRAESTEARYE
125,000,000 7T }2 A R # 75,000,000 7T ° & & /¥
BiISIRIEE B HE DR ERETT -

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Hainan Guji is a limited partnership established in the PRC, which is
focusing in the investments in industrial silicon companies.

The Group made capital contribution of RMB278,500,000 to Hainan Guiji,
representing 89.73% of equity interest of Hainan Guji. As the Hainan
Guji was managed and controlled by a general partner which was not a
company controlled by the Company, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Company was not in a position to exercise control over
this company. The directors of the Company have elected to designate this
investment as equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for long-term
strategic purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received refund
from Hainan Guji of RMB39,203,000, accordingly, the Group's investment
in Hainan Guji reduced to RMB897,000. As at 31 December 2024, the
directors of the Company considered, and as assessed by the independent
professional valuer engaged by the Group, the fair value of the investment
in Hainan Guji was RMB3,218,000 (2023: RMB2,958,000) with the
gain in fair value of RMB260,000 (2023: a gain of RMB9,840,000) had
been recognised in other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Zibo Runxin is a limited partnership fund established in the PRC, which is
expected to primarily invest in fluoro-chemical, organic silicon, membrane
materials and hydrogen-related industries.

On 12 January 2021, Dongyue Fluorosilicone Science and Technology
Group Co., Ltd. (“"Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology”) and Shangdong
Dongyue Organosilicon Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Organosilicon”), both
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a partnership agreement
with independent third parties in relation to the establishment of
the fund. Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the initial capital
contribution to the fund was aggregately RMB500,000,000, out of which
RMB125,000,000 and RMB75,000,000 were contributed to the fund by
Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology, Dongyue Organosilicon, respectively,
as limited partners. The capital contribution to the fund will be made in
stages in accordance with the partnership agreement.
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20. BRAFEFAHMEZERE 2R
ARIE#)

FieE ()
© ()

HZ2021F 128318 AEEREBBEELE
#8%8 A KR % 60,000,000 7T ¢ 15 «‘%W*H(ﬂém
33.66% ° RSB EERIER R AIEH TR
EBAD TE@&} %’U ZKAai%M%'K’A
RAIEEEHIZ A NRIEECREBILIEE
5 7%1&/&?@&7&@%@4& SERR AR T A -
TTHRZEREARPEBARMES -

HZE2022F12A831HILFEE  KEEMK
HEE#E— 2 EE ARK6,500,0007T  HZE
202F12A31B  AKELEREAARE
66,500,000 7T, * #5 A& L 11/ 36.44% ©

HZE2022F12A318  ARAIEERE - UK
REB LB L EEGEMTE - AEERE
HEEMNREAFELN A ARES2,694,000 7T
WEREE2022F 12 A31HIEFENEMER
X PHERAFEEEARY7,532,0007T

HZE2023F 12831 BILFE - AEEREHEE
EEHE — & AR 156480007 ' 8=
2023F 12 A31HIE AEBEEEREAARE
82,148,000 7T * FA L1 /2 36.44% ©

HZE2024F12A318  ARAEERAE WK
REBZENB Y ZEMGBEMTG  NEER
T EEMIREQFEN A ARYA7,779,000

JL(20234 : A R#55,769,000T) ' W EREE
2024F 12 A3 BIEFEMEMZEMS R HER
NFEEEHARE7,990,000 7T (2023 F : Fi8
AER#12,573,0007T) ©

d RUTEERTROBBRAREHREMD)IE L
W77 % 37 o 1A 2006 F B3 I RETE /9 — I I B
AR E -

(e) SRNEERTROBRABERENLIIA
BT ERA o R2014F BOSTEBEE A — RIS
NEEE -

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the Group made a total capital contribution of
RMB60,000,000 to Zibo Runxin, representing 33.66% of equity interest
of Zibo Runxin. As the Zibo Runxin was managed and controlled by a
general partner which was not a company controlled by the Company,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company was not
in a position to exercise control over this company. The directors of the
Company have elected to designate this investment in equity instruments
at FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made a further
capital contribution of RMB6,500,000 to Zibo RunXin, and as of 31
December 2022, the total capital contribution made by the Group was
RMB66,500,000, with a shareholding ratio of 36.44%.

As of 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company considered, and
as assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group,
the fair value of the Group's investment in Zibo Runxin was approximately
RMB52,694,000 with fair value loss of RMB7,532,000 had been recognised
in other comprehensive expense for the year 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made a further
capital contribution of RMB15,648,000 to Zibo RunXin, and as of 31
December 2023, the total capital contribution made by the Group was
RMB82,148,000, with a shareholding ratio of 36.44%.

As of 31 December 2024, the directors of the Company considered,
and as assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by
the Group, the fair value of the Group’s investment in Zibo Runxin was
approximately RMB47,779,000 (2023: RMB55,769,000), and a fair value
loss of approximately RMB7,990,000 which had been recognised in other
comprehensive expense for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: a
loss of RMB12,573,000).

Leshan City Commercial Bank Co. was established in Leshan of Sichuan
Province of the PRC. It was invested by one of the subsidiaries of Zibo
Xiaoshuo in 2006.

Leshan Rural Commercial Bank Co. was established in Leshan of Sichuan

Province of the PRC. It was invested by one of the subsidiaries of the Zibo
Xiaoshuo in 2014.
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21. EERIE 21. Deferred taxation
B BREMEMIRERIBASROITWOT The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purpose:

2024 F 20234
2024 2023
NGRS ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 85,667 129,339
RIERIREE Deferred tax liabilities (198,809) (129,481)
(113,142) (142)
FRNEMZANTISELREBELE(B8E) The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
REZHNT : recognised and movements thereon for the year:
HENEAR EERA AMEEH EBAHH
T RER i 24 EitEA BREE  ERNE  ATESRE 2ty #E
Government Fair value
Distributable Accrual for grants on adjustment
profits of PRC  Depreciation employee prepaid lease  Capitalised  on business
subsidiaries allowance benefits payments interest  combination Others Total

ARBTR  ARBTE ARBTE ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

R2023E1 518 At 1 January 2023 (162,443) (251,856) 111,261 30,940 - (13,352) 119,406 (166,044)
WMERER(GIB)A  (Charge)icredit recognised
in profit or loss 148,000 20,301 (47,409) (11,632) 75,067 1,853 (20,278) 165,902

M2023%12A31HK  At31 December 2023 and

204% 1818 1 January 2024 (14,443) (231,555) 63,852 19,308 75,067 (11,499) 99,128 (142)
REXBRGIB)EA  (Charge)icredit recognised

in profit or loss (21,000) 4,845 (48,923) 31,732 6,458 (25,428) (9,951) (62,267)

HEWBAR Disposal of subsidiaries - - (694) - - - (50,039) (50,733)

2024124318 At 31 December 2024 (35,443) (226,710) 14,235 51,040 (36,927)

22 HEEEARAT —B-NEER
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22. &
mA CosT
R0B3F1R18R At 1 January 2023 and
203F12A31H 31 December 2023
NE Addition

2024512 4318 At 31 December 2024

REBE2024F12A31BILFEE  AEHF
I B T ok IR A P BORE (2023
FEF) o

R R
MEREANARESEDRIEEREER
AEEE -ENREEEECSHENSD
FHYEREMNBEFRSRERMAR
135% B - AFHUERNRE REKRA
22%MIBEE R R - ZEEREXTIAER
METERERRERN BEAEBEMITEN
FHRMBREX -FRHEEFENHEME
ER|OVE(BEBEHEERENTER
#) e MEMAET AR - ZAMAET JIERE
BEBRENEEXRALREEEHYMEERD
BH-EEEMRRE ZFEREAESGEHL
EMEAZHH T ESBRENERR
BEBBAMDASE-

22. Goodwill

L L{: g Wi  EfFEX
HERE  BEEX Bl B XBUE aE

Other

Acquisition immaterial

Acquisition of  of Sunshine Acquisition of Acquisition of acquisition of
Zibo Xiaoshuo Silicon  Tangshan  Shenzhou business Total

TR TR T T T T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

- 159,519 52,952 84,540 2,013 299,024
141,743 - - - - 141,743
141,743 159,519 52,952 84,540 PXE] 440,767

During the year ended 31 December 2024, management of the
Group determines that there was no impairment of goodwill
(2023: nil).

Zibo Xiaoshuo

The recoverable amount of Zibo Xiaoshuo has been determined
based on value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
13.5%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 2.2% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash flows which include budgeted sales and
gross margins. Such estimation is based on past performance
of Zibo Xiaoshuo and management’s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of Zibo Xiaoshuo to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of Zibo Xiaoshuo.
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22,

224

[5E-3€ )

BREE
BhEEann kb em hiREFERER
HEET HENREEEECEHENT
FHYBBEENEFRERE RMBEX
12.5% (20234 : 11.84%) 18 - AFEHIL
BN S REHH2.2% (20234 : 3%) Y
BRI ERDENERT
¥EREN BTBBBEETENEAR
MR - FAEAETENEMEIERR
T (BREEEHEERENEREAN) R
CREMHTER ZBAHADEREG K
¥MBARBEREEEBHMISEENTEA -
EEERE ZEBRUTESEHNENT
AT EEEBNE A R MERA A2
BB E RS -

B

Bl ke emhREFERAEETEE
FEortENREEEEE M ENTF
BHEEMERERE KA R 8% (2023
F:824%) 1B - AFHUENESRE
HR22% (20234 : 3% ) B E B R R i
B - iz ERRDENBBITEREEA
BETHBABETENTFHRAKREER - F
AEETENEMEERENE(BEEE
HEBEREMNEREAN) B REGTHE
B ZBEDERELNBARBELE
BEEYMBERMBAL -EREMRE %
EREEAELENTRAEH TS
KB A BT B R B A BR T 42 (B B B T Uk B 48
TF

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

22. Goodwill (continued)

Sunshine Silicon

The recoverable amounts of Sunshine Silicon have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount
rate of 12.5% (2023: 11.84%). Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a steady 2.2% (2023: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Sunshine Silicon
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of related subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

Tangshan

The recoverable amounts of Tangshan have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
8% (2023: 8.24%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.2% (2023: 3%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include
budgeted sales and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
past performance of Tangshan and management'’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of related subsidiaries
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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22,

23.

BHE e
A

EE@mAMAIRE SR REEREE
HET ENREEEECHENTESE
Y BEENEA RS RERIEE14%
(20234 : 13.82%) 15 - AFHALERIR
EREHRA22% (20234F : 3% ) HiEF &
RRHEW - ZEERTERBEITEER
TER - BN HBBEBETENFEHRER
EoFREBEETENEMEIZ®RRE (8
FREHEBERTEMNREAN) B REM
e - BEG IEREEBSNBEE
RELEEEHMSHRENEN TBE
HE ZEBRUEAEERNEMES
HreByEEMANEEAERBE
U Bl 484 %8 o

22. Goodwill (continued)

Shenzhou

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been
determined based on value in use calculation. This calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount
rate of 14% (2023: 13.82%). Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a steady 2.2% (2023: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.

78 23. Inventories
2024 F 20234
2024 2023
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R L KB FE S Raw materials and consumables 627,598 636,009
T8 Work in progress 88,850 103,974
YR Finished goods 713,304 806,424
1,429,752 1,546,407
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24, (EHERBRZYHE 24. Properties for sale
2024 5 20234
2024 2023
NHEE ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
TERMEBE - Properties under development comprise:
— BERIHFEYE — Completed properties for sale 10,820 892,667
— BEERE ERFEWE — Properties held for/under development
for sale 24,649
917,316
TEMERE - Summary of properties for sale:
ES
HH it TR R B TH R BEE(LHX) BAM
Expected % interest
Project Address Stage of completion  completion Usage Gross Area (m?) in property
2023F
2023
RETRAERL— WREHEDTES EMRILE 100% B RN B (40,688 F oK) 100%
-2 ZRIH HYNG) RSB (11,973 FHK) :
AE0BI8THK) R
[2BI5 (14345 F 5 K)
Dongyue Engineering R&D  Liuquan North Road, Huantai 100% Completed Hotel, Office premises,  Hotel (40,688 m?); Office 100%
Center — Phase |, Il I1& 1V County, Zibo City, Shandong Office premises premises (11,973 m?);
Province Commercial (1, 848 m?) and
car parks (14,345 m?)
RELRHEFL —E-8 LREEETEGMTILR 100% B EE BEREES AT(15436TAK) 100%
B (9,658 AR &
{2515 (28 42 F %)
Dongyue Engineering R&D  Liuquan North Road, Huantai 100% Completed Residential, Commercial Residential (15,436 m?), 100%
Center — Phase Il County, Zibo City, Shandong and car parks Commercial (9,658 m?) and
Province car parks (28,442 m?)
M2023F12A31H8  EEGSEVWENE At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of properties under
HAEOARBZTEABNHREAREE development for sale of approximately RMB nil are expected to
TZEAAET - be completed within twelve months from the end of reporting
period.
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25. E5 R HAMWEWRIE

25. Trade and other receivables

2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
ARET T BN
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 el E () Trade receivables (note (i) 1,962,821 1,568,806
B EEBERE Less: allowance for credit losses (12,876) (4,298)
1,949,945 1,564,508
R R TR SR8 Prepayments for raw materials 28,920 87,232
AI Y [E B IE Tax recoverable 165,093 240,918
EfEERES Deposit paid for property development - 21,000
JE W R 1R A 3K (B 3 i) Outstanding amount of deposit receivables
(note (ii) 309,888 309,888
B3 (B &E i) Loans (note (iii)) 45,100 -
e MH M EWFRIA Deposits and other receivables 278,417 269,811
2,777,363 2,493,357
B &E - Notes:

(i)

(iif)

MR2024F12A31EME 5 EKRFAEBFEEK
=4 AR #1,579,632,0007T (20234 : AR
1,365,293,0007T) ©

ARRIBENBARILERES D THRBR
A 15 1FE A R 309,888,000 7T 17 A H7 3 Bt 42
BEBSBBERETARERE  ZEFRABE
EHAERMBRAR (—HERNRIEZZSA
EHHAE BREMRE : 001216.52) 11.9% B &
REVEHLR - A 2024512 A31 8 DEWEER
M{E#) A A K 382,500,000 7T °

ATHAAEENEEES REao TR
2024F3 A28 A MM EMM B ELBAN KR
ER2024F 3 A31 B ZATREUKIZF SRR ©
RERD FEZIETR AR A RE B KR
ﬁ‘ﬁ)\

RERD THRBEERBERME N 202454818
17 AR B 368 PR V2 B S R EE B B A IR A RE AR AR ¢ SR
MEMUMGANRERRERE - REa) THE
E2024F 4 A2 BB FEB B B R RIE - R~

EARNRESND TRERRERE EZHBHEZ
Bﬁ BHIA2024F4 A2 B0 A -

FARRABEFSBERBEAR DA (AEE wa
RENEEOERTDRFF 4% B RAR
FREE -

(i)

(iii)

Included in the trade receivables are bills receivables amounting to
RMB1,579,632,000 at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB1,365,293,000).

An indirect subsidiary of the Company, Shandong Dongyue Polymers
Co., Ltd., placed deposits amounted to RMB309,888,000 to the account
of Macro-link Holding Group Finance Company Limited, such deposits
were pledged by 11.9% equity interest in Hunan Hualian Porcelain
Industry Co.,Ltd. CHEEZEREE X ARMHBR 2 F)), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 001216.5Z). As at 31 December
2024 the market value of the pledged interest was approximately
RMB382,500,000.

On 28 March 2024, with a view to replenish the working capital of
the Group, Dongyue Polymers issued a notice to Macro-link Finance to
withdraw the outstanding balance of deposit on or before 31 March 2024.
Dongyue Polymers did not receive the outstanding amount of deposit
receivables within the prescribed deadline.

On 1 April 2024, the legal advisors of Dongyue Polymers as to the laws
of the PRC submitted a statement of claim to the applicable court in the
PRC against Macro-link Finance demanding immediate repayment of the
Outstanding Amount. Subsequently, on 2 April 2024, Dongyue Polymers
received a letter from Macro-link Finance stating that it is unable to return
the Outstanding Amount to Dongyue Polymers. For more detail please
refer to the announcement dated on 2 April 2024.

The loans were provided to Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd (an associate of the Group), which with a 4%-interest-rate per annum
and repayable within one year.
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25. ESREMEWRIRE#)

25. Trade and other receivables (continued)

AEERTFTEFPZESERFEBEE SR
BN T30E9008 - EUEE A0 HK
180 HE|H - B B EMWFIE R ERZE (30
BREEERRE REZAHZERITE
IR o

Customers are generally granted with credit period ranged
between 30-90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are
generally due in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging
analysis of trade and bills receivables, net of allowance for credit
losses presented based on the invoice date.

2024 F 2023%F

2024 2023

AR®T T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

90HRA Within 90 days 769,139 576,162
91THZE180H 91-180 days 1,062,942 971,553
181 H&Z365H 181-365 days 117,864 16,793
1M More than 1 year 12,876 4,298
1,962,821 1,568,806

CEBETRAFEFA  AEESHETE
FRHEELRTIHEBERFNEELZEM
BERFNEAEE BEENEAEEM
ERFRTFEZMIR > 71% (2023 F :
99% ) AR EA IR ARBE 2 B 5 B IR GRIE K 8
WEEFEEELEAENRTEATR - K
SESTEFANSTE EHMEBEEREH

228 HES£EARAT —B-NEFR

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts
research on the creditworthiness of the new customer and
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year. 71% (2023: 99%) of the
trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the high-ranking record attributable under the research on
the creditworthiness. The Group offers various settlement terms
which vary depending on the size of contract, credibility and
reputation of the customers.
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25. ESREMEWRIRE#)

B REMERRBNBESHFBEER
MIEES ©

25. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
are set out in note 5.

EEBREREEH Movements in the allowance for credit losses
2024 20234
2024 2023
ARE T BN S
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FAHEER Balance at beginning of the year 4,298 6,888
FREE(FE) Provided/(reversal) during the year 8,578 (2,590)
FUREEGR Balance at end of the year 12,876 4,298

NHEBEEEERNIEEEAINNERES]
ENASEE S BUFRIINAT

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

2024 5 2023 F

2024 2023

NS ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e us$ 180,234 122,794
2024 F 20234

2024 2023

NS ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FHER Balance at beginning of the year 30,970 32,724
F L Reversal during the year (25,441) (1,754)
FRREER Balance at end of the year 5,529 30,970
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26. %ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ?ﬂ/ﬂ"}%ﬁ&fﬁ 26. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

SHEFBRTER
AEBECHEPRITFRAMLT ¢

cash
Pledged bank deposits

Details of the Group’s pledged bank deposits are as follows:

2024 F 20234

2024 2023

ARE T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ZERES Bill deposits 88,274 75,725

FHEREX Presale of property 471 68,134

A&t Total 88,745 143,859
RITHESEES Bank balances and cash

AEBRITHARERSAMAWT -

Details of the Group’s bank balances and cash are as follows:

2024 & 20234

2024 2023

AR T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

IRITFER Bank deposits 2,470,109 2,146,976
EHmEKES Other monetary funds = 400,000
EFRE Cash on hand 387 321
&EF Total 2,470,496 2,547,297
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26. CEHBITER RITEEKIE 26. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

cAC ) cash (Continued)

RITHEKEES (E) Bank balances and cash (Continued)

EEMRITERRBITERIDIB R EGTE - Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates.

DRSBTS EE LI TS The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies

BEOREERITERIINOT ¢ other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

TET ARBTE

US$'000 RMB'000
2024512 A31H At 31 December 2024 45,887 329,856
2023512 A31H At 31 December 2023 11,618 82,288

TET ARBTT

HK$'000 RMB’000
202412 A31H At 31 December 2024
7R20234F12A31H At 31 December 2023 14,936 13,535
EEBRITTFARRBRITERO A ET G Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits and

IBE N MIFES - bank balances are set out in note 5.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 231



b

e M RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

27. B RHAMENFRE

27. Trade and other payables

2024 5 2023 %
2024 2023
AR T T BN
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5N RIA Trade payables 1,988,169 2,159,485
aHaE —HELIER Contract liabilities — sale of
chemical products 137,585 133,904
BHBE —HEME Contract liabilities — sale of properties 17,334 269,478
FE AT B T B Payroll payable 216,294 717,997
WE - MR RFREEN Payable for property, plant and
SRIA (BF3EG)) equipment (note (i) 292,045 748,974
Hfh R R IE Other tax payables 48,720 69,903
ERERG s EEMERN Construction cost payables for properties
JE - 8 TRk AR under development for sale 4,729 151,731
E fth JE AT I JE R FRIE Other payables and accruals 117,792 248,812
2,822,668 4,500,284

B

Notes:

0] WS - R R R B RN SRR R LR 0]
BREFTKE=MAAXN LN FAREAH
HERTRE -

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be
settled three months after the completion of installation of the plant and
machinery which is recorded in the addition of construction in progress
during the year.
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27. EZREMENFIE &) 27.
ARNEE — HELIER
ZeEARE( TESESHNTEREFZIE -

TREJEHECTIEREENEESRD
BEAHNERRAREBEHHECET
MIEHEGHRR o

W1A1A As at 1 January

ERMERVTASGBESFEN  Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WABEHaERD recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at the

Trade and other payables (continued)
Contract liabilities — Sale of chemical products

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of chemical products.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale
of chemical products and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
INGL-ESA ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

133,904 168,277

beginning of the reporting period (3,209,089) (4,695,741)
FRWEEE RS kD B3R Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
LABLE KB EE N receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 3,212,770 4,661,368
»12HA31H As at 31 December 137,585 133,904

RERDEZERBLES BIEHH Transaction prices allocated to performance
RRWANR HER obligations unsatisfied at end of year and
expected to be recognised as revenue in:

— 20244 — 2024
— 20254 — 2025

2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
INGL-ESA ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

= 133,904
137,585 -

137,585 133,904

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024 233



e M RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

27. ESREMESRE @)

BHNEE —HEWE

ZeHMATRBEEMEEENTBREF K
T8 o fA2024F 12 A31 B & BAEEE
RITEROAREA71,0007T (20234 A
R #68,134,0007T) {EHE I -

TR EHEMEBFRNEEANAME
BERENBERARAREBTEHHECETNE
WERBGRIRER -

27. Trade and other payables (continued)

Contract liabilities — Sale of properties

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC. The amount
was secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB471,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB68,134,000).

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale
of properties and how much relates to performance obligations
that were satisfied in prior periods.

2024 F 2023 F
2024 2023
NGRS ARKTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
®1A1H As at 1 January 269,478 511,263
MRBERVIGFASHAMEFA  Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
KA & KB &R D recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period (117,366) (534,327)
FRNHEMB AR AR Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
aHaERd disposal of subsidiaries during the year (134,995) -
FAREEEE RS ko BRR Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
& LaEEM receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 217 292,542
M12A31H As at 31 December 17,334 269,478
2024 2023 4
2024 2023
NGB A ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RERDEZERBELHZEIS BB Transaction prices allocated to performance
BRAEBANR FHEE obligations unsatisfied at end of year and
expected to be recognised as revenue in:
— 20244 — 2024 - 269,478
— 20254 — 2025 17,334 -
17,334 269,478

B 5 EMNFRIEREEARES53,691,0007T
(20234 : AR #76,540,0007T) 2 JEfIZ=
BoBNEERAALEENEEPRTER
YERIRIR -

RESROTHEER /A - AEKEE
HEEEMHRAREERR  ARERE
N FIENMEE R AFE -

234 HEEEARAT —B-NEER

Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting to
RMB53,691,000 (2023: RMB76,540,000). Bills payable are
secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
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27. EZREMENFIE &)
AREE — HEDE(F)

27.

REZZEH BHRMFANRE DN

|

30BR
31EZE90H
91 HZE180H
181 HE365H
1824
HBiE2 F

Trade and other payables (continued)
Contract liabilities — Sale of properties (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, presented
based on invoice date:

2024 5 20234

2024 2023

AR T T NS

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 30 days 671,760 1,207,282
31-90 days 579,692 542,050
91-180 days 107,374 200,061
181-365 days 475,940 100,422
1-2 years 119,004 97,417
More than 2 years 34,399 12,253

1,988,169 2,159,485

AEEAHBEEBERZDEEEUINZ
ERHENE S MEMEMNFKAEEIINT -

Us$

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

2024 £ 20234
2024 2023
INGL-E A ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

18,808 26,456
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28. HEAME 28. Lease liabilities
2023 F 2022 F
2023 2022
AR T T BN
RMB’'000 RMB’000
EAHEERE: Lease liabilities payables:
1FR Within one year 5,138 5,198
BHZRN 1 FEIBBE2F Within a period of more than one year,
but not exceeding two years 10,922 4,759
REZR2FETEBSF Within a period of more than two years,
but not more than five years 10,382 22,092
26,442 32,049
B AREBEETHIFR Less: amounts due within one year shown
B Ef(EE A under current liabilities (5,138) (5,198)
TIRIERBIBE THFRIE Amounts show under non-current liabilities 21,304 26,851
JERRHEEENINETHIESEENE The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
NF451%%E513% (20234F : 451% = lease liabilities range from 4.51% to 5.13% (2023: 4.51% to
5.13%) ° 5.13%).
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29. EIZEUY A 29. Deferred income
BEEWABEWBAR B ERRNEELS Deferred income mainly represents government grants received
EmmmE - K RERENHLEL - in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment for

manufacturing of chemical products.

FARLTERANEBOT - Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
2024 5 20234

2024 2023

AR T T BWNES: S

RMB’000 RMB'000

®1A1H At 1 January 337,073 371,662
NE Additions 48,045 45,289
EERSEG Release to profit or loss (39,938) (79,878)
345,180 337,073

RREMENIITNT Analysed for reporting purposes as:

2024 F 20234

2024 2023

ARET T NS

RMB’000 RMB’000

BNERER 75 Current portion 39,938 42,858
JEBNERER 7 Non-current portion 305,242 294,215

B12A31H At 31 December 345,180 337,073
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30. BRA& 30. Share Capital
RBEE IR 2
Number of Share
shares capital
T AR%®TT
‘000 RMB’000
FREE1BTHEBER Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each
JEE - Authorised:
R2023F 18 1H ~2023%F At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023,
12H31H 20241 H1B X 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024
202412 A31H 4,000,000 382,200
E#FTRHE - Issued and fully paid:
R2023F1 A1 K At 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023
2023412 A31H 2,253,689 212,196
o] 88 Ko 5T 84 I 1 Shares repurchased and cancelled (520,978) (48,690)
MR2024F12 A31H At 31 December 2024 1,732,711 163,506
bBriEEBREREIMEEEI  R20245F Other than as disclosed in the employee option scheme, none
K2023F ARABIMBARMEREESE - 1 of the Company'’s subsidiaries purchased, sold, or redeemed any
EHEOARRREANLTES ° of the Company’s listed securities during the years 2024 and
2023.
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30. A (&)

31.

RIBEARQAFRNR2023F12 A18H AR
HREIAEETFHRBEE  AQRE
F2024F12A31BEFERB R AT
520,978,000 BEA% 5 (2023 4F : ) o AN Q 7]
BREEBHARIBERAREEAABRK

) ERBERNT
follows:
[E1& A & EERYE HEE
No. of ordinary
Date of repurchase shares Redemption price
BT
HK$
20244 5H3H 520,978,000 7.1
03 May 2024

30. Share Capital (continued)

Closing market

Pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 18
December 2023, the Company repurchased, on Stock Exchange,
520,978,000 shares during the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: nil). Details of the Company repurchased its own shares
through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited are as

K E BENEKE
Aggregate

price consideration paid
BT FET
HK$ HK$’000

7.04 3,698,701,000
(Amounting to
approximately
RMB3,456,730,000)
(HBARE
3,456,730,000 7T)

bt A Bl B e AR FESH o

completed.
RiE 31. Commitment
M2024F 128318 AEBEHKEEN
HAEMAT commitments as follows:
BAREE Capital Commitment

BRAWEYE - #as RREN
BEAXH - BRTNERE
RAMBmERNEE

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment
contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements

EERAFEF AEMEEWZ 2 Capital expenditure in respect of equity
AT AEMEARLH  B5]#418  instruments at FVTOCI contracted for
RNIEGRE BT ik N B but not provided in the consolidated

financial statements

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase

At 31 December 2024, the Group had outstanding

2024 F 20234
2024 2023
ARET T BN S
RMB’000 RMB'000
389,621 346,980
586,993 580,024
976,614 927,004
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32. BB ARG 32. Related Party Transaction

FR - BRIEFEEVBBREMETEN K& Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements,
ETHET TS the Group entered into the following related party transactions
during the year:
(a) BEAEEHMELNTNEBRLIRS (a) Related party transactions with associates of the
Group
2024 F 20234
2024 2023
ARET T BN
RMB’000 RMB'000
() WWEREERKRIEEME (i)  Shandong Dongyue Future
It BB A =] Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd
([RERKEEE]) (" IR R EARRG R B
1 BBR AR ", "Dongyue
Future Hydrogen Energy”)
—EERMR — Purchase of raw material 82,597 102,204
— BEFRAREEE — Purchase of right-of-use assets 1,873 -
—EREBAZNES — Rental payment as leasee 1,051 2,027
— HELEER — Sales of chemical products 97,926 214,843
— HEEE — Sales of asset 876 308
— HE M — Sales of land - 20,143
(i) M EREXERAT (i) Sichuan Jingyuan Silicon Industry Co.,
(TRIREZD LTD (")l @REEAR A",
“Jingyuan Silicon”)
— BERME — Purchase of raw materials 136,544 139,823
— FLEURA — Interest income 609 -
(i)  PU)I1£&L g0 & HERA B3 (i) Sichuan Leshan Xinhe Electric Power
BRARE ([4LEm]) Comprehensive Development Co.,
LTD (" P9/l %41 &)n & 4R A B E
AR AR]", “"Leshan Xinhe")
— BERMB — Purchase of raw materials 153,281 163,186
— FEHRA — Interest income 812 -
(iv) PO L)1 s e k) (iv)  Sichuan Leshan Chuan Hui Furnace
BEREERT (TLIL)IE]D Material Limited Liability Company
(" PE )1 8L )| B E R TR & T
A &]", "Leshan Chuanhui”)
— BB R — Purchase of raw materials 69,782
— FLEIRA — Interest income -

RRABEFSHERE v)

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate

BRARI([RRAEZEE]) Development Co., Ltd. (“ 3R &K 5+
EXFMEMEBRAR",
“Zhangjiajie Xinye")
— FLEURA — Interest income -
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32. BB AR Z () 32. Related Party Transaction (Continued)
(b) FEEEASHH (b) Compensation of key management personnel
FRN - EERHEMETZEREASBH The remuneration of directors and other members of key
W management during the year was as follows:

2024 F
2024

AR®T
RMB’000

IERF® Wages and salaries 16,623

EIBIEAL Discretionary bonus 32,228
48,851
() BEHREZEBRRNBITERREBRR (c) Bank deposit placed to major shareholder and
BUA related interest income

2024 F
2024
AR® T
RMB’000

»12 A31 BEIRITIERK Bank deposit at 31 December 309,888

(d) EEEBES MR (d) Balances with related parties

2024 &
2024

ARBT T
RMB’000

FEUFRIE R B Amounts due from

FEER Xinhualian 309,888 309,888
RERREHE Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy 9,600 27,807
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33. RKERGE

AEBEFTENES T EEE T BRA
LENBEFENRENFTENKE - AEH
AT ERANEEBA D LA SIHR
EREBRINES AEBEMME BT

EHZEFEELIEEMRNR -

EEBRESS
() A2 EEE MR

MN2018FE 12 A27 8 » AR B ME
BIEREE (2 8 EAERTE])
EEREA R EBEASEF -

34.

BiEEEBRETS  AQAR2EH
BRARREREMBEEFRARIE
BEZAA(ZEADBEFHEAEER
SEAMR G (LR TE BRERY
1518 38 800,000,000 7T) B M5 +
BEBRAERND  TUAEERAEES
BN AEEEBREE ER (&
BEEBEZERG -

MR20234F3A28H E=EHRBEG
EREERBREREIFH  AERMA
HRET10F - U HE S ER=RE
25 500,000,000 78 7T °

EEgA THERPBERERTEM
BREBRENABERBERD ((BK
) - BITERBAER - BEEER A
BEERRN)EEL ) HE R
MEmHEEREBRETEER
B ZR (A WD B A -
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33.

34.

Retirement benefits plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
stage-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local governments in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

Employee option scheme

(a)

Employee option scheme of the Company

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an
employee option scheme (the “Employee Option
Scheme”) which shall be valid and effective for a term of
5 years.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Dongyue
Fluorosilicone Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee
(the "Trustee”) will purchase existing Shares from the
market out of cash contributed by the Group of not more
than HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and
hold such Shares on trust for the relevant employees
or consultants of the Group selected by the Board (the
“Selected Employees”).

On 28 March 2023, the Board resolved to extend the term
of the Employee Option Scheme for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption and to increase the maximum
amount of capital contribution by HK$500,000,000.

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion grant to any Selected Employee the right to
purchase the relevant shares (the “Option”). The Selected
Employee may, when exercising the Option, elect the
number of shares which he wishes to (i) be transferred
and/or (ii) sell and receive the difference, if any, between
the sale price of the Shares and the exercise price of the
Option.
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34. EEBKRESTE )

(a)

AREMEEBKRES S (F)

M2021F 7898 KA RINUNEK
BRERMDAI2IETHITEE®
AHIINAEEREE  BEHT
EENBUERTEST BREEH
62,570,000 R - (E AR BB
BITRAN3% - RIFEBBRER
g ZEBRNEAITAFRAQR
MERHEZHESERAATIS LE
B BEBREAH2021FE7 AR
F2026F7 A 8HEm (BHEZME
BE)MSFHRARITE - GREETN
FEREFIBE N A AR BEA2021
F7RAIBMAE -

BHMBRENEZ=2024F12 A 31
BIEFEWEET -

BN EH R EAREEL A
BEHBY EXRGEMBENERRSE
RARETT - 2 FEDEA-EAB
BEEERAMETE - TR ZE
ARREBHMANEABAE -

BB ERE 9.997% T
1B SRERERRD4.275T
FEHRIE 68.32%
ERiEEH 54
TR B s 5.68%
A [ o ) 0.54%

34. Employee option scheme (Continued)

(a)

Employee option scheme of the Company (Continued)

On 9 July 2021, the Company granted an aggregate
of 62,570,000 share options at the exercise price of
HK$4.27 per option share, representing 3% of the issued
share capital of the Company, to a total of 1,372 Selected
Employees, including executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, which have been acquired by the
Trustee from the open market by utilizing the contributed
amount made available to the Trustee by the Company
pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme. The share
options are exercisable for a term of 5 years commencing
from 9 July 2021 and expiring on 8 July 2026, both dates
inclusive. Details of the share options granted are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 9 July 2021.

There were no movements of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The valuation of share option was carried out by Hong
Kong Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent
professional valuer which are not connected by the Group.
The fair value was determined using a binomial option
pricing model. The following table lists the significant
inputs to the model used at the date of grant.

Grant date share price HK$9.99
Exercise price HK$4.27 per Option Share
Expected volatility 68.32%
Share option life 5 years
Expected dividend yield 5.68%
Risk-free interest rate 0.54%
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34. EEBKRESTE #)

244

(a)

AREMEEBBKRES S (F)

AEBEREATEEANEERRR
TENERELNREMF - BHK
WIORBARRBRERKAOSE (BE
RERENE OFH) WELRE
B o FBHR B WS R T RBE AR FIA
EREIRMNIERATE - |ERFIET)
SEZNH A RBEREASOFH -2
BREBFESFNE L AR EL
RE - FKA-—AABREEERAG
ENBEREBEXRNE TERRH
(AR ERAZEXBARERHRK
KA ZBR2EBHEE BB HEE
HERTEO) R EAREWETEBRS -

HE2021F12A831HILEE K&
%] 7 72 18 A% 4 X /5 362,684,000 7%
T (FHE R AR 293,774,0007T) °

HE2021F12A831BILFE - FTA
R2021F7 Ao B EMERENE
TE - R RTEERER 5T
AETHESREBERETS THE
Al A% 17 °

HE2024F12A831BILFE » Z5F
AW ARARIE F il AR AT I THIS B
B - & =2023F12 A31H
IEFE - ZEARE F IR &
LA 48 1% B #9 200,365,000 7% 7T (A8 & 7
N R #196,816,0007T) (BIEHE
BHEENN) KTHEERBEEARD
7] 33,923,000 A% 15 °

BIE2024E9 A27 BIEEWAE - A
EBASENTFHRE R BEY
ANEBEEES RBERNESUHEIER
EEZEDHEABEZTERARER
1FZ st 8l B2024F 927 B A
o HRZATEI T WA M ARITERNE
fetE - AR IEET2EHEMNET R
HENEAEEERTFFE -

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

34. Employee option scheme (Continued)

(a)

Employee option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
values of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimates. Expected volatility is based on the
historical share price volatility of the Company over the
most recent period commensurate with the contractual
life of the share options. Expected dividend yield is based
on the historical dividend payment of the Company. The
risk-free interest rate is assumed with reference to Hong
Kong government bond yield with maturity matching
the contractual life of the share options as at the date
of grant. The value of the share options calculated using
the binomial option pricing model are subject to certain
fundamental limitations, due to the subjective nature of
and uncertainty relating to the assumptions regarding
future performance on which the model is based, and
certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$362,684,000
(equivalent to RMB293,774,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the share
options granted on 9 July 2021 were exercised. Following
such grant and exercise of share options, the Trustee has
no longer held any shares under the Employee Option
Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the trustees
did not repurchase any shares from the market under
above share option scheme. During the year ended 31
December 2023 the trustees repurchased an aggregate of
33,923,000 shares of the Company from the market at
a total consideration of approximately HK$200,365,000
(equivalent to RMB196,816,000) (including directly
attributable incremental costs) under above share option
scheme.

According to the announcement made on 27 September
2024, in the interest of reconstructing the remuneration
policies of the Group and in order to allow full play of
effective incentives for the employees and consultants of
the Group, the Board has resolved to early terminate the
scheme pursuant to the rules of the scheme with effect
from 27 September 2024. As there is no outstanding
option under the Scheme, the termination will not affect
the rights of any selected participants in a material and
adverse manner.
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34. EEBKRESTE &)

(a)

(b)

AREMEEBKRES S (F)

REEIER - THREBEZFTEBRHIE
MERE - XFEARBZIEFAEDN
PIBRA RN ERE L BHERN—&
REAZSIRBRENS LHE  HE
SRR HERERART -

HZE2024F K% 2023% 12 A31 HIEF
ENRSREARARBERANMENE
BRNEFHETENGRARAES
BRETZIETER ARG EEL -

Rt EZFHREMBHRREY Ao
A 1R B BB A ET 8118 T RO K178

H R A

REERERGERBE

AEBNHRBAR —REAHRES
HRR2024F 12 A10BE i — B (5
HEFE  BEMAREAKEAK
MEHERIM A B8 2 WA RSB
REE) -5 ER2HEEREIOLSD
BEE =% SfBERES-

=]

BIFE MR THOROEARAEE B
19.NEER ERITHERDERER
REABIEEARNT16% ZERMD
BEERARBSIOTNEREE T
HEEA o

34. Employee option scheme (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Employee option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Upon the termination, no further options may be granted
under the scheme. All existing shares held by the trustee
under the scheme shall be gradually sold on the stock
market over a period of time following the termination
date and the proceeds of sale shall be remitted to the
Company after the sale.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 has been
arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the
Employee Option Scheme of the Company.

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had no share options
outstanding under the Employee Option Scheme.

Share award scheme of Dongyue Organosilicon

One of the subsidiaries of the Group, Dongyue
Organosilicon, announced to operate a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of Dongyue Organosilicon on 10 December
2024. Eligible participants include 360 of the full-time
employees, executives, officers and directors.

The maximum number of shares granted under the above
scheme is 19.12 million, representing 1.6% of capital of
Dongyue Organosilicon upon the exercise of the shares
award. The shares would be placed to the grantees at the
price of RMB5.9 per share.
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34. EEBKRESTE #) 34.

(b) REAHMERGRBE(E)

HERMDOFENT
¥ HH REBRAEE
Number of
Granted date share awarded
2024F 12 A 10 H 7,268,000
2024/12/10

5,451,000

5,451,000

246 HEEEARLR —E-NEER

Employee option scheme (Continued)

(b) Share award scheme of Dongyue Organosilicon
(Continued)

Details of shares awarded are as follows:
5B
Vesting periods

40% B D AR T IR W E AR 17 36 A &M% — B TiE B #E
ER TR 4AEA RN KE —EIIER HHEEE

40% of the shares to be vested during the period from the first
working day after the 36 months of restricted shares granted to
the last working day after 48 months after the shares granted

30% A n IR FIRBIIER D 12 A AR E — B TER#E
ERTRM24EAROKE—EIIER RHERE

30% of the shares to be vested during the period from the first
working day after the 12 months of restricted shares granted to
the last working day after 24 months after the shares granted

30% A i3 T IR B 1L AR 17 36 18l A 12 1O 56 — B T1E B #E
ER TR 4AEA RN KE—EIIER RHEEE

30% of the shares to be vested during the period from the first
working day after the 36 months of restricted shares granted to
the last working day after 48 months after the shares granted
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= £y L . B
34. EEBRESSE ) 34. Employee option scheme (Continued)
(b) REEHERMREBE(E) (b) Share award scheme of Dongyue Organosilicon
(Continued)
BB ENEESFBHRYWT Details of the movements of the share options granted are
as follows:
120245 120245
181A 128318
ARA REBH i RATE FREE FRTE i RATE B d !
Outstanding at Granted Exercised  Outstanding at
1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2024 year year 2024 price Exercise period
HiTES
Executive directors
FTHREE 2024% 128108 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 59 2024F 1210822027512 898
Mr. Wang Weidong 2024/12/10 10 December 2024-9 December 2027
RHEERAE 2024% 128108 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 59 2024F12A810822027412 898
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 2024/12/10 10 December 2024-9 December 2027
HitfEE
Other employees
Hitlfg& 2024% 128108 - 15,970,000 15,970,000 59 2024F12A810822027412 898
Other employees 2024/12/10 - 10 December 2024-9 December 2027
RE 950,000 950,000
Retention
19,120,000 - 19,120,000
METFITEE TER 5.9 TEA 59
Weighted average exercise N/A N/A
price
EHHEREN S FEEEH T Details of the movements of the share options granted are
as follows:
12024 12024
181A 128318
ARA REBH i RATHE FREE FRTE i RATE i fd !
Outstanding at Granted Exercised  Outstanding at
1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2024 year year 2024 price Exercise period
HiTES
Executive directors
ThREE 20245128108 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 59 2024% 128100220274 12 898
Mr. Wang Weidong 10/12/2024 10 December 2024-9 December 2027
RHEEFRAE 20245128108 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 59 2024% 128100220274 12 898
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 10/12/2024 10 December 2024-9 December 2027
HitES
Other employees
HitfEs 2024F 12 A10R - 15,970,000 15,970,000 59 2024%12R108%2027%12A9R
Other employees 1011212024 - 10 December 2024-9 December 2027
RE 950,000 950,000
Retention
19,120,000 - 19,120,000
MEFHITERE TER 5.9 TER 59
Weighted average exercise N/A N/A
price
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34. EEBKRESTE #)

248

REABERMDEBTE (&)

PR il B 10 2 15 18 7Y i B A 5% () 4R B O
MBI BEMBEMETT - RFETINA
“HEANREERAEE - TR
R A HZIEE TR T R AR

i A BRE
1TfEE

TEHR IR
P tn 22Dt 814 8B

TR 8. 2
g L 4 )

A Lt e B & e BB A D B B K
B HA AR 7E 45 E AR5 BT O 3% 5 B s
RoRL - FHEREBATEREE
ANERERERERRENE B IR
BRTIDAAEE MRS

REAMEBLERZFEUAEREEY
D RE B AR WHEREE
2024 F 12 A31 B EFEMR G
S 4 AR # 2,869,000 7T ©

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER

Exercise price

34. Employee option scheme (Continued)

(b)

Grant date share price

Expected volatility
Share award scheme life

Expected dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate

Share award scheme of Dongyue Organosilicon
(Continued)

The valuation of restricted shares was carried out by an
independent professional valuer which are not connected
by the Group. The fair value was determined using a
binomial option pricing model. The following table lists
the significant inputs to the model used at the date of
grant.

AR¥8.607T

RMB8.60
BhEREARKS59T
RMB5.9 per Option Share
37.23%/29.03%/27.60%
3F

3 years

0%

1.5%/2.1%/2.75%

The shares awarded to the aforesaid employees are
subject to a vesting schedule in tranches from the
grant date over a certain service period, on condition
that employees remain in service with both personal
performance requirements and Dongyue Organosilicon
financial targets.

Dongyue Organosilicon accounted for this transaction
as equity settled share-based payment to employees
and recognised a share-based payment expense of
approximately RMB2,869,000 during the year ended 31
December 2024.
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HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

35. ARAREEMBLAFE

(a) MBLIAN—KREH

RBEHURARRERERERFTAZ
M AR FEEAMT

SMRIE
HEARERE B/ EEER RGER
Country of
incorporation
or registration/ Class of
Name of subsidiary operation share held
EEEE P i
Zibo Xiaoshuo PRC Registered capital
REHMER L afEx
Dongyue New energy PRC Registered capital
Dongyue Changging + aiEev
Dongyue Changging PRC Registered capital
RERAT L afEx
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital
REHEZ wE HER
Dongyue Salt PRC Registered capital
REAE L afmEx
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC Registered capital
HongKong Taili International )] afER
Trading Co., Ltd
HongKong TaiLi International HK Registered capital
Trading Co., Ltd
REFBE L afEx
Dongyue Organosilicon PRC Registered capital
RELRELBANCIARAE A HER
(RELERERE))
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak PRC Registered capital

Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd.
(“Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak”)

HEZABEERAR E afER
(IF&E5])

Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd, PRC Registered capital
("Chifeng HuaSheng")

LRRENTANHERRE A kv
(FxAg))

Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine  PRC Registered capital

Chemicals Co., Ltd.
("Wenhe Fluorine”)
BAEX L &R
Union Property PRC Registered capital

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company

(@) General information of subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

out below.
BRI/ KDAMR
ERGRRE ARAFBHERESL A REELH TEEH
Paid up issued/ Proportion of voting
g | Proportion ownership interest power held by
share capital held by the Company the Company Principal activities
HE %
Directly Indirectly
2023%F 2023%F 20234
2023 2023 2023
T % % %
‘000 % % %
AR¥691,8557C TEA @R TER CEEEEN
RMB691,855 NA NA N/A  Business management
consulting
AR¥1,080,0007C TR TER TER ENRMEEENRMEEE
RMB1,080,000 NA NA N/A  Electricity and heat production
and supply industry
ARE10,0007T TER TER TER %BER
RMB10,000 NA N/A N/A  Business management
AR%2,301,3607C - 100.00 10000 HERHERLEALR
RMB2,301,360 Manufacture and sale of
polytetrafluoroethylene
ARH#80,0007T - 89.93 8993 4HERHEH
RMB80,000 Production and sales of salt
AR % 400,000 86.57 1343 10000 HERHERRALD
RMB400,000 Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride
5,000 7 100.00 - 10000 $HELIER
HK$5,000 Sale of chemical products

5775 BERHEFRENR

Manufacture and sale of

AK#1,200,000 7T
RMB1,200,000

57.75

organosilicon material

AR 150,000 - 51.00 5100 HERHEEKELED
RMB150,000 Manufacture and sale of
anhydrous fluoride
AR%9,0007 - 80.00 8000 RERHESR
RMB9,000 Manufacture and sale of
fluorite
AR 115,7007C - 100.00 10000 BERHEERE
RMB115,700 Manufacture and sale of silicon
rubber
AR 2650007 - 100.00 10000 REWE
RMB265,000 Property development
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35. KRB EEMEB L BAFSE @)

(a)

MWEARN—RER (&

ZMRIR
HEARER BR/2EER ROER
Country of
incorporation
or registration/ Class of
Name of subsidiary operation share held
BAREAREHERAA HE &R
Huangtai Dongyue International PRC Registered capital
Trade Co., Ltd.
EER 3 &R
Huaxia Shenzhou PRC Registered capital
REAEMEK 3 &R
Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology ~ PRC Registered capital
T EKBEEREERR E afER
Zibo Herun Shuiwu Company PRC Registered capital
Limited.
LIRAEHRERAE E afER
Shandong Mingyue Technology PRC Registered capital
Co., Ltd.
mIEREBREERRERAR  E GaiEew
Sichuan Southwest Sun Shine PRC Registered capital

Silicon Technology Co. Ltd.

BAGELATERAR e EfER

Huantai Country Tongshan PRC Registered capital
Thermoelectric Co. Ltd.

LRREHLRRERAA HE g
Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants PRC Registered capital
Co., Ltd.

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(@) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
B8/ AREME
EMARRA KARFBAEERRLA FRLLA TEEH
Paid up issued/ Proportion of voting
gi | Proportion ownership interest power held by
share capital held by the Company the Company Principal activities
BE Gk
Directly Indirectly
2023% 2023% 2023%F
2023 2023 2023
T % % %
‘000 % % %
ARH5,0007 - 100.00 10000 HE(LTER
RMB5,000 Sale of chemical products
AR 10,0007 - 100.00 10000 BERHERARH TR
RMB10,000 Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer
ARH3,021,9207 100.00 - 10000 BEREBAEMNHITE
RMB3,021,920 Investment and management
of fluorosilicone new
material industry
AR% 25,0007 - 100.00 10000 JHKHBEIREE
RMB25,000 Sewage disposal and
environmental monitoring
AR 500,000 7T - 100.00 10000 (LB EfiHHE
RMB500,000 Chemical technology research
and development
AR¥198,444.77C - 100.00 10000 ERAEERARELE
BELBRASHMHEE
RMB198,444.7 Smelt and sales of high
performance non-tenuous
metal and alloy materials
AR 100,00070 - 83.22 10000 BN #H BAR
KEERFRESE
RMB100,000 Electricity, heat, gas and water
production and supply
industry
AR%3,460,0007C - 100.00 10000 AEREECTIER
RMBS3,460,000 Production and sales of

EEZRB LRBITOARFMBER
AERFEAREXEREE -EF
R M EMHERRNER
HEEAREMNBRITR -

REL  WEBRABREERTERNER
o MBETBEMBEAREAEAND
o,

250 HE£EARAT —B-NEFR

chemical products

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic
enterprises.



e B RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
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35. KRB EEMEB L BAFSE @)

(b) 7 B A S 42 AR AR O M0 2 I
[ PSS
TSR B T R R IR SR 35 40
AEEIE2EHER TN

MR L BRK
WEAREH FREXBY
Country of
incorporation and
principal place of
Name of subsidiary business
REBHE hE
Dongyue Organosilicon PRC
RERDT H
Dongyue Polymers PRC

TXENEREARFFERBRE R
AEEEMBLARNYBENBE -
THMBERBESETRENRNLH

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

FERRREZBEN
PR R )

PEFFERRR
% R R FERBRRES
Proportion ownership
interest held by non-
controlling interests

Accumulated non-
controlling interests

Profit allocated to non-
controlling interests

2023% EEPIVIES  2023F BEWIVIES  2023%

2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

ARETR PNl ARMTT PN

RMB'000 WYEIUN  RMB'000 MY

55.59% VLY AREIN  (106,012) BPATTREPS 2,072,110
25.98% \7 160,080 \ZW 2,536,951 /A
T T TE A

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial

A& 58 o information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
REBHKE RESDT
®R12H31H At 31 December Dongyue Organosilicon Dongyue Polymers
2024 F 20234 2024 F 20234
2024 2023 2024 2023
ARET T NS AR% T BN S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REBEE Current assets 2,591,244 ERWYYERrvEl 4,824,403 EEENEREIN/
FERBEE Non-current assets SAEPENN 4,023,710 B GASEIrA N EANA
nBEE Current liabilities (1,441,066) BRCRCEWFINY  (1,995,155) BES L/
FERBBEE Non-current liabilities (27,127) (92,825) (303;105) EESEREIV
4,902,341 4,904,404 | CPEAEENE R A N/A
ZA/NCIE7 SN Equity attributable to owners
FE1E R of the Company PRIV N 2,832,294 [ VELELEN N iE A N/A
FEPR AR AR R M 2 Equity attributable to non-
FE1E R controlling interests AFEP 2,072,110 FRVEEGEE NE A NA

ERNA

4,902,341 4,904,404 9,271,350
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35. KRB EFEMEB L AFE @)

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

(b) EREAFERRREZNFZEHR (b)

B AR E(E)

For the year ended

BZ12H31BILFE 31 December

Wz Revenue

353 Expenses

F A5 A Profit for the year

VN/NGIEZ 2SN Profit attributable to owners
&A% 7 of the Company

FEPEAR AR R Profit attributable to non-
&8 5 T controlling interests

EATIEERRE Dividends paid to non-
EER S controlling interests

KRR ERA Net cash inflow/(outflow)
(R FEE from operating activities

WEEEHELSRA Net cash inflow/(outflow)
() FaE from investing activities

BMEEEHIREREFE Net cash outflow from

financing activities
BERA/(RE)FE  Net cash inflow/(outflow)

252 HE£EARAF —B-MEEH

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

REAHME

Dongyue Organosilicon

REBDF
Dongyue Polymers

2024 5 20234 2024 20234
2024 2023 2024 2023
LB ARETT NELEE AXET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
5,150,650 EEER:IWISN 10,290,387 BRI/
(5,097,823) ERCHEYRIN  (9,441,752) BRS IR/

52,827 (250,736) 848,633 EESEIELV/

30,897 (144,724) CEEREEN TEANA

21,930 (106,012)

52,827
|
222,347 249,131
(14,280) 87,256

)
)
- (119,592) (2.904)
208,067 (496,679) 333,483

160,080 B RzEE\I/

848,633 SN/

TEAN/A

TEFAN/A

NERNA

AN iE A N/A

35 A N/A
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36. WiE—EHMELQF

R2024F 12 A SEBEBELCEEEESRA
A (DEEERE]  AXREEF A% ER
B AR MIREURZRIBII AR ER - 1B
BRETARER  RZHEBLEENR
HERBY I UUBIBS0% R RERB R
EEIAEECLISZESPHIZ A
EEESRTHAEEEMEFISEEREN
X E - R SIEEEEE S 2024F 12 A
27 BB AKREE o

7 A 5 T M P K B S T s B
REBHATENT :

36. Acquisition of a subsidiary

In December 2024 the shareholders of Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise
Management Limited Company (“Zibo Xiaoshuo”, " & &
BIEMCEERE AR AR, an associate being held by 51%
of the Group) resolved to amend the article of association
(AOA). Pursuant to the amended AOA, most of resolutions
of the business operation may be resolved to pass with over
50% of the voting right, considering together with the fact
that the Group appointed 3 out of 5 directors, the Group’s
directors assessed the Group was able to control the business
operation of Zibo Xiaoshuo, therefore Zibo Xiaoshuo should be
consolidated by the Group since 27 December 2024.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Zibo

Xiaoshuo acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows:

AR T T
B EEFE Net assets acquired: RMB'000
I E: Sy Property, plant and equipment 280,065
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 51,606
BAFEFAEME2ERZI ZHATA  Equity instruments at FVTOCI 5,189
2 5 K H MW RIE Trade and other receivables 155,862
FE Inventories 33,848
IRITEBR NS Bank and cash balances 29,148
B 5 N E b FET SR8 Trade and other payables (221,124)
BENEfFIE B E Current tax liabilities (1,521)
AR & EFEATE Total identifiable net assets 333,073
FEFE AR IR B A 2 Non-controlling interests (163,206)
S Goodwill 141,743
XA Satisfied by 311,610
SSIBEES 1% RE 2 ATFE Fair value of 51% equity interests in Zibo Xiaoshuo 311,610
WIS SR AR Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
ENEREERE Cash consideration paid -
FrigisR € RERIBERIEER Cash and cash equivalents acquired 29,148
29,148
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37. HEKB R F
() HERXASE (a) Disposal of Zhangjiajie Xinye

M2024% 5318 AEE KB
ARIEREHAEEEAR AR ([5H
HEXDEEREA(BEE]EIL
R eEEps Bt BHEERE
HEREAEREBERRAZEN
52% fE s ©

37. Disposal of subsidiaries

On 31 May 2024, one of the subsidiaries of the Group,
Shandong Dongyue Federation Property Limited ( LI 58 3R
EBITEEAER AT ", “Federation Property”), entered
into a shares transfer agreements with Mr. & R (Mr. Lv),
pursuant to which, Federation Property agreed to sell and
the Mr. Lv agreed to purchase 52% interest of Zhangjiajie
Xinye.

REEBBMNEEFERT ! Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

ARBFT
RMB’'000
FIEF IR A B Deferred tax assets 7,769
EHERBZYE Properties for sale 270,500
B 5 & E b fE W SRR Trade and other receivables 70,461
WITHEHR LIRS Bank balances and cash 37,681
85 REMERNFIE Trade and other payables (260,195)
BEHEFEE Net asset disposed of 126,216
REIWERNEE N a MR AR Fair value of remaining interests of Zhangjiajie
RRABEFHREZNRTFE Xinye retained and accounted for as interest
in associate -
HE—RHBARMNER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (100,216)
BRE —NUReXN Total consideration — satisfied by cash 26,000
HERMEENREREFE Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
YR RE Cash consideration received 26,000
BEHRERSERKESEE Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (37,681)
(11,681)

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER
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37. HEWEB QT (@)

(b)

HELRBAEHERBRERAA

R2024F 6 A16H @ Bt A B X EKE
HREREER AR ((BERWE])
R ERERE B BB
AELEMERMEREBEILEE
AEHERZEBR AR ([EXEH
EH100% -

RHEBRMWEEFEDT ¢

37. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Shandong Boda Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.

On 16 June 2024, Federation Property entered into a
shares transfer agreement with Zibo Qidong Property
Service Limited (" S8 M ERIEBR A A", “Qidong
Property”), pursuant to which, Federation Property agreed
to sell and Qidong Property agreed to purchase 100%
interest of Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co.,

Ltd. ("URBAEHERZBR QA ",
Estate”).

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

“Boda Real

ARBEF T
RMB’'000
W R RERE Property, plant and equipment 468
RETIREE Deferred tax assets 42,964
EHERB 2 Properties for sale 236,716
B 5 K E bW EIE Trade and other receivables 255,872
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 29,195
B 5 N E b FET 5RIE Trade and other payables (337,067)
AHEaRE Contract liabilities (134,995)
MIBAE Tax liabilities (93,153)
EREFEE Net asset disposed of -
LE—FHRBARNER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary -
BRE — RN Total consideration — satisfied by cash -
HEMELENR SR FHE: Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
BUIRER(E Cash consideration received -
BEHEReERALER Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (29,195)
(29,195)
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38.

256

RMEETHEENEEEH 38. Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
TRERFRNAEEREETHMELENE The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities
BEEE o arising from financing activities during the year.
HEAE
Lease liabilities
AR®TTT
RMB’000
M2023F 118 At 1 January 2023 43,634
Rensd Changes in cash flows (18,086)
RS EDH Non-cash changes:
— AN HHEESNHEBGEE N — Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases 4,842
— MEFAX — Interest charged 1,659
7202312 H31H X 202441 A1 H At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024
ReEnEHF Changes in cash flows 32,049
RS EH) Non-cash changes: (6,964)
— FERAX — Interest charged 1,357
M2024%F 12 A31H At 31 December 2024 26,442

HESBEARAR ZE-NEER



e B RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

39. XA B BB AR R R BN K

39. Summarised statement of financial position
of the Company and reserves

2024 F 20234

2024 2023

AR%E T BN S

RMB’000 RMB’000

RHTEB R RNIEE Investments in subsidiaries 3,795,718 3,818,671
RITEBNES Bank balances and cash 12,999 54,750
HEMnshEE Other current assets 210,154 210,151
FES — I B A B3R Due to a subsidiary (3,550,972) -
HEMnshasE Other current liabilities (594) (22,827)
(467,305) 4,060,745

[ Share capital 163,506 212,196
s (M) Reserves (Note) 303,799 3,848,549

467,305 4,060,745

KRB ERREKREN2025F3 A27B#
EFeAEMEETE  THIUTAER
REE:

RES
Zhang Jianhong
EFE

Director

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

R
Zhang Zhefeng
EFE

Director
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39. XA FHBMRR KRBT EFEE %) 39. Summarised statement of financial position
of the Company and reserves (Continued)

P 3 Note:
HEZE - Movement in the reserves:
EEBRE
RIVEE FHHAEREG RA& REEF am
Share held
for employee
Share option Capital Retained
premium scheme reserve earnings Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
202351818 At 1 January 2023 3,935,865 (474,850) 200,344 68,904 3,730,263
AEEENRZEKELE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 1,555,792 1,555,792
EEBREFNEETEERS Purchase of shares under employee
option scheme - (240,893) - - (240,893)
BERERE Dividends paid - - - (1,196,613) (1,196,613)
20245 1R18 At 1 January 2024 (715,743) 200,344 428,083 3,848,549
AFEEEHNRZEKELE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 18,899 18,899
INERFIRE Translation of foreign currency statements - -
o1& I SR 1D TR Completion of Shares repurchased
and cancelled (3,408,040) - 3,408,040
BRKRE Dividends paid - (155,609) (155,609)
R2024F12 4318 At 31 December 2024 527,825 (715,743) 200,344 291,373 303,799
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LEMBHE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20205 202145 20225 20235 2024 £
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ARETT AREFTT AR%®Tn ARETT BUNGLSEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000
= Revenue 10,044,313 15,843,947 20,027,988 14,493,323 | L ERLY)
HERA Cost of sales (7,799,717)  (10,626,336)  (13,513,617)  (12,057,192) LRI ELEAL)]
EYi| Gross profit 2,244,596 5,217,611 6,514,371 2,436,131 3,066,581
Hit A RE oMz REE  Other income and other net gains
and losses 136,207 182,028 229,006 269,157 226,237
DERHERY Distribution and selling expenses (353,683) (336,451) (498,767) (503,038) (437,188)
THREMHY Administrative and other expenses (356,845) (913,264) (993,740) (647,286) (734,857)
BREE—MREATMEE  Ganon deemed disposal of
a subsidiary 40,850 - 1,212,290 - 139,049
HE—RIBARNESE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - (27,377) - - (100,216)
H3E & A AR Research and development costs (590,471) (838,893)  (1,310,535) (935,099) (707,132)
i NG Share of results of associates 4,505 20,291 25,401 34,965 (28,071)
BRATEFABZZEMEE  Fair value change on financial asset
LTEED at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") (3,978) 21,870 (37,669) -
BB Finance costs (104,560) (81,606) (15,302) (1,659) (1,357)
BRBL AR Profit before taxation 1,016,621 3,244,209 5,125,055 653,171 1,423,046
FTERmEY Income tax expense (113,765) (562,664) (948,938) (42,086) (435,549)
FEERF Profit for the year 902,856 2,681,545 4,176,117 611,085 987,497
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AFHMBERE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BENAMNALEE
Year ended 31 December
20205 202014 20225 20235
2020 2021 2022 2023
ARETT ARETR ARETT AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Hit2E K& Other comprehensive income
TEEFHLEZERAIEL - ltem that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
BRATEFAEMZEREZ  Fair value changes on equity
BaIlANLNTHEEY instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (279,531) (234,098) (5,830) (15,449)
FRE2EKRELHE Total comprehensive income
for the year 623,325 2,447 447 4,170,287 595,636
THI% A EEER Total comprehensive income for
2EKEEE: the year attributable to:
— KARFEBA — Owners of the Company 492,636 1,840,745 3,849,709 692,344
— R R = — Non-controlling interests 130,689 606,702 320,578 (96,708)
623325 2447447 4,170,287 595,636
BELE Total Assets 17,121,859 21,601,226 24,644,949 21,948,745
BEER Total Liabilities (6,591,347)  (5962,603)  (6,151,472)  (5,010,336)
ARFHEB AEGER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 8,542,306 13,123,581 16,082,018 14,794,221
BRI R ER Non-controlling interests 1988206 2515042 2411459 2,144,188
1231 B&#% Balance at 31 December 10,530,512 15,638,623 18,493,477 16,938,409

200 HE£EARAT —B-NEFR

20245
2024
AR®TR
RMB'000

21,266

1,008,763

832,070
176,693

1,008,763

20,936,870
(3,465,033)

12,107,060
5,364,771

17,471,837
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands
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www.dongyuechem.com
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Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in

the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Room 2621, 26/F, Tower 1
Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Weidong (President)

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai (Company Secretary)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Company secretary

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai
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Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands
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Authorized representatives

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Weidong
Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng

Risk Management Committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyung
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands
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office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

2888 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

673 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

456 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2024

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer

263



NEER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

REEBERER

EEARBERERATR]
BB

IR

ERAEF IR
418128 %

23 4]
REZE G E B ERAR
ShER AR
HERRERREEH

42 155

189

264 HEEEARLQF —E-NEER

Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
Room 128, 4/F

9 Queen Central Road
Central

Hong Kong

Auditors

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

Stock code

189
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